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+ TPLREIT Fundl

In our commitment to sustainability,

TPL REIT Fund | (TPLRFI) embraces a blueprint
that transcends conventional planning, it's a
dedication to creating a resilient future. By
integrating sustainable practices into every
phase of development, TPLRFIis building a future
that balances innovation with environmental
responsibility. Our approach ensures that, what
we design today supports both the needs of our
stakeholders and the well-being of future
generations. The TPLRFI Half Yearly Report
highlights these efforts, demonstrating how our
sustainable strategies are shaping projects and
setting new standards for environmental
responsibility.
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Hoshang - Flagship Project

One Hoshang embodies the concept of efficient space utilization and
adaptability. By transforming a historic building into Pakistan’s ultra
high-end residential tower, we effectively merge heritage with modern
luxury. This project symbolizes our ability to repurpose and redesign
spaces, ensuring both growth and sustainability.







The Mangrove project represents TPL REIT Fund I's unwavering commitment to sustainable development and
environmental preservation. By integrating advanced green building practices and energy-efficient systems, the
project minimizes its ecological impact while prioritizing the conservation of the mangrove habitat along Korangi
Creek. This initiative rejuvenates the ecosystem, fostering biodiversity and creating a green sanctuary for Karachi's
residents. With a design that balances development and ecological preservation, TPLRFI ensures that the
surrounding natural environment, including the adjacent biodiversity park, thrives as a vital space for nature and
community recreation.
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VISION

To become the leading asset-focused investment hub in Pakistan and the
largest investment provider for local and international investors looking to
tap into Pakistan’s growing real estate sector.

MISSION

To elevate the real estate landscape of Pakistan by building sustainable
communities and workplaces that help in reducing carbon footprint in the
country. We aim to enhance the lives and well-being of the Pakistani
population while bringing Pakistan to the global forefront of the real estate
sector by refining and uplifting the industry.

CORE VALUES

Take Ownership
Pledge to Learn

Lead with Compassion
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors of TPL REIT Management Company Limited is pleased to present its Directors Report together with the Financial
Statements of TPL REIT Fund | (the Fund) for the period ended December 31, 2024.

ECONOMIC REVIEW
Global

The World's economy is projected to grow at 3.3%in CY25. During 3QCY 24, parts of Asia and Europe experienced slower than expected
growth, owing to low manufacturing and industrial activity. However, U.S. economy recorded a growth of 2.7% YoY.

Global headline inflation is projected at 4.2% in CY25 compared to expected inflation of 5.2% in CY24. Advanced economies are likely to
stabilize inflation levels sooner due to effective management of monetary policies, while emerging markets and developing economies
may experience slower convergence due to persistent inflationary pressures and external factors like commodity price fluctuations and
exchange rate volatility.

Pakistan

Pakistan's GDP growth stood at 2.5% during FY24 increasing from a contraction of -0.22% in FY23. Going forward it is projected at 3.2%
for FY25. The inflationary pressure started to drop in Q3FY24 after touching a historic high of 38.0 % in May FY23, largely due to the impact
of monetary tightening and high base effect. The monthly Inflation in Jan 2025 is reported at 2.4%, the lowest inlast 9 Years. This significant
decline reflects the effectiveness of a strategic policy mix, including fiscal consolidation, targeted interventions by the State Bank of
Pakistan (SBP) and exchange rate stability.

The real sectors showed positive trends in 1HFY25, with agriculture maintaining a promising outlook due to strong crop yield. In contrast,
Large Scale Manufacturing (LSM) output showed a slight decline of 1.25% during July-November 2025, improving from a 1.9% contraction
in the same period last year. Despite the overall decline, key sectors such as textiles, food, pharmaceuticals, beverages, and automobiles
displayed resilience and growth potential, indicating a path toward recovery in the manufacturing sector.

The country's fiscal deficit narrowed to 0.04% of GDP during July-November CY24, down from 1.3% last year. On the external front,
Pakistan's current account balance turned positive to $1.2 billion in 1HFY25 from a deficit of $1.4 billion SPLY. The current account balance
was largely supported by an increase in remittances which stood at $17.8 billion, registering an increase of 33% YoY. Moreover, a 20%
increase in direct investment was also witnessed during the same period, which helped the current account balance turn positive.

On the balance of trade, export receipts rose by 7.2% to $16.2 billion in 1HFY25 from $15.1 billion SPLY, while Imports grew by 9.3% to
$27.7 billion, up from $25.4 billion last year, these were mainly driven by higher imports of machinery, transport, metals, and textiles. The
1HFY25 ended with SBP having net foreign reserves of $ 11.7 billion, as compared to $8.2 billion in December 2024, registering anincrease
of 42%. Improvement in the exchange reserves led the exchange rate to appreciate by 1.9%. PKR/USD averaged at 278.1 in 1HFY25,
compared to PKR 281.8 SPLY. The stability of the rupee can be attributed to the gradual strengthening of foreign exchange reserves and
a series of proactive measures implemented to regulate the foreign exchange market.

The Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX) emerged as one of the best performing market during 1HFY25, where the benchmark KSE-100 Index
posted a staggering 45% return, led by a stable exchange rate, political stability and monetary easing.

The economic outlook for Pakistan is encouraging, underpinned by stabilizing macroeconomic fundamentals and a gradual recovery of key
sectors. Inflation is expected to drop in the near to medium-term, fostering conditions conducive to economic growth. This anticipated
stability will likely facilitate further reduction in policy rates, lowering borrowing costs for both businesses and consumers, thereby boosting
investments and economic momentum.

Global Real Estate

The 3QCY24 proved meaningful in the stabilization of the real estate markets, as inflation moderated and central banks started to ease
monetary policy across major markets. Investor sentiment continues to improve compared to CY23, and more signals are emerging of a
new liquidity cycle in real estate sector. Debt origination volumes are trending upward as market activity increases, and lower rates are
reducing the cost of debt.

The global real estate market is projected to reach $654.40 trillion by 2025 where, the Residential Real Estate shall remain the dominant
segment, with an expected market volume of $534.40 trillion. The sector is forecasted to grow at a 2.69% annual rate (CAGR 2025-2029),
reaching $727.80 trillion by 2029.



Pakistan's Real Estate

In Pakistan, the real estate sector experienced positive growth in 1HFY25, with property values increasing by an average of 5%-6% across
key sectors. The residential sector showed resilience with prices rising in all major cities by an average of 5%. This recovery can be attributed
to a partial rebound in economy, which had previously been impacted by economic slowdown.

Previously, the commercial sector growth was sluggish as businesses grappled with inflationary pressures and unfavorable political and
economic conditions, suppressing overall demand. However, with economic revival gaining momentum, a decline in the policy rate, and
business activity normalizing, the sector is showing signs of recovery. This is reflected by 6% price increase in commercial property prices,

signaling improving demand.

The construction industry is poised to show recovery given the decline in inflation and input cost. The steel prices saw a decline from PKR
258,000/Ton in July 2024 to PKR 253,000/ Ton in December 2024, while, cement prices declined by 4% during 1HFY25.

Given the recovery in macroeconomic indicators, the Real Estate sector is expected to witness positive investor interest in the medium
tolong-term.

Real Estate Investment Trusts (REITs):

REITs in Pakistan have shown significant growth in recent years, with 19 licensed Real Estate Management Companies (RMCs), and 3 REIT
Funds listed on PSX having a market capitalization of PKR ~78 billion.

The outlook for REITs in Pakistan remains positive, as the government continues to facilitate the sector with policy incentives and tax
relaxations. The regulatory environment has been conducive with regular policy interventions to enhance investor confidence and encourage
new entrants to the market.

OPERATING RESULTS

TPL REIT Fund I (Unconsolidated)

The financial results of TPL REIT Fund | are as follows:

Description Rupees '000

Profit after taxation for the period 749,760
Other comprehensive income -

Appropriations: -
Net profit brought forward 749,760
Earning per unit (Rupees) 0.41

During the period under review total income of the Fund stood at PKR 1,215 million compared to PKR 159 million in the corresponding
period last year.

Total operating expenses during the period stood at PKR 450 million compared to PKR 286 million in the corresponding period last year.

The net profit after tax for the period stood at PKR 750 million compared to net loss of PKR 126 million in the corresponding period last
year. This translates into Earning per unit of Re. 0.41 per unit.

HKC (Private) Limited

The Development property owned by the Company consists of a land parcel of 2,539 square yards of commercial property situated at
corner of Abdullah Haroon Road and Hoshang Road, Karachi.

As of December 31, 2024 the Development property of the Company is valued at PKR 4,975 million. MYK Associates (Private) Limited is
the valuator of the Fund for determination of the fair value of the investment property.



National Management and Consultancy Services (Private) Limited

The Investment property owned by the company consists of a land parcel of 40 acres commercial property situated at Korangi Creek,
Karachi.

As of December 31, 2024 the Investment property of the Company is valued at PKR 28,360 million out of which PKR 24,732 million pertains
to fair value of the land and PKR 3,628 million pertains to the development work at the property. MYK Associates (Private) Limited is the
valuator of the Fund for determination of the fair value of the investment property.

TPL Technology Zone Phase - 1 (Private) Limited

The Investment property owned by the company consists of an open industrial plot measuring 10,002 square yards situated at Korangi
Industrial Area, Karachi.

As of December 31, 2024 the Held for Sale property of the Company is valued at PKR 2,254 million out of which PKR 1,650 million pertains
to fair value of the land and PKR 855 million pertains to the development work at the property. MYK Associates (Private) Limited is the
valuator of the Fund for determination of the fair value of the investment property.

PROJECT PROGRESS REPORT

HKC (Private) Limited

The projectis progressing with the detailed design finalized and initial construction works including piling, shoring, and excavation completed.
Allregulatory approvals required for the project have been secured.

Construction of the grey structure has advanced up to the second floor. The project has experienced some delays due to which project
completionis expected in Q1-2027.

National Management and Consultancy Services (Private) Limited

The project has made significant progress, achieving key milestones, including completion of the concept master plan design, master plan
approval, and infrastructure engineering study. Additionally, required No Objection Certificates (NOCs) related to height and utilities have
been secured.

The detailed building design for the 20 towers led by SSH is currently in progress and is expected to be finalized by 3Q 2025. As part of this
process, the pre-concept stage for Tower C2 has been completed, while the schematic design for Tower C4 has been finalized, with detailed

design work underway.

Furthermore, the tender for the infrastructure works encompassing roadworks, public health engineering, and electrical works, is in the
process of being awarded to enable commencement of infrastructure development at the site.

The development of the Biodiversity Park has been successfully completed, and the Sales & Site Office was launched in December 2024.
The site, along with Biodiversity Park, is now open to visitors.

TPL Technology Zone Phase - 1 (Private) Limited
As notified in the letter to Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX) dated 27th December 2024, The Fund has decided to divest from the TPL Tech.
Zone (TTZ) Phase 1 (Pvt.) Ltd ('Project SPV') through sale of the Project land, followed by liquidation of the Project SPV, and distribution

of the liquidation proceeds to the Unitholders.

With this we aim to relocate the Technology Park to The Mangrove Site, which shall place the Technology Park at the forefront of a thriving
and accessible residential and commercial gated community at 'The Mangrove', enhancing its value and appeal.

FUND RATING
PACRA Credit Rating Company has assigned a REIT Fund Rating of RFR 3+ (Stable Outlook) to the Fund.

PACRA Credit Rating Company has assigned REIT Manager Rating of RM 3+ (Stable Outlook) to the Management Company of the Fund.
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VALUATION REPORT OF OPEN COMMERCIAL LAND
LOCATED AT DEH DIH, TAPFO IBRAHIM HYDERI, TALUKA KORANGI CREEK, KARACHI EAST
TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-I

MYK Relerence No:

COVERING PAGE OF REPORT
MYES 17867/ 12/2024

Date ol Valualion Report: Fabruary D&, 2025

Date of Visik: December 24, 2024

Dale of Request Recelved: Through Email on dated Decemiber 24, 2024

itqur.thd By: kA, Irnran wl Hogue (Seniod Finance ManogonTPL RMC]

Client Name: TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-I

Address ol Property: The Project Site |Lond) bearing Plot's Survey Mos: 295/1, 296/1,
29871, 299, 300 and 301, lbcoted af Deh Dih, Toppo brahim
Hyded, Taluka Korang! Creek, Korachi Bost

Approised By: Teom of MYE Associcles Privale Limited

Identified By: Te:om of TPL REIT Monogement Company Limited & TPL REIT Fund-L

Custodian of the Land: Contonment Board Korangl Cresk

Status of NOC (if any): Yes

Type of Property: Open Commercial Lond

Froperty Ulilizalion: Fully Commercial [] Vacant [v]  Fully Industrial [ |

Type of Titke: Commercial [As par Documenis)

Sumcundings: Industrial and Commerncial [v] Fully Residenfial [ ]
Fully Industrial [ ] Fully Commercial | |
Residential cum Commercial []

FAR: 1:8 [As per Provided documents B Approvals]

Valve of Land: PKR. 24,731 895,000.00

CWIF Amount: PKR. 3,628,321,040.00

Nel Present Value: PKR. 28,340,.216,040.00

Valualion Basls: Sales Comparison Approach [+] Residual Valve [4]

HEAD OFFICE: MYK HOUSE, 52.A, Block B, Street No, 5, Sindhi Muslim Cooperative Heusing Society Karnchi-75400, Pokistan,
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VALUATION REPORT OF OFEN COMMERCIAL LAND
LOCATED AT DEH DIH, TAPPO IBRAHIM HYDERI, TALUKA KORANG! CREEK. KARACHI EAST
TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-|

VALUATION INITIATIVE:

In occordance with the provision of REIT Regulations-2015 and omendments = 2018 & 2022, TPL
REM Monogement Company Limted cppointed MYK Associales Pyt Lid for voluotion of Open
Commercial Land o3 o PRA opproved *no limit valuer”, The of TPL REIT Fund-1 Project Siter (Land)
beoring Plot's Survey Mos: 2951, 296/1, 298/1, 299, 300 aond 301 located of Deh Dih, Tappo
Ibrahim Hyderi, Taluka konangi Cresk, Korochi East,

A team from M/s, MYK Associates Privale Limited [comprising of the following offickals) viited
opean Land for survey and inspection to complete the assignment within the sfipulated firme.

~ Engr. Muhammad Tougir
= Engr. Amir Afi

Meatings held with the official frepresantafives) of TPL REIT Managemsant Company Limited L TPL
RE Fundd. Derails & planning information were gathered regonding this property. Therealler, an
extensive ond detalad survey of open Lond were camed out with reference o tha data sharing,
documents and infomation provided by them af the ime of survey process.

MYE Ral Mo: MYEKS17867/12/2024 Popge Mo: 4 of 24
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VALUATION REPORT OF OPEN COMMERCIAL LAND
LOCATED AT DEH DIH, TAPPO IBRAHIM HYDERI, TALUKA KORANGI CREEK. KARACHI EAST
TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-1

MYK Associates Private Limited
(150 #001-2015 Accredited)
Service Providers to The Financlal, Business & Corporale Sechor
BRIEF INTRODUCTION OF VALUATOR:
MYE Associotes Privale Limited & an BO-7001-2015 occrediled real esiofe valuator of
Pokision. We ensure the voluation of ntemational stondonck #o the safisfoction of chent
and o wel os the concemed deparfments / instiutions. Upon ochisving the
accreditation, we ore odherng 1o mainioin the customer requirements, establish clent’s
trust and fo encbie the paricipation in continual improvement.
MYE hos been founded by M. Younas Khan FCA [Englond & Wales), Ex Couniry Genercl
Manoger, Deutsche Bonk AG in Pokiston. It wos incorporated in September 2000 and &
regitered under the Pakiston Companies Ordinonce 1984. As o professional Survey and
Evaiuation company, MYE Associates (Pvl) Limited hos over 16 yeors of experience of
conducfing evalualion, ispection ond muccodaom monogemen! ossignments. |
provides servicas fo the Finoncial and Private Sector in Pokision and & on the opproved
ponel of Pakistan Banks Association. As o nafionwide company, our sanvices comprise of
Valuations of Fxed ond Curent Assets, Inspeciion: of Hypothecoled and Pledged Slock
ond Colaters value (Muccodomoge) efc. We ore oo on the opproved panel of NBF|
and Modarba Assoclation of Pakistan.
Over the years, our valuafion assignments cover a wide spectrum in consumer refod,
industrial, commencial, ogricultural and corporate porticlics that encompass Lond, Chivil
Structures, Tonks & Mochinery, commercial Civll Structures, hospifials, residential properfies
as well as open plots both In ural and urban aregs. We cumenfty conduct inspactions for
all the carporate ond commencial clents fior gifferent bonks, Cur mucoadom departrmen!
expertly monoges differen! porticlios including seasonal crops, which include wheot, rice,
cotion, os wel as ship brecking, molasses, ethonol, sugar, edible oll, ond conocla.
MYES' Mission B 1o provide strafegic counsal, creative solutions and responsive senvices in
o fimely manner o the Finoncial 5acior. MYEsS' vision s lo be recognized os a leader in
providing seamiess services through superior quolily ond commilment as well os ochieving
operafionol  excellence,  industry-leoding clenlele sofisfoclion through superior
perormance.

MYE Rel Ho: MYES1 78671272024 Poge Mot Sal 24
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VALUATION REPORT OF OPEN COMMERCIAL LAND
LOCATED AT DEH DIH, TAPPO IBRAHIM HYDER], TALUKA KORANGI| CREEK, KARACHI EAST
TFL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-1

MYK Associales Private Limited

(150 $001-2015 Accrediled)
Service Providers Yo the Financial, Business & Corporate Sector

BRIEF INTRODUCTION OF OWNER:

M. Muhammaod Younas Khan s the Choirman ond Chial Executive Officer of MYE Associales
{Pvt.] Lid, o company regsterad under the low of Poidsion Componies Ordinance 1584 and
incorporoiad Seplemiber 2000, M. Khon hos yeors of professionol experience in the banking ond
corporate sacior combined and heods the MYE Group of Companies with olher professicnals.
Formerly Mr. Khan hos been the Couniry Ganeral Maonager of Deutscha Bank In Pokistan, He hos
abko been on the Board of Direclors for the OF and Gas Development Company Limited
{OGDC), and National Rafinery Umiled [NRL), two of the largest compankes in the Oll Secior of
Poksian.

A Chartered Accountant by GQuolficafion from Englond and Wales [FCA), Mr. Khan i o bonker
by profession. He & also a Fellew of the institute of Bankers in Pokisian (1BP), and the institute of
Charlerad Accouniants of Pakitan (ICAP). He i accredited with having completed his Mosters
from the University of Puniab. Mr. Khan & well reputed in the Banking ond Corporote sector, local
business crcies and tha Govermnment of Pokitan,

OTHER POSITIONS HELD:
s Prasident of the Oversens investors, Chamber of Commerce and Indusiry
Chaoirmnan of the Gamaon Business Council (Koufmannsnunde]
Chairman of the Pakiston Bonks™ Associafion
Member of the Manoging Commities of Pokision Bonks'™ Associafion
Member of the Manogemen! Asociofion of Pokisian
Member of the Rolary Club of Karachl Matropolifan
Member ol the Pokistan German Business Forum

PREVIOUS POSITIONS HELD:

s Mamber of the Paidstan investmen! Board (Resporsible for attracting Foreign investrment
n Poristan)

*  Member of the investment Council of Pakistan

+ Tnates of the Karochi Port Trust

= Chairman of the Banking and FAnance Sub- Commitles, for Overseas investor Chamber
of Commerce and Indusiry

s Member of the Manoging Committes of Overseas investor Chamiber of Commeerce and
inchustry

s Diracior of the Pakktan Fund [Foreign Cumency Equity Fund)

HE manogement feom ond osocioles cre professionals with distinguished  senior
manogement experience, in the multinational envicnment and In large corporations, both
In Pakiston and oveneos.

MYE Rief No: MYESI 78T/ 2/2024 Poge Mo éof 287
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VALUATION REPORT OF OFEN COMMERCIAL LAND
LOCATED AT DEH DIH, TAPPO IBRAHIM HYDERI, TALUKA KORANGI| CREEK. KARACHI EAST
TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL RETT FUND-I

MYK Associales Private Limited
(150 7001-2015 Accredied)
Service Froviders o the Financial, Business & Corporate Sector
ABOUT KEY PROFESSIONALS OF MYK ASSOCIATES PVT LTD:
SENIOR GENERAL MANAGER:
Enge. Mekhor Abmed & o Prolessional Enginser [PEC) ond groduated from MNED Univenily of Enginesring
and Technoiogy. Korochi ond hoaving vond expedence of Fower Genamiion. Tronsmission ond Ditibulion
Syslem, He has ocquired froining from ABE of Dubol UAE, in Power Contol Manogemen! and Asmsetfs
handing procedute. He olsa ochieved legal qualficalion LL. 8, LLM. and having experfae of Agreament
ond Controciy wiiting os weld os to leod fhe legal sam on fechnical matien o resolve e depuled sues
on Legal Forums ond Courls. He k& Tully conversant with Power Generalion, Transmission and Dislibufion
Sydiam low ond high volloge. He olso hoy experience in the fiesd of choin supply, fuel manogement and
olher cuwdicry sppies ko Power Siofon o ovoid lood shedding. He hos vasl expedence ol Project
Supervision and fo manoge s completion within ogreed fime and opproved cosl. He possesses full progect
managemen! knowledge ond verfies the conkoclor's work and performance, their bl of poyments,
equipmenl suppies and i indlalalions. He i well convenoni fo coordinate privale ond public oufhonities
and departmants o setie he moess ond o gel matier resclved.
¥ Inificlly, he was engoged with K-Beckic, Karochi [Formes KESC) in Power Generofion, Tronsmission
ond Dtibufion Departmen! and supervised e consirucion of Grd Stofions ond Transmission
Lines,

¥ He Served in Riyadh Beciic [he fhen Soudi Consoldaled Beckic Company] Riyodh, Soudi Ambséa,
in ther Power Gensmofion, Trarsmission ond Daiibufion Divisioni He esloblshed fhe modem
Contol Center io Control Exiea High Volioge Power Supply ond manoged the iraining o Engineers
for SCADA sysiem. Prepons the scheduls io moiniain the Brecken. Tronsformen and other olied
equipment accordingly to improve fhe pedomance.

+  Analyze the Slem Foull ond prepored ihe mainienance ichems equipment and prepare fha
scheme for bolance Lood monogement System lor Cenimal Region,

* He srved Siol Lie Insronce Coporofion of Pokision and wos Heod of the Becincal and
Mechonical Engineeding Deparimeni of iy Becl Biole Division, He dedved fhe modem syslem o
managed and control s aseh. He alo served o3 Heod of the Penonnel ond General
AdminisiraSon Department of State Lile Insurance Carparation

¢ He served Dubail Eleclric and Water Authodly, Dubai UAE for maore than 10 years and managed
ther power Generofion. Transmission and Deibution syslemn on modem fines. He developed
sirglegy of ronsformotion from High Volloge systemn o Exig High Voltoge Syiterm [Le. from 220 KV
1o &00 EY syvierm). Comvomon of Gad Stofior ond Tronsmission ines from corvenfionol manual
opemation system o modam SCADA Contod and 5AF System. He aclivales fhe mdundant sysiem
of Assats Monogament and Conftrol Syrlem fo modern syelem and mainfgined poper recond of of
capitol ond comsumable ifems of al Power Houses, Grid Stafions, Tronemission Lines. Distibution
Syslemn and iis offices.

AFFELLATHONMS:
Frabasboned Erginseas [PEC]
Momiber EEE [USAJMamber IEP Eorochi

T

Mo P Kopopchi Poldsion
ihemiber EEE [Pok)
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VALUATION REPORT OF OPEN COMMERCIAL LAND
LOCATED AT DEH DIH, TAPPO IRRAHIM HYDERL, TALUKA KORANG! CREEK, KARACHI EAST
TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-1

ABOUT CLIENT:

TPL REIT Manoagement Company Limited [TFL RMC], establizhed in 2019, & the lsading
provider of REIT manogamant sarvices in Pakistan ond b reguialed by the SECP, TPL RMC
& a 100% owned subsidiary of TPL Properfies Limited (TFLP] and was established o
capitakze on the sustainoble real estole development and managemen! expertise of ils
porent compaony.

TPL RMC launched its first fund, REIT Fund |, the Susicinoble Development Fund, which s a
parficlio of divarse real astote assel classes in Pakisian, all targeling to be LEED Cerdified.
The mission of the Fund & fo decorbonize Pokifon's cities through sustainable and
climate focused developments, supparfing technology ecosysterms, hadioge, and the
environment., The prolects oim fo uplft Iving sfondords ond oddress the shordfol in
commercial and resideniial properfies due fo ropid urbonizafion in Pakisian.

The Fund & Pakistan's first Sharah Compliont Sustainabie Development impact REIT Fund.
It will ocl as o catalyst for the country’s economy and i an opportunity fo invest in
sustoinable ossetls, seeking fo reap the benefits of Pokistan’s reql esiate secior boom.

TPL RMC & committed to operafing with the highsst levek of intemational standards,
integrity and odheres fo the guidsiines sal oul by the Independent nvestmeant
Committes, Adveory Board, ond Sharah Advisor to ensure effective governance and

responsble business prociices.
Major Projects Under TPL REM FUND-1

- One Hoshang
Ona Hoshang will be Pokistan's first Gold LEED Certified residentiol aportment
buibcing.
130-year-old herioge locode of the site 1o be prolecied lo preserve the herfoge
and promote the culiure

- Technology Park
he Technology Park will be the fist of Ils kind Technology Fres Zone in Pakklan,
equipped with besi+n-ciass technology infrastruciure to support the growth of the
lech eco-sysiem and lead to the proliferation of lechnology starfups.

” Mangrove
Mangrove B o Mosier Plonned Community 1o be developed over a lond parcel
of 40 ocres on a-walerfronl locallty. The project overdoocks ond preserves the
exponsive 115 heclores of mongrove forest and secfront, with world-closs
armenities ond o voried colection of midrse Residenfiol Apariment Towers,
Commencial Offices, Serviced Aporiments, Hotel, and Retoll Spoces.

MYE Rl Mo: MYES TBET 1 202024 Poge Mo B of 26
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VALUATION REPORT OF OFEN COMMERCIAL LAND
LOCATED AT DEH DIH, TAPPO IBRAHIM HYDERI, TALUKA KORANGI CREEK. KARACHI EAST
TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-I

ASSIGNMENT

TFL REM Manogemeant Company Umited oppointed MYK Associotes Private Limited “FBA
approved no imit category valuer of Panek or PaneHl® to evaluale the propery by the
qualified professional enginesars who are regiiensd with Pakistan Engineering Council for the
purpcsa of conducting valuafion: ensure that the valuation methodology adopled in line with
best prochices prevalen! in the mal esiale indusiry ond  emsure the valuolion comied out
objectively and indepandanity of s business o commenciol relofionship ond Bsuance of the
deciarafion by the compatent anginesr on the given format duly witnessed by the CEC of tha
valuer company In this respect.

Mfs TPL RET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL RET FUNDH appointed MYE Associoles
{Pyl] Umited 1o evaluate the Open Commencial Lond of TFL REM beoring Survey Mos: 295/1,
4N, 981, 299, 300 ond 301, locoled at Deh D, Tappo lbrahim Hyderl, Taluka Korang
Creek., Karochi East. This commerciol lond comprise on one plece of 4000 Acre. The
commarcial plot s demarcated ond fhelr detalls ore outlined on pogs No: 13

.
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VALUATION REPORT OF OPEN COMMERCIAL LAND
LOCATED AT DEH DIH, TAPPO IBRAHIM HYDERI, TALUKA KORANGI CREEK. KARACHI EAST
TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-I

DETAILS ABOUT KORANGI CREEK AND THE MANGROVES PROJECT:

Korgngl Creek in Korochi offers a unique real estate opportunity, combining seo-focing
properties, ush mangroves, and sirong conneclivity fo key wban hubs. I woterfront location
provides serene views, appealing o both residenticl ond commercial developments. while the
sumounding mangrove ecosystem conifbutes fo the orec’s envilonmenial significonce, The
region’s prodmity fo mojor roods ond indusidal 20nes enhances occessibility, moking it an
attroctive choice Tor businesses, Mowever, sustainoble ubon planning & cruciol o protect the
mongroves and mifigate rsks like coastal lieoding or sea-evel rise, enswing long-term viabiity for
bath residential and commercial uses.

Forongi Cresk fo become a thriving orea, fhe developmen! of essentiol omenifies and
infrostructe dgnificantly enhancing s appeol. Educafional insfitutions, healihcare fociities,
retall oullets, and public fransport options are making the orea more atfractive for residents and
businesses alike, The notural beauty of the creek, combined with the potential for recreational
spoces and walerfron! developments, could creale a unique estyle deslination. Additionally,
relioble yfiites and o secure environment will ansure the long-term sustoinablity and Bveobilty of
the area. With thasa developments, Korongl Creek hos the potenficl fo become g vibranl, self-
sustained community and a prime location for bolh residential ond commencial investmeant,

The Mangroves Project in Korangl Cresk, initiated by TPL & a visdonary development aimed at
crealing o unique blend of residenfiol, commerncial, and lelsure spoces within the area’s jush
comsicl environment, Set ogoinst the bockdrop of fhe creek’s fich mongrove ecosystemn, the
project aims 1o offer o sustainable ond eco-endly Bving experdence, inlegraling modem
amenifies while preserving the noturol sumoundings. This miked-use development emphasizes
green spoces, enswning the protection and reslorafion of the mangrove haobilol while providing
houry residences. office spoces, and recreafionol focilifies. By priomlidng envionmental
sustoinabiity clongside wrbaon development, TPL B working o rarsform Korongl Creek inlo o
vibrant, nolure-integrated communily, oppealing fo both nvestons ond residents seeldng o
balanced lifestyle neor the woterfront.

ATE Relf Mo MYES TBAT I 21024 Poge Ho: 10 of 26°
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VALUATION REPORT OF OPEN COMMERCIAL LAND
LOCATED AT DEH DIH, TAPPO IBRAHIM HYDERI, TALUKA KORANGI CREEK, KARACHI EAST
TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-I

Locaficn and Roads fo Connect TPL REIT Fund-1:

The undar evaluated land s sumounded by mangroves on the side focing ihe waoter and fhe
other sides sumounded by Creek industial Pork, Universifies ond other howsing schemes, the site
<an be occessed from kamangl creek main road by passing through  Pokistan Refinery Road and
Salim Hobib University Rood, the locotion map i shown below:

The TPL RET Commerciol Piot b locoled opproot. 1.90 Kiometer dislonce from main komngi
Creek Rood and oround 1.50 Komaler dstonce from Cresk Visto through Mangroves.

MYE Bef Mo MYES1 TBET N 252024 Poge Mo: 11 of 26
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TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-1
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The Commercial Land i kocoted around 4.33 KBometer ditance from Bundie idand through
Mangroves and Sea Water,

The AmenifiesProjects situated in 3 Klometer surmounding rodius of under evaluated commerncial
plot has shown in fhe above piciuna.
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VALUATION REFORT OF OPEN COMMERCIAL LAND
LOCATED AT DEH DIH, TAPPO IBRAHIM HYDER], TALUKA KORANGI| CREEK, KARACHI EAST
TFL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-I

“DESCRIFTION OF LAND™

Approoch
Tolal Area:

Main Rood [ ]

Side Road [1]

40, Acres |As per Documents)

150 9001: 2015 GMS

insice Rood [ ]

Our assessmant of 40,00 Acre Land based on FAR (1:8), and Circulafion area i 40% of the FAR
fhe lond Is further divided info eight cotegores of sub divided Plols as per delols provided by TPL
RIET Monagemen! Company Limited os foliowing:

Descripfion Area In 5q Yds No of Plols
Plot No C- 10,201.00 [
Foinocz 15500 2
| Piot No C-3 12,392.00 P —
| Piot No C-4 530000 o
[ Piot Mo C-5 591000 ! |
| Piot Mo C-6 B8,344.00 [
Piot No P8 a 5.528.00 ! ,
'lP'lu'anFa 959500 | 1 i

MYE Red Nod MY 784711272024

Poge Ma: 13 of 24

W
N

Half Yearly Report December 2024



W
W

Half Yearly Report December 2024

Report and Valuation of Commercial Property owned by
National Management and Consultancy Services (Private)
Limited

VALUATION REPORT OF OPEN COMMERCIAL LAND
LOCATED AT DEH DIH, TAPPO IBRAHIM HYDER!, TALUKA KORANGI CREEK, KARACHI EAST
TFL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-|

= COSTAPPROACH METHOD;

The Cost Approoch for property voluafion estimales the value by colculating the cos! 1o reploce
or reproduce the property's improvemants ond odjusting for depreciation, while separately
determining fhe lond value. I 5 especioly useful for new or unique properties, whemre
comporoble marke! dalo may be scoros. The mathod involves estimafing the lond value,
colculaling fthe replocement or reproduction cost of the building, opplving depreciation lor
physical wear and obsolescence, ond combining fthese volues, Whie it B effecfive for
spacigiized properfies, iis limilafions include cholenges in occurately estimating depreciafion
and itz folue fo occount for morket demand, making It less suiloble for clder or income-
producing properties.

The Cost Approach Method

Understanding the concept Identifying the correct land
f depreciation value

lAccurately estimating the Considering the market
lcost of construction demand
MYE Rl No: MYES1 7857/ 272024 Poge No: 14 of 24
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LOCATED AT DEH DIH, TAPPO IBRAHIM HYDERI, TALUKA KORANGI CREEK, KARACHI EAST
TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL RE FUND-|

+ SALE COMPARAISION APPROACH

The Sale Comparison Approach [SCA) 5 o method used fo esfimate the value af commercial
land by analyzing recent sokes of smilar properties. This approach involves gathedng data on
comparable properfies, odiusling for diferances such os localion, size, and foning, ond desiving
a value estimote bosed on these comparisons. it s widsly used due to'ils markel-based nature,
simpicity, and fronsparency. However, it eflectiveness relies on the avallabiity o! sullobie
comparables and the accurocy of adjusiments. While the method works weall in acfive morkets,
fts imitafions inciude potentiol subjecfivity in odiustmenis ond market Ructuofions. which can
affect the final Volue.

Analyzing Similar Properties for Appraisal

Identify the subject
property
" - = il

Finalize the appraisal \v

MY Riaf Moz MYES I TEET/ 1272024 Poge No: 15 of 26
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National Management and Consultancy Services (Private)
Limited

VALUATION REFORT OF OPEN COMMERCIAL LAND
LOCATED AT DEH DIH, TAPPO IBRAHIM HYDERI, TALUKA KORANGI CREEK, KARACHI EAST
TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-1

CALCULATION OF LAND:
TPL RE Taluko Korangi Creek land & of the prime real estate [ooation. The developmeni

in sumounding areg is very fast and becoming the prominent residenfial cum commercial
hub of Korochi

At presant, the cost ol the land of this and oround this area has become atfroclive and
observed between the monge of PKR. 7500000 To PKR. 20500000 Per Squore Yard
depending upon he Titks, locaotlion, porametern. size and FAR (138} ond crculalion area &
40% of FAR of the Lond. Therelore, we are toling the lond volue Per Squore Yord
according to locafion of plol on Smior poromeiens ot unden

Description I!l.rr:::: sq FKE'*.F:;I 5 No ol #loh ﬂn'.r*v:r.':JF:ﬂlh.u:' In

Piol Mo C-1 | 1020100| 200.000.00 | i 2.040.200,000.00

Piol No C-2 | 1215500 20000000] 2 | 526200000000

Piot No C-3 1239200 |  200.000.00 1 _2,478.400,000.00

PiotNo C-4 | 530000 ) 20500000 o | 1026500000000

Plol Mo C-5 | 351000 205,000.00 1 1.211.550,000.00

Picl Mo C-4 | 834400| 20500000 1| 171052000000

Piot ho PR | 55800 75000001 1 414,600,000.00

Piot No P8 | es9spo|  7s00000] 1 749,625,000.00

GRAND TOTAL 24 731 89500000

Tolal Assessment of Land: PKR. 24,731,895,000.00
[Rupees Twenly-Four Billon Seven Hundred Thirly.One Millon Bght Hundred and Ninety-Five
Thousand Only)
CWIPF Amount: FER. 3,628,321,040.00
Rupees Three Bilion Six Hundred Twenty-Eight Milion Three Hundred Twenly-One Thousand
and Forty Only)
Net Present Value: PER. 28,340.216,040.00
Rupees Twenty-Eight Blion Three Hundred Sixty Milion Two Hundred Sixteen Thousand and
Farty Only)

cmnwmmv o neovicls tonabie cribun. s v cne X e Adac the salean
daig 0 we cannol comment on CWIP Amount,

KK Rl Mo MYES I TBAT/ 1 25004 Pogs No: 14 of 24



Report and Valuation of Commercial Property owned by
National Management and Consultancy Services (Private)
Limited
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VALUATION REPORT OF OPEN COMMERCIAL LAND
LOCATED AT DEH DIH, TAPPO IBRAHIM HYDERI, TALUKA KORANG! CREEK, KARACHI EAST
TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-I

DETERMINATION OF FORCED SALE VALUE:

In order o determine the Forced Sale Volue of the Lond, all the foctors including the natunad
and physical condifion of the Land, infrastruchure in the nesghborhood oreo, locofion, and,
avalobity of services theren. Furfher, e Govemmment's utume developrment meosunes 1o
boost the commercial ocliviies, reabiity In retum of investrmeant in short ferm or long term basis
are ako faken inlo considerafion o delermine ihe Forced Sale Value [F5V).

- Lorw and ofcler sifuation of the aea.

. Prewvailing markeal conditions for real estale.

. PFroperty buying and selfling oclivifles in the city.
. Availability of prospective buyers.

- The Cument economic situafion of the country.
. Prasant govemment policies ond political environmsent,
forced Sale Valve (Less 207%): PKR. 22,488,172,832.00

(Rupees Twenty-Two Billon Six Hundred Eighty-Eight Million One Hundred Seventy-Two
Thousand Elght Hundred and Thiry-Twe Only)

MYE Rel No: MYES1 78467/ 1 22024 Poge Mo: 17 of 24
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Report and Valuation of Commercial Property owned by
National Management and Consultancy Services (Private)
Limited
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150 #001: 2015 GMS

VALUATION REPORT OF OPEN COMMERCIAL LAND
LOCATED AT DEH DIiH. TAPPO IBRAHIM HYDERL TALUKA KORANGI CREEK, KARACHI EAST
TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-I

RE v

wm mmwmmhlmmm
.._!he..nbﬁm_m f!ﬂ._é,l‘: M&Lﬁwﬁ
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Report and Valuation of Commercial Property owned by
National Management and Consultancy Services (Private)
Limited

@, MYK

150 $007: 2015 QM3

VALUATION REPORT OF OPEN COMMERCIAL LAND
LOCATED AT DEH DIH, TAPPO IBRAHIM HYDERL, TALUKA KORANGI CREEK, KARACH! EAST
TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-I

CONCLUSION:

We have camied out delaled survey and inspection of “Open Commercial Land®. This
proposed RENT Project Land of TPL situated at Flots Survey Nos: 29571, 294/1, 298/1, 29%, 300 and
301, located al Deh Dih, Tappo xohim Hyder, Taluka Korangi Creek, Karachi East for valuation
vicks REIT Pegulations-2015 and amendmenls-2018 & 2022,

VALUE OF THE WHOLE

VALUATION APPROACH  COMMERCIAL LAND VALUE IN WORDS

{in round Rguiet)

(PER-Mililons)
Sale Approach Value + | 20.360 Rupees lwenry-bigh' dson Inee
cwir Hundred Sty MiBon,
Cost Approach Value - Hat Applicoble
Force Sale Value [Less 22 488 | Rupees Twenly-Two Blion Six
20%) | | Hundred Eighfy-Eigh! Mifion.

Applicable Approach: Sales Comparison Approach V] Cost Approach | |

This is o preliminary voluafion report and ow valualion & for the purpose of lesling the
reazonableness of FV of IP 1o be disclosed os per FRS 13, In fhis report o foir market valuation of
Lond deternined conafully fo the best of owr obiity and knowiledge. This lond being the
commercial land as per the detals provided by M/s. TPL RET Management Company Umited &
TPL REIT Fund-1.

Tharafore. evaluation repor! raflects our findings at the ploce menfioned therein and to the
dafe and fime of s inspeciion. Our asesment & computed with the osumption of market
varabies which influenced the voive ond That moy vary vnexpectediy fime 1o time. In ths
report we have evaluated the cost of said Open Commercial Land on the assumption of that it
& free from any kevies and encumbrances imespective of any nature in file or othenwise, Our
physicod aoppraisal 5 based on the informotion and dalo provided by the officials of the M/fs. TPL
REIT Monagament Cormpony Limited and occepied in good faith without any responsibliity. We
have comied out the erxercke of valuafion with due core ond diigence and cccording fo the
uwlations-2015, ammendment-2018 & 2072,

== MShodjeel Siddiqui
&, Sudwrying Engineer & Dvoluoiion G, Oparalion
MYE Rel Mo MYE/17887/1 272024 Page Ne: 19 of 256
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Report and Valuation of Commercial Property owned by
National Management and Consultancy Services (Private)
Limited

VALUATION REPORT OF OPEN COMMERCIAL LAND
LOCATED AT DEH DIH, TAPPO IBRAHIM HYDERI, TALUKA KORANG] CREEK, KARACHI EAST
TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-I

(VALUER DECLARATION]
DECLARATION

1. | Engr. Mubhommod Tougr, and the feam of MYE Associates (Pvl.] Umited comed out o
valualion of “Open Commercial Laond” bearing Survey Mos: 295/1, 296/1, 298/1, 299, 300
and 301, located at Deh Dih, Toppo brahim Hyded, Toluka Korongi Creek, Karochi East™
upon dedolls provided by MJs. TPL REIT Menogement Company Uimited (TPL RMC).. fo the
berst of my knowledge ond befief declare:

That an inspection of the Land was camed oul including voleation trenck and an analysis
of neighborhood daota the marke! value of the sublect Real Btate as on February 04, 2025
are o belonw:

VALUATION APPROACH

Rupees Twen by-Eight Billon Three

Sale Approach Value + CWIP | 28 340 R vigh

Cost Approach Valve = |votappicotle
; Rupess Twenly-Two billon 5
. Force Sale Value (Less 20%) 22,488 Hundired EBighty-Eight Milion, |

Applcabia Approoch: Soles Comparison Approoch [¥] Cost Approoch [ ]

. That the siotemanh of focl conlained in ihis repor ae inie ond comect.

. That | have nol withheld any nformafion.

. That | have no interes! in the Real Estale that i the sublect of this meport, and | have no

pasonal inferest or bias with respact o the porfies imvobeed,

5 That | hove not been isfructed sither by my company o the clent fo repot a
predeterninad value for the subject Real Edale.

4. That | am nefther o direcior nor an employes of fhe BMC and do nol hove any fincncial
injerasi “direct or indirect” in fha RMC.

7. Thal | have persanally inspectad the Real Eslale that s the subject of this repord.,

DES,ARED BY:
1

Ll B3

[Engr. arkmad Touqir
eving Efgineer & Evalualion|s)

WITNESSED BY:

[Muhammed Younus Khan}
Chiaf Execulive Officer (CEQ)
MYE Associates [Pvi) Lid, Eorochi.
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Limited

VALUATION REFORT OF OPEN COMMERCIAL LAND
TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-I
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VALUATION REPORT OF OPEN COMMERCIAL LAND
TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-1
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VALUATION REFORT OF OFEN COMMERCIAL LAND
TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-I
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Report and Valuation of Commercial Property owned by
National Management and Consultancy Services (Private)
Limited

VALUATION REPORT OF OPEN COMMERCIAL LAND
TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-1
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VALUATION REPORT OF OFEN COMMERCIAL LAND
TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-|
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Report and Valuation of Commercial Property owned by
National Management and Consultancy Services (Private)
Limited

VALUATION REFORT OF OPEN COMMERCIAL LAND
TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-I
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Report and Valuation of Commercial Property owned by
HKC (Private) Limited

MYK

150 P00 2015 QMmS

EVALUATION REPORT OF “COMMERCIAL PROPERTY"
(UNDER CONSTRUCTION ~ PROPOSED MULTI STOREY BUILDING)
TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LINMITED (TPL RMC) & TPL FUND-!
THE OPEN LAND TPL-REIT PROJECT (HOSHANG - 1) BEARING FLOT NO: 22,7
SURVEY NO. CL-7 ABDULLAH HAROON ROAD, KARACHI, PAKISTAN.

Submitted fo,

M/s TPLRMC & TPL REIT FUND-| Frepared By
TPL RENT, 20 Floce, Sky Tower - East Wing, Doimen City.
HC-3. Block 4, Abdul Satior Edhi Avenue. Cliffon, Korachi, MYK associates privare immeo
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Report and Valuation of Commercial Property owned by
HKC (Private) Limited

VALUATION REPORT OF COMMERCIAL LAND - PROPOSED MULTI STORY PROJECT
LOCATED AT ABDULLAH HAROON ROAD, KARACHI PAKISTAN.
TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-1
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Report and Valuation of Commercial Property owned by
HKC (Private) Limited

MYK ASSOCIATES PRIVATE LIMITED ®;$;';;;";;;‘;;}§

| Evaluations | Consulting Engineers | Collateral Management | Inspections
4 | Feasbility Analysis | Investment & Advisory | Clearing Forwarding & Logistics Agenu| e

VALUATION REPORT OF COMMERCIAL LAND - PROPOSED MULTI STORY PROJECT
LOCATED AT ABDULLAH HAROON ROAD, KARACH! PAKISTAN.
TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-I

MYE Relference No:

Date of Valualion Report:

COVERING PAGE OF REPORT

MYKS 17869/ 1272024

February 04, 2025

Date of Visit: Decamber 24, 2024
Date of Request Recelved:  Through Email on dated December 24, 2024
-lbquuhd By: M, Irmwrean Wl Hogue [Senior Finance Manages.TPL BMG)
Client Name: TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED £ TPL REIT FUND-I
Address of Fropery: The Project Siler (Land) bearing Plot Mo: 22/7, Survey No.CL-%,
Abdullah Haroon Rood. Karochi, Pakiston.
Appraized By: Team of MYK Associales Privale Limited
Ideniifed By: Team of TPL RET Monogement Campany Limited & TPL REIT Fund-i,
Custodian of the Land: Sindh Board of Revenue
Status of NOC (it any): Yes
Type of Property: Commercial Land Only
Properdy Ulilization: Fully Commercial || Under Construclion [v]  Fully Industrial | |
Type of Title: Commercial [As per Documents)
Sumoundings: Indusirial ond Commercial [] Fully Residenfial | |
Fully inclusirial | | Fully Commercial [ |
Residential cum Commescial []
FAR: 138 (As per Provided documents & Approvals]
Value of Land: PER. 3.427.650,000.00
Value of Bullding Skuciure: PR 1,547 250,000.00
Nel Assessed Value: PKR. 4,974,%00,000.00
Valuafion Basis: Sales Comparison Approach [1] Cost Approach [+]
HEAD OFFICE: MYK HOUSE, 52.A, Block 'B', Streat Mo, 5, Sindhi Muslim Cooparoiin Housing Secksty Karochi- 75400, Pakiian,
e Imy i saciatet.com " & indoay fll-_pﬁ.n;l:-c Lites. crary
Lk QML FAAALARAD QIRCT BLLTAN GFRCE CURANTALL ST
Hpaid W R Goees At 1ot T, T Plags. Setlresn Tl B, Maforar Chvas, P Y BN, Do S, Pt Oy, lnﬁnuhuumu
B Uk Tewe. Laban Taronn Gharond ol Wt Trwe Talatan] 5 Yot B, b Ly, Wian E
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Report and Valuation of Commercial Property owned by
HKC (Private) Limited

VALUATION REPORT OF COMMERCIAL LAND - PROPOSED MULTI STORY PROJECT
LOCATED AT ABDULLAH HAROON ROAD, KARACHI PAKISTAN.
TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-I

VALUATION INTIATIVE:

In accordonce with the provision of RET Regulofions-2015 and omendmenis - 2018 & 2022, M/s.
TPL REMT Manogement Compony Limited oppainted MYE Associotes Pyl Lid for valualion of
Cpen Commercial Lond os o PBA opproved "no Emit valuer”, The of TPL REIT Fund-1 Project Site
[Lond) baaring Flot Mo: 22/7, Survey Mo, CL-9, Abdulioh Horoen Rood, Earachi, Poklsian,

A team from M/ MYK Associates Private Limiled [comprising of the following olficials) visited
opan Lond for survey and inspection o compiete the assignment within the stipulaled fime.

= Engr. Muhammad Taugir
= Engr. Amir All

Meetings haid with the official frepresentofives) of TPL REIT Monogeman! Company Limited & TPL
RE FuncHl Detols & péonning informalion wens gathenad regarding this property. Therealter, an
extensive and defaied survey of open Lend were camed out with referenca to the data sharing,
documents and information provided by them at the fime of survey process.

MYE Rel No: MYES | 7847/ 1 272024 Poge Mot d ol 24



Report and Valuation of Commercial Property owned by
HKC (Private) Limited

VALUATION REPORT OF COMMERCIAL LAND - PROPOSED MULTI STORY PROJECT
LOCATED AT ABDULLAH HAROON ROAD, KARACHI PAKISTAN.
TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-I

MYK Associates Private Limited
(150 9001-2015 Accrediled)

Service Providers lo the Financlal, Business & Corporale Seclor
BRIEF INTRODUCTION OF VALUATOR:
MYE Associotes Privale Limited B on I50-9001-2015 occedied real estole voluater of
Pokiton. We ensure the valuofion of infemnafional standands o the safidoction of client
and as well of the concemad departments / Insfifulions. Upan achieving the
accrediialion, we are adherng to maintain the cuslomer requiremeants, establish client’s
trust and to enable the parficipation in continual improvement.
MYK hos been founded by M. Younas Khan FCA (England & Wales), Ex Couniry General
Maonoger, Deutsche Bank AG in Pakian. I was incorporated In Seplember 2000 and i
regiterad under the Pakiston Companies Ordinance 1984, As o prolessional Survey and
Evaluation company, MYK Associales [Pvl) Limited has over 14 years of experience of
conducting evalualion, impection and muccodam monagement  asignments, 1
provides services to the Financial and Private Sechor In Pakistan and & on the opproved
panel of Pokiston Banks Association. As o naficnwide company, our services comprise of
Valuations of Fied and Curen! Assels, Irspections of Hypolhecoted and Pledged Stock
and Colateral value (Muccodornoge) eic. We ore oo on the opproved ponal of MNEF)
and Modarba Association of Pakistan.,
Cwver the years, our voluafion assignmanis cover o wide spectum in consumer retall,
indusiriol, commerciol. agricultural and corporate porfiolios thot encompass Lond, Chdl
Structures, Tanks & Mochinery, commercial Civll Structures, hospiiob, residentiol properfies
as well s open plots both in runol and wiban aregs. We curently conduct inspections for
all the corporate and commearncial clients for different banks, Qur muccadam depariment
expertly monoges differant portiolios including secsonal crops, which include wheat, rics,
cotion, o= wel s ship breaking. molasses, athanol, sugor, edible o, and conola.
MYEs" Mission b to provide strategic counsel, creafive solutions and responsive senices in
a timely manner to the Financlol Sector. MYEs" vision s fo be recognized os o leader in
providing seamiess senvices through superior qualily ond commitmen as well as ochieving
opergfional  excelence, indshrydeoding clenfele sofsfoction ftheough  superior
perdormance.

MYE Rief No: MYES 1 7869/1202024 Poge MNo: 5 of 24
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Report and Valuation of Commercial Property owned by
HKC (Private) Limited

VALUATION REPORT OF COMMERCIAL LAND - PROPOSED MULTI STORY PROJECT
LOCATED AT ABDULLAH HAROON RDAD, KARACHI PAKISTAN,
TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-I

MYK Associates Private Limited

(150 #001-2015 Accrediled)
Service Providers lo the Financial, Business & Corporate Sector

BRIEF INTRODUCTION OF OWNER:

Mir. Muharmmad Younas Khan s the Charman and Chief Executive Officer of MYK Associates
[Fvl] Lid, o company regisiensd under the low of Pokision Companies Ordinance 1784 ond
incorpornoted Seplernber 2000, Mr. Khan has yeon of professional expedenca in the banking and
corporate sector combined and heads the MYK Group of Companies with other professicnals.
Fomerly Mr. Khan hos been the Country Generol Monoger of Deulsche Bank in Pokision, He hos
ol been on the Boord of Direclors for the O and Gas Developrment Company Limited
Lﬁibﬂj.mﬂmmmmad [MEL). twio of the lorgest companias in the Ol Secior of
shan.

A Charfersd Accounian! by Cluolificafion from Englond and Wales (FCA), Mr, Ehan Is a banker
by profession. He is also a Fellow of the Institule of Bankers in Pakision (BP), and the insfitute of
Charfered Accountants of Pakifan (ICAP). He & occredited with having completed his Masters
frarm fhe Uiniversity of Punjab. Mr. Khan & well reputed in the Banking and Corporate sector, local
business circles and he Govermnment of Pokiton,

OTHER POSITIONS HELD:
+ Presdent of the Overseas investors, Chamber of Commerce and Industry
Chairrnan of the Geman Business Councll [Koufmanngunda)
Chairman of the Pokistan Bonks® Association
Meamber of the Manoging Committes of Paoldsion Banis' Associafion
Member of the Manogemen! Asccofion of Pakistan
Member of the Rolary Club of Karachi Metropoliton
Member of the Pokistan German Business Forum

PREVIOUS POSITIONS HELD:

= Member of the Pokston investment Board [Resporsible for affrocting Foreign investment
in Poikision)

+  Member of tha Invesiment Councll of Pakistan

s Trustes al tha Karochi Port Trust

« Chaiman of the Banking and Finance Sub- Committee, for Overseas Investor Chomiber
ol Commerce and indusiry

= Member of the Monaging Commitiee of Ovenea investor Chamber of Commerce and
industry

+ Direcior of the Pakistan Fund [Foreign Cumency Equity Fund)

Hs managamen! feom ond ossocioles ame prolessionals with disfinguished  senior
managemant experience, in the mulfinational envilonment and In large corporations, boih
in Pokision and overneos,
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VALUATION REPORT OF COMMERCIAL LAND - PROPOSED MULTI STORY PROJECT
LOCATED AT ABDULLAH HARCON ROAD, KARACHI PAKISTAN.
TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-1

MYK Associates Private Limited
{150 7001-2015 Accrediled)
Service Providers o the Financial, Business & Corporale Sechor

ABOUT KEY PROFESSIONALS OF MYK ASSOCIATES PVT LTD:
SENIOR GENERAL MANAGER:

Engr. Mekhar Ahmed & o Prolessional Enginesr (PEC) and groduated from NED Univensity of Enginessing
ond lechnoiogy, Komchi and having vos! expesence of Power Genssafion, Tronsmission ond Difibufion
Syilem, He hos ocquired hraining from ABB ol Dubal, UAE. in Fower Confol Monogement and Astais
handing procedure. He also achieved legol quolificafion LL 8. LLM. and hoving experfse of Agreement
and Contracts wiiting as wel as lo lead the iegal leam on lechnicol matien fo resclve ihe disputed Bues
on Legol Forums and Courty. He ik fully conversant wih Power Generalion, Tronsmission and Disfribuion
Syslemn low and high volloge. He oho hos expedence in the Bield of chain upply, fuvel manogement and
umnaﬁwmﬁnhmsmhmmm.mhmdeadPﬁci
Superviian and to manoge |is completion within agreed fime and approved cost. He possesses full project
manogement knowledge and verfies fhe confoctor's work and perfarmance, ther bill of payments,
equipment supplies and i imlaliofions, He b well converant lo coordinale privale and public authoribes
and department o settie fhe Bees ond lo gel matier resobved.

¥ inSoly, he won engoged with K-Becinc. Korochi [Former KESC) in Power Ganenolion, Transmission
ond Ditrbufion Depottment and superveed he conshuction of GAd Stofions and Trorsmission
Lines,

¥ He Served in Riyadh Bechic [the then Saudi Consolidaled Eleclic Company) Rivadh, Soudi Aabia,
in their Power Generofion, Tronsmigsion ond Dabibulion Divisions. He estoblshed fhe modem
Confrol Cender o Confrad Extro High Volloge Power Supply and mannoged ihe inaining bo Enginesn
for SCADA sysiermn. Prepore fhe schedule 50 moinfoin fhe Brecken, Tronsiormen ond alther alied
equipment accordingly lo improve the performance,

< Anolyze fhe Syslem Foull ond prepored the maintenance scheme equipment and prepare the
schame for balonce Lood monogement System for Cental Region,

# He ssrved Slat lile insuronce Corporafion ol Polkision ond wos Heod of the Eleciical and
Mechonical Enginesring Deparfmen of #: Beal Eslole Division, He derved the modem system o
managed and confrol 1 onely He alio served o3 Heod of the Pemonne! ond Geneol
Administration Depodment of Siale Lle insumnce Corparafion

L HtlefredﬂubciEh-:ﬁcu:ﬂWulerﬁuﬂmdh;.DubcﬁmElﬂnmmunmmmu:lmunnged
thesr powsr Generofion, Tronumision and Dikibufion system on modem nes. He developed
mdmmmvmmu&hwwmwﬁ&mmw
o &00 £V syslerrs), Cormvension of GhAd Stafions and Transmiasion knes fom convenfional manual
eparalion system fo modem SCADA Conkol and SAP Jystem, He aclvales the redundont system
of Assels Manogement and Conlral Sytlem 1o modem syrlem ond mainfoined proper recond of of
capilal and consumable Rems of ol Power Housss, Grid Siafions, Tromsmission Lines, Distibulicn
Syslermn and ik offices.

AFFILLATIOMS:

Prodesional Engineer [FEC).

Masrrber IEEE [USA)Membe P Korochi
Membar [EF Eorochl Polision

Member IEEE [Poid

FEom
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Report and Valuation of Commercial Property owned by
HKC (Private) Limited

VALUATION REPORT OF COMMERCIAL LAND - PROPOSED MULTI STORY PROJECT
LOCATED AT ABDULLAH HAROON ROAD, KARACH! PAKISTAN.
TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-I

ABOUT CLENT:

TPL RENT Manogemant Company Limited [TPL RMC), established in 2019, i the leading
provider of REIT manogement ssrvices in Pakislan and & reguioted by the SECP. TPL RMC
B a 100% cwned subsidiory of TPL Properiles Limiled [TPLP) and wos estoblished to
copitalize on the sustainable real estote development and monagement experiise of its
porent comparny.

TPL RMC launched ifs first fund, RET Fund |, the Sustainable Development Fund, which 5 o
portfolio of divene real estate asset closes in Pakisfon, all targeting to ba LEED Cerfified.
The mision of the Fund & fo decorbonize Fokiston's cities through sustainoble ond
climate focused developments, suppaorting technology ecosysterns, herdfoge, and the
envionment. The projects oim fo uplil Bving stondonds ond oddress the shorffall In
commerciol ond resideniiol properies due fo ropid urboanizafion in Pokistan.

The Fund is Pakistan's first Sharoh Complant Sustainoble Development Impact REIT Fund.
It will oct = a cololyst for the couniry's economy ond B on opporfunily o invest in
sustoinoble ossels. seeking fo reap the benefits of Pokiston's real estale sector boom.

TPL RMC 5 commitied lo operafing with the highest levels of inlemational stondards;
integrity and odherss o the guideines sel oul by the Independant lnvestment
Committes, Advisory Boord, and Sharah Adviser fo ensure effective governance and
responsibie business proclices.

Major Projects Under TPL REIT FUND-I

e One Hoshang
One Hoshang will be Pokistan's first Gold LEED Cerlified residenfic! apartment
buiiding.
130year-cld heritage focods of the site 1o be prolecled lo preserve the herlfage
and promabe the culfune

=  Technology Park
he Technology Park will be the first of s kind Technology Free Zone in Pokistan,
equipped with best-incloss lechnology infrasiruciure fo support the growth of the
lech eco-sysiem ond lecd fo the profiferation of technology storfups.

e Mangrove
Mangrmove & a Master Flannad Community fo be developed over a land parcel
of 40 ocres on a watarron! locality. The project ovardooks and preserves fhe
exponsive 115 hectores of mongrove forest ond seafront, with wordd-class
amenifies ond o vaied colection of midyse Residenfial Apoartrment Towears,
Commercial Ofices, Serviced Aparimants, Holel, and Retol Spoces.

MYE Rel No: MYKS | TBEF/1 22024 Page No:8 of 24



Report and Valuation of Commercial Property owned by
HKC (Private) Limited

VALUATION REFORT OF COMMERCIAL LAND - PROPOSED MULTI STORY PROJECT
LOCATED AT ABDULLAH HARQON ROAD, KARACHI PAKISTAN.
TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-1

ASSIGNMENT

M/sTPL REIT Manogement Company Limited appointed “PBA approved no limit categeory
valuer of Panell o PaneHl" fo evaluale the property by the qualiied professional enginesrs
wha are registerad with Paklstan Enginesering Councll for the purposa of conducting valuation;
ensure that the valuotion methodology adopled in fine with best proclices prevalent in the
reol estate industy and  ensune the valualion comied out obleciively and independently of its
business or commercial relafionship and ksuonce of the declomfion by the compatent
enginear on ihe given format duly wilnessed by the CED of the valuer company in this
respect.

M/s TPL RET Monagement Company Limited & TPL RET FundH oppointed MYE Associates [Pvi)
Lirnited to evoluate fhe Open Commercial Land of TPL REN bearing Plot Mo: 22/7, Survey Mo, CL-
?.Abdullah Haroon Rood, Karochi, Pakdstarn,

This commercial land comprise an area of 2,539.00 square yards. The Datalls of commercial plat
and project break-up ore provided on poge Ne: 11-12,

MYE Rel Mo: MYKS T8/ 252024 Poge MHo: ? of 24
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Report and Valuation of Commercial Property owned by
HKC (Private) Limited

VALUATION REPORT OF COMMERCIAL LAND - PROPOSED MULTI STORY PROJECT
LOCATED AT ABDULLAH HAROON ROAD, KARACHI PAKISTAN.
TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-I

DETAILS ABOUT SURROUNDINGS AND ONE HOSHANG PROJECT:

Civil Lines Soddor, locoted in the central por of Korochi, B o well-esiabiished and highly
regarded residential and commercial locality. The areo & charocterired by a mb: of Britsh-am
archileciure, modem apartment buiidings, and upscole homes. The nelghbarhood enjoys a
prime locafion, with easy occess fo key commerciol, educafional, and heatthcare hubs of the
cily. inciuding Soddar, the Korochi Canfonment, ond nearby oreos e Boullon Markel and
Lioquatabad, The prasence of vorous government offices, educational instiulions, and cullural
landmarks adds 1o its oppeol, Streefs such as Civil Lines Rood and oreas ke Club Rood and
Shahroh-e-Foisal provide smooth conneciivity to the rest of the city. The presence of green
spaces and historical buldings confribules to the orea’s cesthetic value and desiabiiity. Civi
Lines Soddar oo boosis an eslablehed social infrastructuee with markels, reslaurants, and
thoppng areas, oiferng boih conveniencs ond a high slondond of iving.

In terms of real astate valuation, Civil Lines Soddar holds a sgnificont posifion due o fis caniral
location, historcal significance, and demand for both residentiol and commerdial properties,
The area offers a ronge of property types, including apartrments, bungalows, and office spoces,
catering o voriows demogrophics, from offuen! fomiies to business professionals. The wel-
maintoined infrastructure, Including relicbie ufilfies, roads, and securty, fudhear enhances ifs
attractivensss. As a resull, property values in Civil Lines Saddar lend to be higher than In many
ather ports of Korochi, with nofable oppreciation frends observed over recent vears. The area’s
procdmity fo mojor commerciol disticts ond upscole neighborhoock ke Cifton abo plays o
crucial roke in s sirong marest demond. However, focion such o3 the oge of some buildings
and the potential for redevelopment projects can influence property valees. Overoll, Clvil Lines
Soddor remains one of Karochis most soughl-afler locofions for investment, offering both
resdentiol comfort ond commencial potenticl,

ONE HOSHANG, locoted on Abdulich Horoon Rood in Cihvil Lines. Korochl B o premium
deveiopment offering lueury residential aportments. Situated In the heart of Civil Unes, a
historically significant and prestigious oreo, the project blends modern design with the rch
heritoge of its sumoundings. it b being construcied on o hertoge site, which adds bath cullunal
valus and unique archifeciural charm o the development. With iis state-of-the-art amenifias,
including 24/7 secirily, filness cenlers, ond dedicoled parking, ONE HOSHANG provides a
sophisficated iving and working enviranment, The project enjoys prime conneclivity 1o key
commencial and cultural hubs in Karochi, making It an atfroctive option for both residents and
investors, s strofegic location, high-quality construction, and polential for long-term capital
appreciation make it g voluable assat in the city's real estote market.

MYE Rel No: MYES | 78489/1 252024 Poge No: 10 of 24



Report and Valuation of Commercial Property owned by
HKC (Private) Limited
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VALUATION REPORT OF OPEN COMMERCIAL LAND
LOCATED AT DEH DIH, TAPPO IBRAHIM HYDERI, TALUKA KORANGI CREEK, KARACHI EAST
TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-I

* COST APPROACH METHOD:

The Cesl Approach for property valuotion estimates the value by calculoling the cost to replaca
o reproduce the property’s improvements and odjusfing for depreciation, while separafely
determining the land value. It & especiolly useful for new or unique properfiss, wheme
comporabie market doto may be scarce. The method involves estimaling the lond value,
caiculaling the replocemant or reproduction cost of the bullding, opphing depreciation for
physical wear ond obsolescence, ond combining these values. While it & effeclive for
specialized propedies, lis imitations include challenges In accunafely estimating depreciation
and its folure fo cccount for morket demond, malking it less suitable for older or income-
producing properties.

The Cost Approach Method

|understa nding the concept Identifying the correct land

of depreciation wvalue

Accurately estimating the / Considering the market

cost of construction " demand

MYE Ref Nod MYK/ 1 TBEF/1 22024 Poge Ho: 11 of 24
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Report and Valuation of Commercial Property owned by
HKC (Private) Limited

VALUATION REPORT OF OPEN COMMERCIAL LAND
LOCATED AT DEH DIH, TAPPO IBRAHIM HYDERI, TALUKA KORANGI CREEK, KARACHI EAST
TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED £ TPL REIT FUND-1

= SALE COMPARAISION APPROACH

The Sale Comparison Approach (3CA) B o method used fo estimate the value of commercial
land by analyzing recent soles of similor properties. This approoch invalves gatherng dafo on
comporoble properfies. odusting for diferences such os locafion, size, and 2oning, and derving
a volue estimate bosed on these comparisons, f s widely used due to its market-based nafure,
simpiicily, and fransporency. However, its effectiveness reies on the availobiity of suitable
comparables and the occurocy of adjustments. Whils the method works well in ocfive markets,
its bmitations include polentiol subjectivity in odiustrnants and market fluctuations, which can
affect the final Value.

Analyzing Similar Properties for Appraisal

Identify the subject
progerty

Finalize the appraisal \V

MYE Rel No: MYES I TBSR/ 1272024 Poge Mo: 12of 24



Report and Valuation of Commercial Property owned by
HKC (Private) Limited

VALUATION REFORT OF COMMERCIAL LAND - PROPOSED MULTI STORY PROJECT
LOCATED AT AEDULLAH HAROON ROAD, KARACH! PAKISTAN.
TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-I

“DESCRIPTION OF LAND"
Approoch; Main Road [« | Sice Rood [ ] inside Rood [ |
Tolal Areg: 2,539.00 Square Yards |As per Documents)

Our assessment of 2,537.00 square yorcs Land based on FAR [1:8). Al present, the cost ol tha
lond of this and arcund this area hos become atfroctive and observed betwean Ihe ronge of
PER. 1.00000000 To PKR. 1.500.00000 Per Souce Yord depanding uvpon the locafion,
poromeders, site and FAR (18] of fhe Lond. Therefore, we ore foking the lond valve PER
1.350,000.00 Per Squane Yard occcording fo locafion af plol on similar porameters os under

Areo In Sgq Yds Rale Persg Yds MYK Asseised Value

| Plot Mo 22/7 | 253900 | 135000000 | 3.427 450,000.00 |

i .
L Total Land Valve — | 3,427,650,000.00
Tolal Assessment of Land: PKR. 3.427,450,000.00
(Rupees Three Bilion Four Hundred Twenty-Seven Milllon Six Hundred and Fifty Thousand
Only)
MYE Resf Mo MYES | TES901 2/2024 Poge Moo 13 of 24
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Report and Valuation of Commercial Property owned by
HKC (Private) Limited
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VALUATION REPORT OF COMMERCIAL LAND - PROPOSED MULTI STORY PROJECT
LOCATED AT ABDULLAH HAROON ROAD, KARACHI PAKISTAN.
TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-1

DATA AND ASSUMPTION:
| Parficulars Units | Area
Land_ — [Sayd | 253932

Resideniiol Areaja) Sq.ft ' 109386
Commesrcial Areq (b |

MNet Covered area [c=a+b)
Circulafion & Services (d]

. | Gross Areal 5q.FI) TololArem
Three Bed 5031 14 B0.496
Four Bed 54594 I4 715
PentHouse 7.692 1 1 9692
Tolal Gross Residendial Area | 147,904
| Gross Areaf 5q.F1) | No. Unlts | Total Area
Showrooms HE T |2 | 6,542
Tolal Gross Commercial Area (sq.f) | £,542
MK Rest Mot MYES 1 TBES/ 1 272024 Foge Mo: 14.of 24



Report and Valuation of Commercial Property owned by
HKC (Private) Limited

VALUATION REPORT OF COMMERCIAL LAND - PROPOSED MULTI STORY PROJECT
LOCATED AT ABDULLAH HAROON ROAD, KARACHI PAKISTAN.
TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL RET FUND-1

CALCULATION OF BUILDING:
COST/SALES APPROACH

To omess the value of the Buillding in this area by survey the Real Estale Agents/Property
Deglers offices was camed out ond senfiment observed encouraging o build the high-
fise In fhis areq. Therelore, the highwse planning ond designing oclivifies with Consulting
Engineers and companies have stored ond the comsiruction amenged.,

Description Area ln Sq. Ft

| Basemant 2 285000 2500000 | 571,250,000,00
| Bosemant 1 | 285000 15mL _}‘_‘E}E.Eﬁ_mﬁ
" Ground fioor 22,850.00 18,000.00 411,300,000.00
LR I 1930000 | 1150000 | 221,950,000.00

GRAND TOTAL 1,547,250,000.00

Total Assessment of Bullding Structure: PKR. 1.547,250.,000.00
(Rupees One Billion Five Hundred Fory Seven Milllon Two Hundred and Filty
Thousand Only)
Grand Tobak: (Lond Value+ Buliding Structure Yalss) PKR. 4,974,900,000.00
{Rupees Four Billion Nine Hundred Seventy-Four Milllen and Nine Hundred Thousand
Only)
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Report and Valuation of Commercial Property owned by
HKC (Private) Limited

VALUATION REPORT OF COMMERCIAL LAND - PROPOSED MULTI STORY PROJECT
LOCATED AT ABDULLAH HAROON ROAD, KARACHI PAKISTAN.
TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-I

DETERMINATION QF FORCED SALE VALUE:

in order fo determine Ihe Forced Sake Value of the Land, all the foctors including fhe natural
and physical condliion of the Land, infrastructure in the neighborhood area, localion, and,
avaichlty of sarvices fherein, Further, fhe Govemment™s future developmen! meosures 1o
boost the commercial activifies, refiabillty in return of investment in short fem or long term basis
ore ako foken info consideration fo detarmine the Forced Sole Value (FEV).

- Low and order situafion of fhe area.

. Prevailing maorket conditions for real estate.

. Property buying and selling octivities in the city.

. Avallabiiity of prospective buyers.

. The Cument economic situafion of the couniry,

. Frasent govemment policles ond polifical envinonmant,

Forced Sole Vaolue (Less 20%): PKR. 3.979,920,000.00

(Rupees Three Billion Nine Hundred Seventy-Nine Milion Nine Hundred and Twenty
Thousand Only)

MYE Rl No: MYES 1 TBS7/1 22024 Poge Mo: 140l 24
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VALUATION REPORT OF COMMERCIAL LAND - PROPOSED MULTI STORY PROJECT
LOCATED AT ABDULLAH HAROON ROAD, KARACHI PAKISTAN,
TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-I
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Report and Valuation of Commercial Property owned by

HKC (Private) Limited
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MYE Red Mo MYE/ 17885/ 1272024

VALUATION REPORT OF COMMERCIAL LAND - PROPOSED MULTI STORY PROJECT
LOCATED AT ABDULLAH HAROON ROAD, KARACHI PAKISTAN.
TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-I

[VALUER DECLARATION)
DECLARATION

| Engr. Muhammod Tougi, and the feom of MYK Associates (Pvl) Limited camed out o
voluation of “Open Commercial Lond™ bearing Flol No: 22/7, Survey Mo, CL-9.Abduliah
Haroon Rood, Forochl, Pokslon.” upon detalls provided by M/s. TPL RENT Manogemeant
Company Umiled.. io the best of my knowiadge and beliaf deciore:

That an inspection of the Land was carmed out including valuation trends and an analysis
of neighborhood data the marke! vatue of the subject Real Bslate os on February 06, 2025
ore as below:

UE

a4 L

(PKR-MIllions)

Rupees Thres 88on and Four
Sale Approach Value (Land) 3427 ki —— _
Cost Approach Value o= Rupees Ono Biion ond Fve
(Structure) | Hunared Fory-oeven Milicn, |
B Rupess Four Billen and Hina
Total Value (Land+Structure) 4,974 Hundred SeveniFour Milon.
Rupeat Three Billkon and MNine
Force Sale Value (Less 205%) s ™ SavanhHi
Appficoble Approoch: Sales Comparison Approach [+] Cost Approach [+]

. That ihe stalemen's of foct containad in this repord are frue and comact,
. That | have nol withheld any information.
.. That | have no inlerest in the Real Bslole thal i the subject of this repord, ond | have no

penonal interest or bios with respect o the porfies involved.

. That | have nol been imirucied either by my compony o the dient o reporl o

predelemined volue for the subject Real Bsiole,

. That | am naither a director nor an emploves of the RMC and de nol have any financial

inferes! “direct or indirect” in the RMC.

- Thatl | hove personally inspecied the RBeal Stole thal s the subject of this report.

LARED BY:
TJ

i rmod Tougir)
eying i & Evaluation|(s)
WITHESSED BY:
{Muhammed Younus Khan)

Chie! Executive Officer (CEQ)
MYE Associates (Pvl) Lid, Korochi,

Page Mo: 1§ of 24



Report and Valuation of Commercial Property owned by
HKC (Private) Limited
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VALUATION REPORT OF COMMERCIAL LAND - PROPOSED MULTI STORY PROJECT
LOCATED AT ABDULLAH HARCON ROAD, KARACHI PAKISTAN.
TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LH.JI'IEB & TPL REIT FUND-I

CONCLUSION;

We have caried out defailed suvey and Inspection of "Open Commercial Land”. This i
proposed REIT Project Land of TPL silvated al Plot No: 22/7, Survey Mo, CL-9,Abdullah Haroon i
Rood, Karochi, Pakiston. for valualion vides PET Pequialions-2015 and amendments-2018 & |
022, |

VALUE OF THE WHOLE
COMMERCIAL LAND

YALUATION APPROACH VALUE IN WORDS

[ie row Bgures)
(PER-Milllons)

Az

Rupwte=y Thee Billon ond Four

(Land) Hundred Twenty-Seven Milion. |
Cost Approach Value | 1547 Rupesas One Bilian and Five |
(Shructure) Hundred Forly-seven Milion.
Tolal Value - e | Rupees Four Bilion and Nine ‘
(Lond+3ruchre) | Hundred Severnty-Four Miian,
Force Sale Volue Rupees Thres Bffion and Mine 1
i e ’ 3.497¢ Hundred Seventy-Nine Millon.

Applicoble Approoch: Sales Comparkson Approach [1] Cost Approach [V]

Tl'k'snp'el'rhwvﬂ.ﬂhww-puﬂwwvﬁmhnismmepumdmﬁnglha
regsonabileness of FV of IP to be disclosed as per IFRS 13, In this report o fair market valuation of
Lunddalsnﬁﬂmluﬂrlnlhebeﬂnlmﬂbmymﬂhwm. This land being the
commercial land as per the defails provided by M/s. TPL Reit Manogement Company Limited &
TPL RENT Fund-.

Therefore, evaluation report reflects our findings ot he ploce menfioned therein and 1o The
date and fime of its inspection. Our assessment B computed with the assumption of market
varobles which influenced the value and that may vary unexpectadly fime 1o fime. In fhis
report we have evaluoted he cost of sold Open Commerciol Land on the assumption of thal if
B s Fom any levies and encumbronces imespeciive ol any nalure in fitke or othersise. Our
physcol opproral & based on the inforrmafion and doto provided by the official of the Mis. TPL
Reit Monagement Company Limited and accepted in good faith without any responsibility. We
have camed out the exercise of valuation with due care ond diigence and occonding to the
IT Reguiations-201 5, ammendment-2018 & 2022,

r
i (el e
~TAu Tougir Syed Thal Razo. M. Shaorjee| SiGdiqul
5. Suevepng Engineer & Evoluation G- bvalualion L inspociion G.M, Dperafions
MYE Ral Mo: MYE/17889/12/2024 Poge Mo: 18 of 24
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VALUATION REPORT OF COMMERCIAL LAND - PROPOSED MULTI STORY PROJECT
TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-1
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VALUATION REPORT OF COMMERCIAL LAND - PROPOSED MULTI STORY PROJECT
TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-I
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Report and Valuation of Commercial Property owned by
HKC (Private) Limited
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VALUATION REPORT OF COMMERCIAL LAND - PROFOSED MULTI STORY PROJECT
TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-I
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VALUATION REFORT OF COMMERCIAL LAND - PROPOSED MULTI STORY PROJECT
TFL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-|
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VALUATION REFORT OF COMMERCIAL LAND - PROPOSED MULTI STORY PROJECT

TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-I
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EVALUATION REPORT OF *COMMERCIAL PROPERTY'
(OFEN COMMERCIAL LAND) ‘
TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED (TPL RMC) & TPL FUND-I
THE OFEN LAND TPL-RENT PRCJECT BEARING PLOT'S SURVEY NO: 25-
B.KORANGI! INDUSTRIAL AREA. QAYYUMABAD, DISTRICT KORANGI |
|

KARACHI, PAKISTAN,

M/s. TPL RMC & TPL REIT FUND-1 Frepared By
TFL REN, 20th Floor, Sky Tower - Emt Wing, Dolmean Cily,

HC-3, Block 4, Abdul Sathar Edhi Avenve, Clifion, Eorochl MYK ASSOCIATES PRIVATE LIMITED
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Report and Valuation of Commercial Property owned by
TPL Technology Zone Phase-1 (Private) Limited

VALUATION REFORT OF OFEN COMMERCIAL LAND
LOCATED AT KORANGI INDUSTRIAL AREA, GAYYUMABAD, DISTRICT KORANGI, KARACHIL
TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-1
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Report and Valuation of Commercial Property owned by
TPL Technology Zone Phase-1 (Private) Limited

AFFILIATED PARTNER

@Windmrh‘s

Bow Remitd Wabemam farengy
[T

MYK ASSOCIATES PRIVATE LIMITED

| Evaluations | Consulting Engineers | Collateral Management | Inspections |
4 | Feasiblity Analysis | Investment & Advisory | Clearing Forwarding & Logistics Agents |

VALUATION REPORT OF OPEN COMMERCIAL LAND
LOCATED AT KORANGI INDUSTRIAL AREA, QAYYUMABAD, DISTRICT KORANGI, KARACHI,
TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-1

MYK Relerence No:

COVERING PAGE OF REPORT

MYES17888/12 72024

Date of Valuation Repork:  February 06, 2025

Date of Visit: December 26, 2024

Dale of Reques! Recelved: Through Ermall on dated December 24, 2024

i!.quuhd By: Mr. Imran ul Hogue [Sanier Finonce Manager-1PL BMC]

Clienl Nome: TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMFPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-1

Address ol Property: The Project Stte [lond] bearing Piod Mo. 258. Located af
rorangi indusiiol Areo, Goyyumabad, District Komongi, Karochi,

Appraised By: Team of MYK Associates Private Umited

Identified By: Teom of TPL RENM Manogement Company Limited & TPL REIT Fund-|.

Cusledian of the Land: KD [Karochi Development autharily)

Status of NOC (If any): Yas

Type of Property: Open Commercial Lond

Property Uliizafion: Fully Commmercicl []  Yacant [¥]  Fully Indusirial [

Type of Title: Commercial (As per Documents)

Sumoundings: Inchusirial and Commercial [4] Fuilly Residential | |
Fully inclusiriod [ ] Fully Commercial | |
Resideniial cum Commercial []

FAR: I8 (A5 per Provided documents & Approvals)

Nel Valve of Land: PKR. 2.250,450,000.00

Valvation Basls: Sales Comparison Approach [V] Residual Value [V]

HEAD OFFICE: MYK HOUSE, 52-A, Block B, Street Mo, 5, Sindhi Muslim Cooperative Housing Sociesy Karechi- 75400, Fokision
(#9221 | 5P Gddi1-38
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Report and Valuation of Commercial Property owned by
TPL Technology Zone Phase-1 (Private) Limited
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VALUATION REPORT OF OPEN COMMERCIAL LAND
LOCATED AT KORANGI INDUSTRIAL AREA, GAYYUMABAD, DISTRICT KORANGI, KARACHL
TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-I

INITIATIVE:

In occordance with the provision of REIT Regulotions-2015 and amendments - 2018 & 2022, M/s.
TPL REM Monopement Company Limted aoppoinfed MYK Associotes Pyl Lid for voluation of
Open Commearcial Land as o PEA opproved "no firmdl values®, The of TPL REIT Fund-1 Project She
[Land) bearing Plot No. 25-8, Localed at Korangl industrial Area, Gayyumabod, Disfrict Korangal,
KarochL

A feam from Mis. MYE Associales Private Umited jcomprising of the following officiaks) visited
open Land for survey and inspeciion o complete the ossignment within the stipulated time.,

-~ EngriMuhommaod Tougir
= Engr. Amir Al

Meelings held with the official [represantatives) of TPL RET Management Company Limited & TPL
REIT Fund-. Detolls & plonning infermation were gathered mgarding this property. Tharsaller, an
exfensive and detalled survey of open Lond were corfied out with reference fo the provided
documents and information provided by them ot the fime of survey.

MYE Rl Mo MYES | TRSES 1 272024 Poge Mo: 4 of 23



Report and Valuation of Commercial Property owned by
TPL Technology Zone Phase-1 (Private) Limited

VALUATION REPORT OF OFEN COMMERCIAL LAND
LOCATED AT KORANG! INDUSTRIAL AREA, QAYYUMABAD, DISTRICT KORANGI, KARACHI
TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL RET FUND-|

MYK Assoclates Frivate Limited
(130 001-2015 Accrediled)
Service Providers Yo the Financlal, Business & Corporate Seclor
BRIEF INTRODUCTION OF VALUATOR:
MYE Associoles Privote Limited & on GO-%001-2015 occredited real esfale valuator of
Fokiston, We emnsure the valuation of infemotional stondords 1o fhe safisfoction of chent
and as wed af the concemed deparfments / instifulions. Upon ochieving the
accreditafion, we ore odhering fo mainfain the customer requirements, esfabish client's
frust and to enable the parficipafion in confinual improvement.
MYK has been founded by M. Younas Khan FCA [England & Wales), Ex Country General
Manoger, Deutsche Bank AG in Paiiton, If was incorporated in September 2000 and
regiterad under the Pakislon Companias Ordinanca 1984, As g professional Survey and
Evaluation company, MYE Associates [Pvl.) Limited has over 14 yeon of experience aof
conduciing evoluolion, inspaction ond muccodom manogemen! assignments, 0
provices services fo the Financial ond Private Secior in Pokiston and & on the approved
pansi of Pakistan Banks Association. As a nalionwide company, our services comgprise of
Valuations of Fixed and Cument Assels. inspections of Hypothacalad and Pledged Slock
and Colaterdl value (Muccodomoges| eic. We ore oo on the opproved panet of NBR
and Modarba Asscciation of Pakistan,
Owver the years, our valuofion assignments cover o wide spectrum in consumer retol,
inciusirial, commercial, egricultural and corporate portiolios that encompass Land, Civi
Struchures, Tanks & Mochinery, commerncial Chdl Structunes, haspitals. residenticl properfies
as well s open plats boih in rurgl ond urban areas. We cumantty conduct inspecfions for
all the corporate and commercial chenis for different banks. Cur muccodom deparment
expearly monoges different portfolios including seasonal crops, which include wheat, rice,
caitton, os wel s ship breaking, molosses, ethanol, sugor, edible o, ond conala,
MYEs' Mission bs to provide strategic counsel, creafive solutions and rmsporsive services in
a fimely manner to the Financial Sector. MYKs' vidlon ks to be recognized as a leoder in
providing seomiess services through superior quality and commitment as well os ochieving
opergfionol  excelence, indusiy-dsoding chenlels  sofisfocfion  through  superior
performance.

MAYE Rl Mo: MYES 1 TBARS 250024 Poge Ma: 5 of 23
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VALUATION REPORT OF OPEN COMMERCIAL LAND
LOCATED AT KORANGI INDUSTRIAL AREA, GAYYUMABAD, DISTRICT KORANGI, KARACHL.
TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-I

MYK Associates Private Limited

(150 $001-2015 Accredited)
Service Froviders to the Financlal, Business & Corporate Sector

BRIEF INTRODUCTION OF OWNER:

Mr. Muhammaod Younas Khan s the Choirman and Chief Executive Officer of MYK Associates
[Pvi.) Lid, o company registensd under the low of Pokision Companies Ordinance 1984 and
incorpongted Seplember 2000. Mr. Khon hos yeon of professional expedence in the banking and
corporale seclor combined and heads the MYE Group of Companles with other professicnals,
Formarly Mr. Khan has been the Couniry General Manager of Deulsche Bonk In Pakistan. He has
also been on the Board of Direclors for the Ol and Gos Development Comparny Limited
(OGDC), ond MNafional Refinery Limited [NRL), two of the largest companias in the Ol Secior of
Pokklan.

A Charlered Accouniant by Gualfication fram England and Wales [FCA), Mr. Ehan i a banker
by profession. He is also a Fellow of the institule of Bankers in Pakistan (IBP). and the institute of
Chartered Accouniants of Pakklan (ICAP). He B occredifed with hoving complated his Maslers
from fhe University of Funjab. Mr. Khan i well repuled in the Banking and Corporote sechor, local
business circles and the Govemment of Palkistan.

OTHER POSITIONS HELD:
« President of the Ovenseas investors, Chomber of Commernce and Indusiry
Chairman of the Geman Business Councll [Koufmannsnundes)
Chairmon of the Pokision Banks® Associafion
Member of the Managing Commities of Pokiston Bonks® Associofion
Memiber of fhe Manogement Associafion of Pokistan
Member of the Rotary Club of Korochi Metropalifan
Member of the Pokistan Gemnan Busines: Forum

Pltmnlli POSIMONS HELD:

Member of the Pokistan investmeni Board [Resporaibile for attraciing Foreign Invesiment
in Pakistan)

+  Memberof the Invesiment Councll of Pakistan

+ Trustes of the Karachi Port Trust

= Chaiman of the Banking and Finonce Sub- Committes, for Overseas investor Chamber
of Commernce and Inclustry

*  Mamber of the Managing Commities of Ovensos invesior Chamber of Commerce and
nchustry

» Director of the Pakistan Fund (Forsign Cumency Equity Fund)

Hs manogement feom ond ousocioles are prolessionols with disfinguished senior

management experience, in the mulfinafionol envilonment and in large comorations, both
in Pokiion ond oveansos.

MYE el No: MYKS 178488/ 1 272024 Poge Mo ol 23
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VALUATION REPORT OF OPEN COMMERCIAL LAND
LOCATED AT KORANGI INDUSTRIAL AREA, GAYYUMABAD, DISTRICT KORANGI, KARACHL.
TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED £ TPL REIT FUND-I

MYK Associates Private Limited
(50 $001-2015 Accredited)
Service Froviders Yo the Financial, Business & Corporate Sechor

ABOUT KEY PROFESSIONALS OF MYK ASSOCIATES PVT LTD:
SENIOR GENERAL MANAGER:

Engr. Mekhar Ahmed & o Profesional Enginess (PEC) and groduated from MED Unbversity of Enginearing
and Technaiogy, Eorochi ond having vort sxpedence of Power Generalion, Tronamision ond Distrbufion
Systern. He hos ocquined ioining from ABE of Dubal UAE, in Fower Confrol Manogement ond Assefs
handing procedune. He olso ochieved legol quofication LL. B, LLM. and having experdise of Agresment
and Confrocts wiiing o1 wel a3 fo leod the legal leam on technicol motien o resclve the dispuled wes
on Legal Forums and Courds, He B lully conversan! with Power Genemfion, Transmission and Disiibulion
Systern low and high volloge. He also has esperence in the Bisld of chain swpply. fvel manogement and
ofther cusliory mppies for Power Slofion o avoid lood shedding. He has vorl experance of Project
Supervision and fo manoge Il complation within ogreed fime and approved cosl. He posetses full project
managemant knowledge ond verfies the confroctor’s work and performance, ther bill of poyments,
equipment supplies and ity insfoliofions. He & wel conversan! lo coondinale private and public outhorifies
and depariment fo seiile the Bsues and ko gel malier reschved.
¥ InSioly, he won enQoged with K-Eleciic, Korochi [Former KESC) in Power Generalion. Trarsmision
and Dihibufion Department ond wpervied The consiuciion of Gid Staflons ond Tronsmission
Linas.

¥ He Served in Riyadh Begiic [ihe then Soudi Corsoldaled Eleckic Company) Riyadh, Soud) Armabia,
in ther Power Genenafion, Tromsmission ond Ditibufion Diviions. He estoblzhed fhe modem
Conial Cenler lo Confrol Exbo High Volloge Power Supply ond managed the fraining fo Engineen
for STADA syslem. Frepore fhe scheduls fo mainioin fhe Breokens, Tronsdormen and ofher alied
equipment cccordingly lo improve fhe pedomance.

< Analyme the Syslem Foult ond prepored the maintenance schems equipment and prepore the
cheme for balance Lood management System for Ceninol Region.

¢ He wmrved Siol Ule insuronce Corporafion of Pokiion and was Heod of the Beciical and
Machonicol Engineering Depariment of s RBeal Eale Division. He derved the modem syslem fo
managed and conkol s ossels. He obo served ot Heod ol the Pemonnel ond Generl
Adminztrafion Department of Siole Life Insurance Corpanalion,

¥ He served Dubal Beciric and Waler Authodly, Dubai IAE for mone than 10 yeon and manoged
fhetr power Genemfion, Tronsmision and Diekbulion wilem on modem lines. He developed
siroegy of ronsformation fror High Volloge systemn jo Exiro High Volloge System [Le. from 220 KV
o 400 £V systerma). Conmvemon of Gid Slafoms and Transrmsson ves fom convenfional manual
operation system 1o modem SCADA Coninod and SAP Syslem. He oclivaies the redundan! syslern
of Asseh Managemen! and Conlrol Systern to modarm wystem and mainloined proper recond of of
copital ond comumable ilers ol all Power Houses, Grid Stofions. Tronsmision Lines, Dhirbution
Systern and ik offices.

AFALLA
. Froleubonal Engnesr [FEC).

i Membsor EEE (LA JMamiber IEF Eanochi
i Memibsed EF Eorochi Pokision
. Manribae EEE {Pok)
MYE Red Mo MYES 786871 2/2024 Poge MHo: 7 of 23
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Report and Valuation of Commercial Property owned by
TPL Technology Zone Phase-1 (Private) Limited
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VALUATION REFORT OF OPEN COMMERCIAL LAND
LOCATED AT KORANGI INDUSTRIAL AREA, GAYYUMABAD, DISTRICT KORANGI, KARACHL.
TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-I

ABOUT CLIENT;

TPL REM Manogement Company Limited [TPL RMC), estobished in 2019, & the leading
provider of REM manogemeni services in Polkiston and i regulated by the SECP. TPL RMC
5 o 100% owned subsidiary of TPL Properfies Limiled (TPLP) and waos established o
copilaize on the sustainable recl estote development ond manogement axpertise of s
parent company.

TPL RMC lounched is first fund, REIT Fund L the Sustainables Development Fund, which ks g
partialic of diverse real estote asset closses in Pakkian, all largeting fo be LEED Cariified.
The mision of the Fund b lo decarbonbke Pokistan's cities through sustainable and
climate focused developments, supporfing fechnology ecosysterns, hedtoge, and the
environment, The projects am fo uplift kving stondonds ond oddress the shortfall in
commercial and residenfiol properiles due fo ropid urbankzafion in Pokktan,

The Fund is Pakistan's fist Shardah Compllant Susioinable Development Impact REIT Fund.
It will oct as o catalyst for the country's economy and is an opportunity fo inves! in
susioinable assels, seeking lo recp the benefils of Pokision’s real esfafe sector boam.

TPL RMC & commilied fo oparofing with the highes! levels of inlemalional standards,
infegrly and odherss to the guideines set ocut by the Independent Investrment
Committes, Advsory Board, and Shariah Advisor fo ensure effective govemance and
responsible business prochices.

Major Projects Under TPL REIT FUND-1

- One Hoshang
One Hoshang will be Pokistan's first Gold LEED Certified residential opartment
biiding.
130yearcld herloge logode of the site 1o be prolected lo preserve The heritage
and promote fhe culfune

- Technology Park
he Technology Fark will be the first of its kind Technology Free Zone in Pakistan,
equipped with best-in-class lechnology infrastructure to suppor the growih of the
fech eco-sysiem and leod to the profiferation of technology starfups.

- Mangrove
Mangrove i o Master Planned Community fo be developed over a land porcsl
of 40 ocres on o waterdront locaity, The project overdooks and presarves fhe
expansive 115 hectares of mangrove fores! ond seafront, with  world-closs
aomenifies and o varded collection of midyse Residentiol Apartment Towers,
Commercial Offices, Senviced Aportments. Hotel, and Retal Spoces.

MYE Rel No: MYES | 7TBA8/ 1272024 Poge Mo B ol 23
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VALUATION REPORT OF OPEN COMMERCIAL LAND
LOCATED AT KORANGI INDUSTRIAL AREA, QAYYUMABAD, DISTRICT KORANGI, KARACHI,
TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-

ASSIGNMENT

M5, TPL RET Mancgemeant Company Limited appainted “PaA approved no limit cotegory
valuer of PaneH or Panell® fo evaoluate the property by the qualified prafessional engineers
whe are registered with Pakistan Engineening Council for the purpose of conducting valuation;
ensure that the valuation meﬂ'-udcmgyudophdhhemihbenpmcﬁm:nmnrhlhe
real estate industry ond  ensure fhe valuation camed out ohjectively and independently of iis
business or commercial relafionsnip and Esuance of e decloration by the competen
erugins-:ar on the given formal duly withesed by the CEQ of the vaoluer company n fhis
respect.

M/s TPL REIT Monogement Company Limited & TPL REIT Funcid oppoiniad MYK Asscciates [Pvi)
Uimited to evaluale the Open Commerciol Land of TPL REN bearing Flol Mo, 258, Located af
Kofangl industrial Area, Gayyumabad, District Korangl, Karachl,

This commercial lond comprise an area of 1000200 square yords. The commercial plol ks
d&mcmadwmde*chmmﬁrmmmmn.

MYE Rel No: MY TBAR/ 1272024 Poge Mo: § ol 23
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Report and Valuation of Commercial Property owned by
TPL Technology Zone Phase-1 (Private) Limited

VALUATION REPORT OF OFEN COMMERCIAL LAND
LOCATED AT KORANGI INDUSTRIAL AREA, GAYYUMABAD, DISTRICT KORANGI, KARACHL
TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-1

DETAILS ABOUT SURROUNDINGS AND TECHNOLOGY FARK PROJECT:

Qayyumabad, in Karachi. ks an incregsingly notoble residential and commercial locallty that has
seen significant developmant over the past few yeors. The orea benefits from its strategic
position, offering convenient occess fo key parts ol the city vio major roods such as the MT.
Khan Rood, Komongi Rood, and the Nalional Highway. The proxdrmilly fo the KPT Interchangs, a
creciol node connecfing diferent ports of Korochi, hurther anhances the area’s connectivity,
making A easily ocoesible from the city center, indusiriol zones, and the port. The locality has o
mibe of resiclentiol properfies, including opartment bulidings and independent houses, as wall os
commercial properties sening businesses ronging from refoll ouflets fo offices. Over fime, the
area has atfrocted on increasing number of investons due o iy relafively locaofion senving os
patekeaper o locolifies ke Korongl or Defence. Addifionally, Qayyumabod benefits from a
well-developed sockl infrostrectore, with schook, hospitols, morkety, ond mosques nearby,
which odd value for prospeciive buyers or tenants,

The: Technology Poark, set o ba initiofed by TPL Real Estofe investment Manogement Company
(TPL RMC), & a groundbreaking development oimed of fostedng innovation, lechnology, and
business growih in Karochi. As part of the TPL REIT Fund |, this siate-of-the-ort fociiity s designed fo
provide a modem, fully equipped envimnment for tech compaonies, storfups, and research
insfitutions. The Technology Park will feature odvanced infrastructure, high-speed intemet, and
cutling-adge amenities lallored fo the needs of the technology and innovation seclon. It s
strategically localed in one of Korochils emerging commercial zones, ensuning eose of occess
for businesses, empioyeas, and clents alice. The devslopmesnt will olfer flesdbile office spoces, co-
working environments, and research lobs, catering 1o vorous types of enterprises, rom lech
gianis o growing siarfups. With the growing demand for fechnckogy-driven solufions and
inrovation in Pakistan, this pork B polked o become a hub for crealivily and entreprsneushio,
providing aon ecosystemn where compaonies can colaborabe, scale, and thrive. In addition fo
offering premium office spoces, fne project will abo focus on creafing o sustainable, green
environman!, integrafing eco-endly fechnologies ond designs, moking It an attractive
destination for bath national and infernafional fech firms. The esiobishmeant of the Technology
Park i part of TPL's broader vision to contribute o Pokistan's fechnological growth and creale
an ervironment thal nurfures high-lech buwsiness ventumes, seffing the stoge for long-tem
econamic growth and ofirocting foreign investment inlo fhe country’s ropidly evolving fech
lonchcopes.

MYTE. Rel No: MY/ | TESES 272024 Page Nao: 10 of 23
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VALUATION REPORT OF OFEN COMMERCIAL LAND
LOCATED AT KORANGI INDUSTRIAL AREA, QAYYUMABAD, DISTRICT KORANGI, KARACHL
TFL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-I

“DESCRIPTION OF LAND"
Approoch Moin Road |+ ] Side Rood [] Insicle Rood | |
Tolal Area: 10,002.00 Square Yards (As per Documeants)

Chr assessment of 10.002.00 square yards Lond based on FAR [17) assumed, below are the
detalls provided by TPL RIET Manogement Company Limited [TPL RMC) os following:

Description Area in 5q Yds No of Flots Lease able acrea

Piot No. 258 | 10.002.00 i

MYE Rel No: MYES 7868/12/2024 Popge Mo: 11 ol 23
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VALUATION REPORT OF OPEN COMMERCIAL LAND
LOCATED AT KORANGI INDUSTRIAL AREA, GAYYUMABAD, DISTRICT KORANGI, KARACHL
TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-I

» COST APFROACH METHOD:

The Cost Approach for propery valuafion estimates the volue by calculating The cost 1o reploce
or reproduce the property's improvements and odiusting lor depreciation, while separately
determining the land value. I & especiolly useful for new or unique properfies, where
comparabls marke! cato may be scorce. The method involves esfimafing the lond value,
coiculating the replocemsant or reproduction cost of the bullding, applying depreciation for
physical wear ond obsolescence, and combining these volues, While |t & effeclive for
specialized properfies, its imitations include challenges in occurately esfimating depreciation
and ifs fofure o cccount for morket demand, moking It less witobie for cider or Income-
producing properfies.

The Cost Approach Method

Understanding the concept Identifying the correct land
of depreciation valus
Accurately estimating the Considering the market
cost of construction “demand
MYE Ral No: MYES] TBASS 1 2/2024 Poge Mo 120 23
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TPL Technology Zone Phase-1 (Private) Limited

VALUATION REFORT OF OPEN COMMERCIAL LAND
LOCATED AT KORANG! INDUSTRIAL AREA, QAYYUMABAD, DISTRICT KORANGI, KARACHI.
TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-1

= SALE COMPARAISION APPROACH

The Sole Comparisan Approoch [3CA] B a method used fo estimate the vaive of commarcial
wmummmfmmmmmwhmmlm dala on
comporobie properfies, mmmmm@mmmmm ond derbving
a vaolue estimate based on these comparisons. It & widely used due o It market-based nalure,
simpdicity, and frarsparency. However, ils effeclivensess relies on the availabiity of suitoble
comparables and the accuracy of adjustments. Whilke the method works wes in oclive markets,

its limitafions include polenfial subjectivity in odiustments and manke! luctuations. which can
affact the final Valve.

Analyzing Similar Properties for Appraisal

Identify the subject
sopet \
\

Make adjustments L_.r_----'

Determine a value range \“
Finalize the appraisal \v
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TPL Technology Zone Phase-1 (Private) Limited

VALUATION REPORT OF OPEN COMMERCIAL LAND
LOCATED AT KORANGI INDUSTRIAL AREA, QAYYUMABAD, DISTRICT KORANGI, KARACHL
TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-1

CALCULATION OF LAND:

TFL REIT District Korangl Gayyumaobod lond i of the pime real asiafe localion. The
devaiopment in surounding orea & very last and becoming the prominent residential
cum commercial hwb of Karachi,

Al presanl, the cost of the lond of thie and around this orea has become atfroctive and
cbhserved betwesn The ronge of PRR. 220,000.00 To PER. 230,000.00 Per Squam Yord
depending upon the location, parometers, size and FAR [1:8], of the Land. Tharslone, we
ares taking the land vaite PKR. 22500000 Per Square Yard according fo location ol piot
on similar parameaters as under;

Descriplion Area In 5q Yda PER Per 5g Yds Assessed Value In PER
Plot Mo, 25-8

GRAND TOTAL 2,250 450.000.00

Total Assessment of Land: PKR. 2,250.450,000.00
(Rupees Two Billlon Two Hundred Fifty Millon Four Hundred and Filty Thousand
Only)
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VALUATION REPORT OF OPEN COMMERCIAL LAND
LOCATED AT KORANG! INDUSTRIAL AREA, GAYYUMABAD, DISTRICT KORANGI, KARACHL,
TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-I

DETERMINATION OF FORCED SALE VALUE:

In order 1o determine the Forced Sale Value of the Land, all the foctors including the natural
and physical condition of the Land, infrostruciure in the neighborhood area, lecation, and,
ovolabity of services fherein, Furfher, the Government's fulure deveiopmeni meosures fo
bocst the commercial octivifies, reliability in ratun of investment In shart term or long term bask
are oo laken Into considerafion fo delemine the Forced Sale Value [F5V).

. Low and order shuafion of the aea.

. Frevaliing market conditions for real astate.

. Property buying and seling octivities in the city.
. Availabdity of prospective buyers.

. The Curent economic situafion of the country.
. Prasent govemment policies and palltical envilenment.
Forced Sale Valve [Less 20%%): PKR. 1,800,350,000.00

(Rupees One Billion Eight Hundred Million Three Hundred and sixty Thousand Only)
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TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-1
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l VALUATION REFORT OF OPEN COMMERCIAL LAND
LOCATED AT KORANG! INDUSTRIAL AREA, QAYYUMABAD, DISTRICT KORANGI, KARACHL
| TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-1
i

CONCLUSION:

| We have coried out detolled suvey ond lnspection of “Open Commercial Land”. This
proposed REM Project Land of TPL sifuated ol Plot Mo. 258, Locoled af Komngl Industdal Areaq,

| Qayyumabad, Distict Korangl, Karachl for voluation vides RET Regulafions2015 and
omendments-2018 & 2022,

| VALUE OF THE WHOLE
COMMERCIAL LAND

VALUATION APPROACH VALUE IN WORDS

| Rupees Two Billon Two Hundred Filly

Sale Approoch Valve f 2250 Wilion Cndy.

Cost Approach Value . Mot Applicable

Force Sale Value (Less 1 | Rupees One Billion Bight Hundred [
20%) i | Miicn Only. |

Applicable Approach: Sales Comparison Approach [+]

Ths & a preliminary valuation report and our valualion s lor the purpose of lesting the
reasonableness of FY of IP to be disclosed os per FRS 13, In this report @ foir morket valuation of
Lond defermined carefully fo the best of our obility ond inowledge. This lond being the
commercial land as per the detalls provided by M/fs. TPL REN Management Company Limited &
TPL REIT Fund-i.

Therefore, evaluation report reflects ouwr findings of the ploce menfionad therein and to the
date ond fime of iis impection. Our asesment 5 compuled with the asumplion of morket
voriobies which influenced fhe volue ond fhot may vory unexpectediy fime 1o fime. In this
report we have evaluoted the cost of soid Open Commercial Land an the assumption of thal it
is free from any levies and encumbrances mespective of any naluwe in fille or othenwise, Our
piysical approisal b bosed on fhe information and dato provided by the afficiols of the M/s. TPL
HEIT Monogement Company Limited ond occepled in good folth without any respomsibiity, We
hove comied cut the exercke of vabofion with due come and diigence ond according fo the
REIT Reguialions-201 5, ammendment-2018 & 2022,

MYE Red No: MYES1 78681 272024 Poge Mo 170l 23
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Report and Valuation of Commercial Property owned by

TPL Technology Zone Phase-1 (Private) Limited

.M‘I'K

150 9007: 2015 QMS

VALUATION REPORT OF OPEN COMMERCIAL LAND

LOCATED AT KORANGI INDUSTRIAL AREA. GAYYUMABAD, DISTRICT KORANGI, KARACHI

1.

TPL REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED & TPL REIT FUND-1

{VALUER DECLARATION]
DECLARATION

| Engr. Muhommad Tougir, and fhe team of MYE Associates [Pvl.) Limited comad out a
voluation of “Opan Commercial Lond” bearing Plot Mo, 25-8, Located at Korongl Indusirial
Area, Qoyyumabod, Distict Korangl, Korochi™ upon defols provided by MJs TPL REM
Managemen! Company Limited.. to fhe bast of my knowledge ond belet deciore:

Thot an inspection of the Lond was camed out including valuation frends and an analysis
of nesghborhood data the market valus of the subject Real Eslote os on December 26,
2024 gre a3 below:

VALUE IN WO

| Fupess Twa Blion Two Hundred
Sale Approach Volue 2250 | g ko Oy
Cosl Approoch Value - | Not Applicable
Fupess One Bifon Gght Hundred
F
L:r:u Sale Value (Less 207%) | 1.800 Milian Oy,

Applicable Approach: Sales Comparison Approach [v]

2. Tnot the stolements of foct confained in this report ore fnue and comect.
L
4. That | have no inlerest in the Real Estale that is the subiect af this report, and | have no

That | have not withheld any information.

personcd inferest or bios with respect 1o the parties involved,
That | have nol been inshucled elfher by my company or the clienl lo repod o
predelerminad value for the subject Reol Bslale.

. That | am neither o direcior nor on empioyes of the RMC and do not have any financial

intferest “direct or indirec!” in ha RMC,

. That | hove perscnally inspected the Real Eslale that is the subject of this repord.

WITHESSED BY:

[Muhomemed Younus Khan)
Chiel Execulive Officer (CEO)
MYE Associales [Pvi] Lid, Karachi,

MYE Rel Ho: MYES TB68/1 2/2024 Page to: 18 ol 23
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KPMG

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.

Charterad Accountants

Sheikh Sultan Trust Building No. 2, Beaumont Road
Karachi 75530 Pakistan

+82 (21) 37131900, Fax +92 (21) 35685095

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REVIEW REPORT
To the Unit Holders of TPL REIT Fund |
Report on Review of Unconsolidated Interim Financial Statements
Infroduction

We have reviewed the accompanying unconsolidated condensed interim statement of assets and
liabilities of TPL REIT Fund I (the “Fund") as at 31 December 2024, and the related
unconsolidated condensed interim statement of profit or loss, unconsolidated condensed interim
statement of comprehensive income, unconsolidated condensed interim statement of changes in
unitholders' funds, unconsolidated condensed interim statement of cash flows, and notes to the
financial statements for the six-month period then ended (hereinafter referred to as "interim
financial statements"), Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
interim financial statements in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable
in Pakistan for interim financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on these
financial statements based on our review.

Scope of Review

We conducted our review in accordance with International Standard on Review Engagements
2410, "Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the
Entity". A review of interim financial statements consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons
responsible for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review
procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance
that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit.
Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

Conclusion

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the
accompanying interim financial statements are not prepared, in all material respects, in
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim
financial reporting.

O
N
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KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co

Other Matter

The figures of the unconsolidated condensed interim statement of profit or loss and
unconsolidated condensed interim statement of comprehensive income for the three months
ended 31 December 2024 have not been reviewed, and we do not express a conclusion thereon,

The engagement partner on the review resulting in this independent auditors’ review report is
Muhammad Taufig.

khw R (lme_b = !

Date: 26 February 2025 KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Karachi
UDIN: RR202410106PNIRXwpk.J



TPL REIT FUND - |
UNCONSOLIDATED CONDENSED INTERIM STATEMENT OF
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

31 December 30June
| 2024 | 2024
ASSETS (Un-audited) (Audited)
Note in'
Non-current assets (Rupees in 000)
Preliminary expenses and floatation costs 4 13,050 15,611
Security deposits 100 100
Investments 5 32,694,808 34,652,687
32,707,958 34,668,398
Current assets
Asset held for sale - Investment 6 2,920,085 -
Advances and prepayments 7 22,790 21,817
Due from related parties - unsecured 8 505,227 160,000
Bank balances 9 2,178 29,274
3,450,280 211,091
TOTAL ASSETS 36,158,238 34,879,489
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Payable to the REIT Management Company 10 2,148,162 2,042,240
Payable to the Trustee 11 3,525 3,812
Payable to the SECP 12 12,500 25,000
Due to related parties 13 435,639 -
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 10,744 7,911
2,610,570 2,078,963
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,610,570 2,078,963
NET ASSETS 33,547,668 32,800,526
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 14
(Number of units)
Unitsinissue 15 1,835,000,000 1,835,000,000
(Rupees per unit)
Net assets value per unit 18.28 17.87
REPRESENTED BY: (Rupeesin '000)
Total Unit holders' fund
Issued, subscribed and paid up units 18,350,000 18,350,000
Fair value reserve 18,934,893 17,972,687
Accumulated loss (3,737,225) (3,522,161)
33,547,668 32,800,526

The annexed notes 1 to 24 form an integral part of these unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements.

N el 2.7

CHIEF E*ECUTIVEbFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR




TPL REIT FUND - |

UNCONSOLIDATED CONDENSED INTERIM STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS (UNAUDITED)

Six months ended Three months ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2024 2023 2024 2023

Note ===m-mmmmmmmeemoeeeeeee (Rupeesin'000) ----===========nmmmmmmmmuue
CONTINUING OPERATION
INCOME
Unrealised gain onremeasurement of investments through profit or loss 5.4 921,136 10,315 941,099 62,943
Dividend income 17 235,000 125,000 105,000 -
Profit on deposits and loans 14,876 25,715 10,525 11,549
Totalincome 1,171,012 161,030 1,056,624 74,492
EXPENSES
Remuneration of the REIT Management Company 10.2 286,290 252,665 143,756 128,567
Performance fee of the REIT Management Company 10.3 131,848 - 131,848 -
Remuneration of the Trustee 11.1 7,634 6,738 3,833 3,429
SECP monitoring fee 12.1 12,500 12,500 6,250 6,250
Auditors remuneration 2,550 1,500 1,275 750
Legal and professional fee 4,464 9,321 3,482 5,982
Amortization of preliminary expenses and floatation costs 4 2,561 2,561 1,280 1,280
Fund rating fee 234 173 117 86
Listing fee 164 - 82 -
Share registrar fee 176 170 85 85
Bank and custody charges 581 128 294 63
Printing Charges 299 134 299 134
Total expenses 449,301 285,890 292,601 146,626
OPERATING PROFIT / (LOSS) 721,711 (124,860) 764,023 (72,134)
Financial charges 15,639 - 12,265 -
PROFIT / (LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD BEFORE TAXATION 706,072 (124,860) 751,758 (72,134)
Taxation 18 - - - -
PROFIT / (LOSS) FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 706,072 (124,860) 751,758 (72,134)
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Profit / (loss) from discontinued operations 5.4 41,070 (1,555) (909) (784)
PROFIT / (LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD 747,142 (126,415) 750,849 (72,918)

--------------------------- (Rupees) ===-===-=======mnmoouuoeee-
EARNING / (LOSS) PER UNIT - basic and diluted 0.41 (0.08) 0.41 (0.05)
EARNING / (LOSS) PER UNIT - FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 0.39 (0.08) 0.41 (0.05)
I I

The annexed notes 1 to 24 form an integral part of these unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements.

I it Tl 2.7

CHIEF E*ECUTIVEbFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR




TPL REIT FUND - |
UNCONSOLIDATED CONDENSED INTERIM STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (UNAUDITED)

Six months ended Three months ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2024 2023 2024 2023

----------------------------- (Rupeesin '000) ---===========mmmmmmmmmmaeeen

PROFIT / (LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD 747,142 (126,415) 750,849 (72,918)

Other comprehensive income for the period

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME / (LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD 747,142 (126,415) 750,849 (72,918)

The annexed notes 1 to 24 form an integral part of these unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements.

I it Tl 2.7

CHIEF E*ECUTIVEbFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR




TPL REIT FUND - |

UNCONSOLIDATED CONDENSED INTERIM STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN UNIT HOLDERS FUND (UNAUDITED)

Reserves
Capital reserve - Revenue
Issued, Fair value reserve -
subscribed and Total
aid up units reserve Accumulated
P P (Note 15) loss
------------------------ (Rupeesin '000) ----========-=o-mouuum-
Balance as at 30 June 2023 - Audited 14,975,000 17,407,959 (3,333,806) 29,049,153
Total comprehensive loss for the period - - (126,415) (126,415)
Issue of 337,500,000 units 3,375,000 - - 3,375,000
Reclassification adjustment for changes in fair
value of investments - 8,760 (8,760) -
Balance as at 31 December 2023 - Un-audited 18,350,000 17,416,719 (3,468,981) 32,297,738
Balance as at 30 June 2024 - Audited 18,350,000 17,972,687 (3,522,161) 32,800,526
Total comprehensive income for the period - - 747,142 747,142
Reclassification adjustment for changes in fair
value of investments 962,206 (962,206) -
Balance as at 31 December 2024 - Un-Audited 18,350,000 18,934,893 (3,737,225) 33,547,668

The annexed notes 1 to 24 form an integral part of these unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements.

I i TR

7.7

CHIEF E*ECUTIVEbFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

DIRECTOR




TPL REIT FUND - |
UNCONSOLIDATED CONDENSED INTERIM STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (UNAUDITED)

Six months ended
31 December 31 December

2024 | 2023
(Rupees in '000)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit / (loss) for the period before taxation 747,142 (126,415)

Adjustments:

Unrealised gain on remeasurement of investments through profit or loss (962,206) (8,760)

Amortization of preliminary expenses and floatation costs 2,561 2,561
(959,645) (6,199)

Changes in working capital:

Advances and prepayments (973) (1,369)
Due fromrelated parties - Unsecured (345,227) =
Payable to the REIT Management Company 105,922 (470,946)
Payable to the Trustee (287) 297
Payable to the SECP (12,500) (12,500)
Due to related parties - Unsecured 435,639 =
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 2,833 (1,175)
185,407 (485,693)
Net cash used in operating activities (27,096) (618,307)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Subscribed right shares of HKC - (175,000)
Advance against issuance of shares of SPV - (2,830,000)
Net cash used in investing activities - (3,005,000)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from issuance of units - 2,775,000
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (27,096) (848,307)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period 29,274 991,671
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period 2,178 143,364

The annexed notes 1 to 24 form an integral part of these unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements.

Pty Todir 2.

CHIEF E*ECUTIVEbFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR




TPL REIT FUND - |

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE UNCONSOLIDATED
CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1  THEFUND AND ITS OPERATIONS

TPL REIT FUND-I (the Fund) was established under a Trust Deed, dated 10 December 2021, executed between TPL REIT Management
Company as the Management Company and Digital Custodian Company (formerly MCB Financials Services Limited) as the Trustee
and is governed under the Real Estate Investment Trust Regulations, 2022 (REIT Regulations, 2022), promulgated and amended from
time to time by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

The Trust Deed of the Scheme was registered on 10 December 2021 whereas the Fund was authorised by the SECP as a unit trust
scheme on 23 December 2021.

The Fund was listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (PSX) with the approval of the SECP on 20 May, 2024 under the REIT
Regulations, 2022.

The Management Company of the Fund has been registered as Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC) under Non-Banking Finance
Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 (NBFC Rules) and has obtained the requisite license from the SECP to undertake
REIT Management Services. The registered office of the Management Company is situated at 20th Floor, Sky tower, East Wing, HC-
3, Block 4, Abdul Sattar Edhi Avenue, Clifton, Karachi, Pakistan.

The Fund is a perpetual close end, shariah compliant, hybrid scheme. All of the activities undertaken by the Scheme including but not
limited to deposits and placements with banks were allin accordance with principle of Shariah.

The principal activity of the Fund is investing in real estate projects through Special Purpose Vehicles (SPVs) in accordance with the
constitutive documents and applicable laws to generate income / returns for investors through rental income and capital appreciation.

As of 23rd December 2024 PACRA Credit Rating Company has assigned a rating of RFR 3+ (Stable Outlook) to the Fund.

As of 23rd December 2024 PACRA Credit Rating Company has assigned a rating of RM 3+ (Stable Outlook) to the REIT Management
Company Limited.

Title to the assets of the Fund are held in the name of Digital Custodian Company Limited as trustee of the Fund.

1.1 TheFund has the following related party relationships during the year:

Company Name Relationship Dﬁggg;:ﬁip I’Ser‘r:;r;]t:I%?n()gf
TPL REIT Management Company Limited Management Company (RMC) N/A -
TPL Investment Management Limited Subsidiary of RMC N/A -
HKC (Private) Limited Subsidiary Company N/A 94.92%
TPL Technology Zone Phase-I (Private) Limited Subsidiary Company (Held for sale) N/A 100%
National Management and Consultancy
Services (Private) Limited Subsidiary Company N/A 100%
TPL Properties Limited Associated Company N/A -
TPL Logistic Park (Private) Limited Associated Company of RMC N/A -
TPL Security Services (Private) Limited Associated Company of RMC N/A -
TPL Corp Limited Associated Company of RMC N/A -
TPL Holdings (Private) Limited Associated Company of RMC N/A -
TPL Property Management (Private) Limited Associated Company of RMC N/A -
TPL Developments (Private) Limited Associated Company of RMC N/A -
TPL Insurance Limited Associated Company of RMC N/A -
TPL Life Insurance Limited Associated Company of RMC N/A -
TPL Trakker Limited Associated Company of RMC N/A -
Key Management Personnel of RMC - N/A -

Digital Custodian Company Limited Trustee N/A -



TPL REIT FUND - |

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE UNCONSOLIDATED
CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

These unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements of the Fund have been prepared in accordance with the accounting
and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable
in Pakistan for interim financial reporting comprise of:

- International Accounting Standard (IAS) 34, Interim Financial Reporting issued by the International Accounting Standard Board
(IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 and Part V11| A of the repealed Companies Ordinance 1984;
and

- The Real Estate Investment Trust Regulations, 2022 (the REIT Regulations) and requirements of the Trust Deed.

Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, Part VIII A of the repealed Companies Ordinance,
1984, the REIT Regulations and requirements of the Trust Deed differ with the requirements of IAS 34, the provisions of and
directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, Part VIII A of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the REIT Regulations
and requirements of the Trust Deed have been followed.

Basis of measurement

These unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements have been prepared under the 'historical cost convention' except for
investments which are measured at fair value.

These unconsolidated condensed interim financial statement have been prepared in accordance with IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting.
They do not include all of the information required for a complete set of financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS
Accounting Standards. However, selected explanatory notes are included to explain events and transactions that are significant to
an understanding of the changes in the Fund's financial position and performance since the last annual financial statements.

The comparative statement of unconsolidated condensed interim financial position presented in these unconsolidated condensed
interim financial statements as at 31 December 2024 has been extracted from the audited financial statements of the Fund for the
year ended 30 June 2024, whereas the comparative unconsolidated condensed interim statement of profit or loss, unconsolidated
condensed interim statement of comprehensive income, unconsolidated condensed interim statement of changes in equity and
unconsolidated condensed interim statement of cash flows have been extracted from the unaudited unconsolidated condensed
interim financial statements of the Fund for the six months ended 31 December 2023.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees which is the Fund's functional and presentation currency. Allamounts are
rounded-off to nearest thousand rupees, unless otherwise stated.

Change in accounting standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting and reporting standards

a) Standards, interpretations of and amendments to the accounting and reporting standards that are effective in the current period:
There are certain new and amended standards, interpretations and amendments that are mandatory for the Fund's accounting
periods beginning on or after 01 July 2024 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant effect on the Fund's
operations and therefore, have not been stated in these unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements.

b) Standards, Interpretations and Amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet effective:

There are certain standards, interpretations, and amendments to published approved accounting standards that will be effective
for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025. However, these standards, interpretations, and amendments are



TPL REIT FUND - |

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE UNCONSOLIDATED
CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1

3.2

4.1

considered not to relevant or not likely to have a significant impact on the Fund's unconsolidated condensed interim financial
statements and, therefore, have not been stated in these statements

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES, ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS
Material accounting policies

The accounting policies adopted and the methods of computation of balances used in the preparation of these condensed interim
financial statements are the same as those applied in the preparation of the audited financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 30 June 2024 except for the accounting policy as disclosed below:

Assets held for sale -

Non-current assets are classified as held-for-sale if it is highly probable that they will be recovered primarily through sale rather than
through continuing use. Such assets are generally measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
However, the measurement of investments accounted for in accordance with IFRS 9 is not changed when they are classified as held-
for-sale. Impairment losses on initial classification as held-for-sale and subsequent gains and losses on remeasurement are recognised
in profit or loss.

Use of judgements and estimates

In preparing these unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements, management has made judgements and estimates that
affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expense. Actual results
may differ from these estimates. The significant judgements made by management in applying the Fund's accounting policies and
the key sources of estimation uncertainty were the same as those described in the annual audited financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2024.

31 December 30June
2024 2024
(Un-audited) (Audited)
PRELIMINARY EXPENSES AND FLOATATION COSTS Note (Rupees in '000)
Balance at the beginning of the period / year 15,611 20,734
Amortization during the period / year 4.1 (2,561) (5,123)

Balance at the end of the period / year 13,050 15,611

The Fund has recorded all expenses incurred in connection with the incorporation, registration, establishment and authorization of
the Fund as preliminary expenses and floatation costs which are to be amortized by the Fund over a period of five years effective from
24 June 2022, i.e., after the financial close of the fund in accordance with the Real Estate Investment Trust Regulations, 2022.

31 December 30June
2024
(Un-audited) (Audited)
INVESTMENTS Note (Rupeesin '000)
At Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
Investments in National Management and Consultancy Services (Private) Limited 5.1 29,555,918 28,675,225
Investments in HKC (Private) Limited 5.2 3,138,890 3,098,448
Investments in TPL Technology Zone Phase - 1 (Private) Limited 5.3 2,920,085 2,879,015
35,614,893 34,652,688
Less: Investment transferred to held for sale 6 (2,920,085) -
32,694,808 34,652,688




TPL REIT FUND - |

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE UNCONSOLIDATED
CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5.1

Investments in National Management and Consultancy Services (Private) Limited

Investment property at fair value

Short-terminvestments

Advances, prepayments and other receivables
Due from related party

Bank balances

Accrued liabilities and other payables

Due torelated party

Other assets less liabilities - net

Fair value as at end of the period / year

Less: cost of investment
Unrealised gain at the end of the period / year

Note

31 December 30June
2024 2024
(Un-audited) (Audited)
(Rupees in '000)

28,360,216 25,904,241
629,087 1,360,045
422,895 424,478

435,627 -
119,639 1,072,899
(110,294) (85,186)
(301,252) (1,252)
1,195,702 2,770,984
29,555,918 28,675,225
(11,630,000) (11,630,005)
17,925,918 17,045,225

5.1.1 This represents leasehold land parcel of 40 acres commercial property situated at Korangi Creek, Karachi which is under development.
This land is carried at revaluation basis and no depreciation is charged on it. As of 31 December 2024, MYK Associates the valuer of
the Company determined the fair value of the property at Rs. 28,360.2 million (30 June 2024 : Rs. 25,904.2 million). The valuation was
carried out on the basis of present market values for similar property in the vicinity of land and replacement values of similar type of

land based on present cost. The forced sale value of the investment property is assessed to be Rs. 22,688.17 million.

The investment property has been valued by external, independent property valuers, having appropriate recognised professional

qualification and recent experience in the location and category of the property being valued

The fair value measurement for the investment property has been categorised as a Level 3 fair value based on the inputs to the

valuation technique used.

5.1.2 These include the short term investments carried at FVTPL classified at level 2 in fair value hierarchy, cash and cash equivalent and
short term liabilities where the time value of money impact is minimal hence are determined to be at fair value.

5.2

Investments in HKC (Private) Limited

Fair value of property under construction
Advances, prepayments and other receivables
Bank balances

Trade and other payables

Current maturity of long-term financing
Contract liabilities

Due to related parties

Accrued mark-up

Other assets less liabilities - net
Fair value as at end of the period / year

Fair value of 94.92% (30 June 2024: 94.92%) shareholding
Less: cost ofinvestments
Unrealised gain at the end of the period / year

Total Investments in HKC (Private) Limited
Fair value of 94.92% (30 June 2024: 94.92%) shareholding

Note

5.2.2

31 December

2024

(Un-audited)

30June

2024
(Audited)

(Rupeesin '000)

4,974,900
29,451
11,486

(451,385)
(516,665)
(281,550)
(435,281)

(23,936)

3,138,890

788,890

3,138,890

(1,667,880)
3,307,020

(2,350,000)

3,138,890

4,729,433
20,191
6,651
(432,560)
(775,000)
(172,250)
(58,018)
(46,836)

(1,457,822)
3,271,611

3,098,448
(2,350,000)
748,448

3,098,448
3,098,448
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5.2.1 This represents a project of luxury residential apartments along with some retails space being constructed on a land parcel of 2,539
square yards of commercial property situated at corner of Abdullah Haroon Road and Hoshang Road, Karachi. As of 31 December
2024 MYK Associates (Pvt) Limited the independent valuer of the Fund determined the fair value of the property at Rs. 4,974.90 million
(30 June 2024: Rs. 4729.43 million). The valuation was carried out on the basis of present market values for similar property in the
vicinity of land and replacement values of similar type of land and based on present cost.

The forced sale value of the development property is assessed to be Rs. 3,979.92 million.

5.2.2 These include the cash and cash equivalent and bank loan (at KIBOR plus spread), short term trade payables and contract liabilities
where the time value of money impact is minimal hence are determined to be at fair value.

31 December 30June
2024
(Un-audited) (Audited)
5.3 Investments in TPL Technology Zone Phase - 1 (Private) Limited Note (Rupees in '000)

Investment property at fair value - 2,505,194
Asset held for sale - land 5.3.1 2,250,450 -
Bank balances 21,172 3,059
Advance to contractor - secured 539,000 539,000
Profit on bank receivable - 51
Advance tax 231 164
Due from related party 300,000 =
Accrued liabilities and other payables (15,925) (18,594)
Advance against sale of land (83,000) =
Due to related parties (91,843) (149,859)
Other assets less liabilities - net 5.3.3 669,635 373,821
Fair value as at end of the period / year 2,920,085 2,879,015
Less: cost ofinvestments (2,700,000) (2,700,000)
Unrealised gain at the end of the period / year 220,085 179,015

5.3.1 This represents leasehold land located in an Open Industrial Plot No. 25-B, measuring 10,002 square yards, situated at Sector 30,
Korangi Industrial Area, Karachi. This land is carried at revaluation basis and no depreciation is charged on it. As of 31 December 2024,
MYK Associates Private Limited the valuer of the Company determined the fair value of the property at Rs. 2,250.45 million (30 June
2024 :Rs. 2,505.19 million). The valuation was carried out on the basis of present market values for similar property in the vicinity of
land and replacement values of similar type of land based on present cost.

5.3.2 During the period, the Fund has obtained approval from the majority anchor investor for the disposal of the sole land recorded in the
books of TPL Technology Zone Phase 1 (Private) Limited (The Company). As of 30th December 2024, the Company entered into a
sale agreement with the buyer for the disposal of land and the same is expected to be disposed of by the end of June 2025.

5.3.3 These include the cash and cash equivalent and advance to contractor and short term trade payables where the time value of money

impact is minimal hence are determined to be at fair value.

31 December

2024

31 December

2024
(Un-audited) (Un-audited)
5.4 Unrealised gain on remeasurement of investments through profit or loss Note (Rupees in '000)
Fair value at the end of the period / year 35,614,893 34,096,719
Less: cost of investments (16,680,000) (16,680,000)
Total fair value gain as at the reporting date 18,934,893 17,416,719
Unrealized gain at the beginning of the period / year (17,416,719) (17,407,959)
Unrealized gain during the period / year 1,518,174 8,760
Unrealized (gain) / loss on discontinued operation 6 (41,070) 1,555
Unrealized gain on continuing operation 1,477,104 10,315
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6.1

7.1

8.1

8.2

9.1

31 December 30June
2024 2024
(Un-audited) (Audited)
ASSETHELD FOR SALE - INVESTMENT Note (Rupees in '000)

Investments in TPL Technology Zone Phase - 1 (Private) Limited 6.1 2,920,085

During the period, the Fund has obtained approval from the majority anchor investor for the disposal of the sole land recorded in the
books of TPL Technology Zone Phase 1 (TTZ). As of 30th December 2024, the TTZ entered into a sale agreement with the buyer for
the disposal of land and the same is expected to be disposed of by the end of June 2025. Following the disposal of the land, the TTZ
will be wound up as approved by the majority anchor investors. Accordingly, the financial statements of the TTZ have not been
prepared on going concern basis. Therefore, Investmentin the TTZ has been classified as under current asset.

31 December 30June
2024
(Un-audited) (Audited)
ADVANCES AND PREPAYMENTS Note (Rupeesin '000)
Advance Tax 7.1 21,627 21,627
Prepayments 1,163 190
22,790 21,817
I

The income of the Fund is exempt from tax under clause 99 of Part | of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (ITO
2001). Further, the Fund is exempt under clause 47(B) of Part IV of Second Schedule to the ITO 2001 from withholding of tax under
section 150, 151 and 233 of ITO 2001. The Federal Board of Revenue through a circular “C.No.1 (43) DG (WHT)/ 2008-Vol.ll- 66417-
R” dated May 12, 2015 made it mandatory to obtain exemption certificates under section 159 (1) of the ITO 2001 from Commissioner
Inland Revenue (CIR). Prior to receiving tax exemption certificate(s) from CIR various withholding agents have deducted advance tax
under section 150, 150A and 151 of ITO 2001.

31 December 30June
2024 2024
(Un-audited) (Audited)
DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES - UNSECURED Note (Rupees in '000)

TPL Technology Zone Phase - | (Private) Limited 8.1 90,000 122,000
HKC (Private) Limited 8.2 415,227 38,000
505,227 160,000

This represents payments made by TPL REIT Fund 1 on behalf of TPL Technology Zone Phase - | (Private) Limited.

This includes short-term loan extended for development purposes, carrying a profit rate ranging from 11% to 15.99% per annum.

31 December 30June
2024 2024
(Un-audited) (Audited)
BANK BALANCES Note (Rupees in '000)

Balances with banks in:

Current account 9
Savings account 9.1 29,265
29,274

This represents saving accounts carrying profit ranging from 11.20% to 17.75% per annum (30 June 2024: 11.00% to 20.75%).
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31 December 30June

2024 2024

(Un-audited) (Audited)

10 PAYABLE TO THE REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY Note (Rupeesin '000)
Preliminary expenses, floatation costs and other payable 10.1 16,720 26,720
Management fee payable 10.2 143,758 139,758
Performance fee payable 10.3 1,987,684 1,875,762

2,148,162 2,042,240

10.1 This represents amount incurred by the REIT Management Company relating to the formation of the Fund.

10.2 Under the provisions of the REIT Regulations, 2022, a REIT Management Company is entitled to a management fee which shall be
stated in the Information Memorandum. As per the Information Memorandum of the Fund, the REIT Management Company is entitled
to an annual management fee calculated at 1.5% per annum on the net assets of the Fund. The management fee is also subjected to
Sindh sales tax at the rate of 15%. The fee is paid quarterly in arrears.

31 December 30June

2024 2024

(Un-audited) (Audited)

10.3 Performance fee payable Note (Rupees in '000)
Performance fee payable at the end of accelerator period 10.3.2 1,948,130 1,855,836
Performance fee payable after the close of each accounting period - 39,555 19,926

10.3.1 1,987,684 1,875,762

10.3.1 The Fund has classified the total amount of performance fee payable as current as it does not have a contractual and legally enforceable
right to defer payment once the payment conditions have been met.

10.3.2 Under the provisions of the REIT Regulations, 2022, a REIT Management Company is entitled to a performance fee which shall be
stated in the Information Memorandum. As per the Information Memorandum of the Fund, the REIT Management Company is entitled
to performance as follows:

a) 15%charged onthe year-on-yearincreasein the NAV of the Fund over a High Watermark, calculated at the end of each accounting
period; and

b) 15% of the profit on sale of real estate assets and/or sale/winding up of SPV.

The Fund will pay 30% of the performance fee due to the REIT Management Company in arrears after the close of each accounting
period and accrue the remaining 70% to be paid at the end of the accelerator period.

Accelerator Period” means the period starting at Financial Close and ending on the first dividend distribution to the Unit Holders by
the Fund or listing of the Fund, whichever is later.

The performance fee is also subjected to Sindh sales tax at the rate of 15%.

31 December 30June

2024 2024

(Un-audited) (Audited)

11 PAYABLE TO THE TRUSTEE Note (Rupees in '000)
Trustee fee payable 111 3,469 3,728
Share registrar fee payable 56 84

3,525 3,812
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11.1 Under the provisions of the REIT Regulations, 2022, a Trustee is entitled to a trustee fee which shall be stated in the Information
Memorandum. As per the Information Memorandum of the Fund, the Trustee is entitled to an annual fee calculated at 0.04% on the
annual net assets of the Fund. The trustee fee is also subjected to Sindh sales tax at the rate of 15%. The fee is paid quarterly in arrears.

31 December 30June
2024 2024
(Un-audited) (Audited)
Note (Rupeesin '000)

12 PAYABLE TO THE SECP

Annual fee payable 12.1 12,500 25,000

12.1 Under the provisions of the REIT Regulations, 2022, the Fund is required to pay annual monitoring fee to SECP equal to 0.15% of the
average fund size per annum. The annual monitoring fee is capped at Rs. 25 million per annum except in the first year. The fee shall
be paid in arrears within four months of close of accounting year.

31 December 30June
2024 2024
(Un-audited) (Audited)
13 DUE TORELATED PARTIES - UNSECURED Note (Rupeesin '000)

National Management and Consultancy Services (Private) Limited
Loanincluding markup 13.1 435,639 -
435,639 -

13.1 This represents loan obtained from the subsidiary company amounting to Rs. 400 million. This carries profit at the rate cut-of yield
of latest 1 year GOP ljara Sukuk auction, ranging between 11% to 15.99% per annum,

14 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

There are no material contingencies and commitments outstanding as at 31 December 2024 (30 June 2024: nil).

15 UNITSINISSUE

31 December 30 June 31 December 30 June
2024 2024 2024
(Un-audited) (Audited) (Un-audited) (Audited)
(Number of units) Ordinary units of Rs. 10 each fully paid Note (Rupees in '000)
consideration other than cash

710,000,000 710,000,000 (against equity shares) 7,100,000 7,100,000
1,125,000,000 1,125,000,000 consideration other than cash 11,250,000 11,250,000

1,835,000,000 1,835,000,000 15.1&15.2 18,350,000 18,350,000

15.1 Votingrights, board selection, right of first refusal and block voting are in proportion to their respective unit holding.

| 31 December 2024 | 30 June 2024
Percentage Number of Percentage Number of
15.2 Pattern of Unit Holding (%) units held (%) units held
TPL Properties Limited (Strategic Investor) 38% 697,598,500 38% 697,598,500
Anchor Investors 60% 1,105,351,000 60% 1,105,351,000
Others - including individuals 2% 32,050,500 2% 32,050,500
100% 1,835,000,000 100% 1,835,000,000
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16

17

17.1

18

19

FAIR VALUE RESERVE

The fair value reserve pertains to cumulative net changes in fair value of investment which is not free for distribution by way of dividend
in accordance with the constitutive document of the Fund and hence the unrealised gain on remeasurement of investments through
profit or loss is reclassified to fair value reserve.

31 December 30June
2024 2024
(Un-audited) (Audited)
DIVIDEND INCOME Note (Rupeesin '000)

National Management and Consultancy Services (Private) Limited 17.1 235,000 125,000

This represents the dividend income received during the period from the subsidiary company of the Fund.
TAXATION

The Fund's income is exempt from income tax as per clause 99 of Part 1 of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001,
subject to the condition that not less than 90 percent of its accounting income for the year, as reduced by the capital gains whether
realised or unrealised, is distributed to the unit holders.

The Fund is also exempt from the provision of section 113 (minimum tax) under clause 11A of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

During the current year the Fund have incurred accounting loss when the net income is reduced by capital gains (whether realised or
unrealised), therefore there is no distributable income for the current year.

TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH CONNECTED PERSONS / RELATED PARTIES

Connected persons / related parties include TPL REIT Management Company Limited being the Management Company, Digital
Custodian Company Limited, being the Trustee of the Fund, directors and officers of the Management Company and other associated
companies within the Group.

Transactions with connected persons are in the normal course of business, at agreed / contracted rates and terms determined in
accordance with market rates and the Trust Deed respectively.

Remuneration payable to Management Company and Trustee is determined in accordance with the provisions of the REIT Regulations,
2022.

Details of significant transactions with connected persons during the period and balances with them at period end, if not disclosed
elsewhere in these unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements are as follows:

Six months period ended
31 December

2024 2023

(Un-audited) (Un-audited)
(Rupees in '000)

TPL REIT Management Company Limited
Remuneration of the REIT Management Company 286,290 252,665

Performance fee of the REIT Management Company 131,848 -
Payments made to the REIT Management Company 312,216 723,610
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Six months period ended
31 December

2024 2023

(Un-audited) (Un-audited)
(Rupees in '000)

Digital Custodian Company Limited - Trustee

Remuneration of the Trustee 7,634 6,738
Share registrar fee 176 170
Payments made to the Trustee 8,097 6,611

HKC (Private) Limited - Subsidiary of the Fund

Cash payment as advance against issuance of units - 175,000
Short-term loan extended to subsidiary 364,000 -
Profit charged on the loan 13,227 -

National Management And Consultancy Services (Private) Limited - Subsidiary of the Fund

Cash payment as advance against issuance of units - 2,830,000
Dividend received © 235,000 125,000
Loanreceived T 420,000 -
Profit charged on the loan w -
TPL Technology Zone - Phase 1 (Private) Limited - Subsidiary of the Fund
Loan repayments received 32,000

I

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. Consequently, differences can arise between carrying values and the fair value estimates.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm's length basis.

IFRS 13, 'Fair Value Measurements' requires the Fund to classify fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that
is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices).

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs).

The Fund uses valuation technique which are developed from recognised valuation models under IFRS 13. The significant inputs into
these model may not be observable in the market and derived from the market prices or rates or are estimated based on assumptions.
Valuation models that employ significant unobservable inputs require a higher degree of management judgement and estimation in
the determination of fair value. Management judgment and estimation are usually required for the selection of appropriate valuation
model to be used and selection of appropriate assumptions.
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Valuation Technique Significant unobservable Input Inter- relationship between key unobservable
input and fair value measurement

The adjusted net assets method - Fair value of property The estimated fair value of investment would increase /
Cost Approach (decrease) if there is any change in the Fair value of
property.

20.1 The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the
fair value hierarchy:
Fair value as at

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 31 December
2024
Note  ---------mmmmmmoooeeee (Rupeesin '000) ---=--=========mnmm-mmmm
Investments 20.1.1 - - 32,694,808 32,694,808

- - 32,694,808 32,694,808

Fair value as at
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 30 June
2024

Investments 20.1.1 - - 34,652,687 34,652,687
- - 34,652,687 34,652,687

20.1.1 The Fund uses 'the adjusted net assets value' technique for valuation of its investment in its subsidiaries categorised as level 3 in Fair
value hierarchy.

20.2 The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, not measured at fair value:

| 31 December 2024

Fair Value Fair value Financial Other
through other through assets at financial Total
comprehensive profit or loss amortised cost liabilities
income
Financial assets not measured =~ ==mmmmmmmmm oo (Rupees in '000) --=============m=mmmmmm oo
at fair value
Security deposit - - 100 - 100
Due from related parties - - 505,227 - 505,227
Bank balance - - 2,178 - 2,178
- - 507,505 - 507,505
Financial liabilities not measured
at fair value
Payable to the REIT Management
Company - - - 2,148,162 2,148,162
Payable to the Trustee - - - 3,525 3,525
Payable to the SECP - - - 12,500 12,500
Accured expenses and other liabilities - - - 10,744 10,744
Due torelated parties - - - 435,639 435,639
- - - 2,174,931 2,174,931
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

\ 30 June 2024
Fair Value Fair value Financial Other
through other through assets at financial Total
comprehensive profit or loss amortised cost liabilities
income
Financial assets not measured =~ ==mmmmmmmmme oo (Rupees in '000) --=============m=mmmmmm oo
at fair value
Security deposit - - 100 - 100
Bank balance - - 29,274 - 29,274
- - 189,374 - 189,374
Financial liabilities not measured
at fair value
Payable to the REIT Management
Company - - - 2,042,240 2,042,240
Payable to the Trustee - - - 3,812 3,812
Payable to the SECP - - - 25,000 25,000
Advance against issuance of units - - - - -
Accured expenses and other liabilities - - - 7,911 7,911
- - - 2,078,963 2,078,963

20.3 The Fund has not disclosed the fair value for these financial assets and financial liabilities as their carrying amounts are reasonable

21

22

23

24

approximation of fair value.
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Fund's financial risk management objectives and policies are consistent with those disclosed in the annual audited financial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2024.

RECLASSIFICATION

During the period ended 31 December, 2024, the Fund classified its investment in TPL Technology Zone Phase-I (Private) Limited as
a current asset under 'Asset held for sale - Investment,’ as disclosed in Note 6 of these unconsolidated condensed interim financial
statements. Based on this, a reclassification has been made in the corresponding figure of the unconsolidated condensed interim
statement of profit or loss to classify the unrealized loss on the held-for-sale investment as part of discontinued operations.
GENERAL

All amounts have been rounded off to nearest thousand rupees unless otherwise stated.

DATE OF AUTHORIZATION OF ISSUE

These unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements were authorized forissue on 17 February 2025 by the Board of Directors
of the TPL REIT Management Company Limited.
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CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED INTERIM STATEMENT OF ASSETS
AND LIABILITIES

31 December 30June
2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)
Note (Rupees in '000)
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Preliminary expenses and floatation costs 4 13,050 15,611
Security deposit 100 100
Investment properties 5 28,360,216 28,409,435
28,373,366 28,425,146
Current assets
Development property 7 4,747,197 4,553,882
Asset held for sale - Investment 8 2,250,450 =
Short term investments 9 629,086 1,360,045
Advances, prepayments and other receivables 10 1,014,366 1,005,701
Bank balances 11 154,474 1,111,884
8,795,572 8,031,512
TOTAL ASSETS 37,168,938 36,456,658
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Long-term financing 12 - -
Current liabilities
Payable to the REIT Management Company 13 2,165,111 2,056,694
Payable to the Trustee 14 3,525 3,812
Payable to the SECP 15 12,500 25,000
Advance against issuance of units = =
Accrued markup 12.1 23,936 46,836
Accrued expenses, trade payables and other liabilities 16 588,339 544,247
Contract liabilities 17 364,550 172,250
Current maturity of long-term financing 12 516,667 775,000
Due to related parties 18 6,200 34,676
3,680,828 3,658,515
TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,680,828 3,658,515
NET ASSETS 33,488,110 32,798,143
(Rupees in '000)
Unit holders' fund 33,339,821 32,649,732
Contingencies and commitments 21
(Number of units)
Unitsinissue 19 1,835,000,000 1,835,000,000
Net assets value per unit 18.16 17.79
REPRESENTED BY:
Unit holders of the Group
Issued, subscribed and paid up units 18,350,000 18,350,000
Fair value reserve 20 17,736,053 17,736,053
Accumulated loss (2,746,232) (3,436,321)
Non-controlling interest 148,289 148,411
33,488,110 32,798,143

The annexed notes 1 to 27 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED INTERIM STATEMENT OF PROFIT
OR LOSS (UNAUDITED)

Six months ended Three months ended
31 December 31December 31December 31December

2024 2023 2024 2023

INCOME Note (Rupees in '000) (Rupeesin '000)
Unrealised gain on revaluation of investment properties 948,134 - 948,134 -
Unrealised gain / (loss) on investments at fair value through profit or loss 12,808 133 6,958 (3,232)
Profit on bank deposits 44,950 119,428 8,892 54,068
Profit on GOP ijarah sukuks 81,076 36,148 29,009 19,001
Dividend income 20,148 5,012 3,435 2,576
Totalincome 1,107,116 160,721 996,428 72,413
EXPENSES
Management fee of the REIT Management Company 13.2 286,290 252,665 143,756 128,567
Performance fee of the REIT Management Company 13.3.2 131,848 = 131,848
Remuneration of the Trustee 14.1 7,634 6,738 3,833 3,429
SECP monitoring fee 15.1 12,500 12,500 6,250 6,250
Auditor's remuneration 8,150 6,450 3,725 3,225
Legal and professional fee 9,070 11,199 7,827 7,860
Amortisation of preliminary expenses and floatation costs 4.1 2,561 2,561 1,280 1,280
Fund rating fee 234 173 117 86
Share registrar fee 176 170 85 85
Bank and custody charges 873 254 586 74
Listing fee 164 = 82 -
Printing Charges 299 134 299 134
Misc. operating expenses 1,983 = 1,278
Total expenses 461,782 292,844 300,966 150,990
PROFIT / (LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 645,334 (132,123) 695,462 (78,577)
Taxation 22 - - - -
PROFIT / (LOSS) AFTER TAXATION 645,334 (132,123) 695,462 (78,577)
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Profit from discontinued operations 44,633 - 44,633 -
PROFIT / (LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD 689,967 (132,123) 740,095 (78,577)
PROFIT / (LOSS) ATTRBUTABLE TO:
Unit holders of the Group 690,089 (131,998) 740,149 (78,503)
Non-controlling interest (122) (125) (54) (74)
689,967 (132,123) 740,095 (78,577)
(Rupees) (Rupees)

PROFIT / (LOSS) PER UNIT - BASIC AND DILUTED (0.09) (0.05)

The annexed notes 1 to 27 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED INTERIM STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (UNAUDITED)

31 December 31 December

2024 2023

(Rupees in '000)

PROFIT / (LOSS) AFTER TAXATION ATTRIBUTABLE TO:

Unit holders of the Group 690,089 (131,998)
Non-controlling interest (122) (125)
689,967 (132,123)

Other comprehensive income for the period

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE PROFIT / (LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD 689,967 (132,123)

The annexed notes 1 to 27 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED INTERIM STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN UNIT HOLDERS FUND (UNAUDITED)

Attributable to Unit Holders of the Fund

Issued,
Subscribed and
paid up units
Balance as at 30 June 2023 14,975,000
Total comprehensive loss for the period -
Issue of 337,500,000 units 3,375,000
Reclassification adjustment for changes in fair
value of investments -
Balance as as at 31 December 2023 18,350,000

Reserves

Capital reserve -

Fair value
reserve
(Note 19)

17,232,693

8,760

17,241,453

Revenue Non-
reserve / Total Controlling
(Accumulated ota Interest
loss)
(3,261,321) 28,946,372 158,721
(131,998) (131,998) (125)
- 3,375,000
(8,760) -
(3,402,079) 32,189,374 158,596

Total

29,105,093

(132,123)

3,375,000

32,347,970

|
Balance as at 30 June 2024 18,350,000 17,736,053 (3,436,321) 32,649,732 148,411 32,798,143
Total comprehensive profit / (loss) for the period - - 690,089 690,089 (122) 689,967
Balance as at 31 December 2024 18,350,000 17,736,053 (2,746,232) 33,339,821 148,289 33,488,110

1

The annexed notes 1 to 27 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED INTERIM STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS (UNAUDITED)

31 December 31 December

2024 2023

(Rupees in '000)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before taxation 689,967 (132,123)
Adjustments for:
Unrealised gain on revaluation of investment properties (948,134) =
Profit from discontinued operations (44,633) =
Unrealised loss on investments at fair value through profit or loss (12,808) (133)
Dividend income (20,148) (5,012)
Amortisation of preliminary expenses and floatation costs 2,561 2,561
(1,023,162) (2,584)
Changesiin:
Additions to development property (193,316) (541,578)
Advances, prepayments and other receivables (8,665) (24,570)
Payable to the REIT Management Company 108,417 (470,944)
Payable to the Trustee (287) 297
Payable to the SECP (12,500) (12,500)
Accrued expenses, trade payables and other liabilities 44,092 152,045
Contract liabilities 192,300 -
Accrued markup (22,900) 1,875
Due to related parties (28,476) (3,172)
78,665 (898,547)
Net cash used in operating activities m (1,033,254)
CASHFLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to investment properties (1,208,463) (501,522)
Short term investments 743,767 (660,154)
Dividend received 20,148 5,012
Net cash used in investing activities (444,548) (1,156,664)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of long term loan (258,333) -
Issuance of units for cash consideration - 2,775,000
Net cash used in financing activities (258,333) 2,775,000
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (957,410) 585,082
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 1,111,884 2,450,664
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period 154,474 3,035,746

The annexed notes 1 to 27 form anintegral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Pty Todhr 2.

CHIEF E*ECUTIVEbFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED
CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1  THE GROUP ANDITS OPERATIONS

The Fund in the Group was established under a Trust Deed, dated 10 December 2021, executed between TPL REIT Management
Company as the Management Company and Digital Custodian Company (formerly MCB Financials Services Limited) as the Trustee
and is governed under the Real Estate Investment Trust Regulations, 2022 (REIT Regulations, 2022), promulgated and amended from
time to time by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

The Trust Deed of the Fund in the Group was registered on 10 December 2021 whereas the Fund in the Group was authorised by the
SECP as a unit trust scheme on 23 December 2021.

During the year, the Fund in the Group has been listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (PSX) with the approval of the SECP
on 20 May, 2024 under the REIT Regulations, 2022.

The Management Company of the Fund in the Group has been registered as Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC) under Non-
Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 (NBFC Rules) and has obtained the requisite license from the
SECP to undertake REIT Management Services. The registered office of the Management Company is situated at 20th Floor, Sky
tower, East Wing, HC-3, Block 4, Abdul Sattar Edhi Avenue, Clifton, Karachi, Pakistan.

The Fund in the Group is a perpetual close end, shariah compliant, hybrid scheme. All of the activities undertaken by the Fund in the
Group including but not limited to deposits and placements with banks were all in accordance with principle of Shariah.

The principal activity of the Fund in the Group is investing in real estate projects through Special Purpose Vehicles (SPVs) in accordance
with the constitutive documents and applicable laws to generate income/returns for investors through rental income and capital
appreciation.

As of 23rd December 2024 PACRA Credit Rating Company has assigned a rating of RFR 3+ (Stable Outlook) to the Fund.

As of 23rd December 2024 PACRA Credit Rating Company has assigned a rating of RM 3+ (Stable Outlook) to the REIT Management
Company Limited & RFR 3+ to REIT Fund | (stable Outlook).

Title to the assets of the Group are held in the name of Digital Custodian Company Limited (formerly MCB Financials Services Limited)
as the Trustee of the Group.

The Group consists of TPL REIT Fund - | (the Fund) and its subsidiary Companies that have been consolidated in these consolidated
financial statements.

Address:

The Group's and the Management Company's registered office is situated at 20th Floor, Sky Tower - East Wing, Dolmen City, HC-3,
Abdul Sattar Edhi Avenue, Block No. 4, Clifton, Karachi, Sindh

1.1 Composition of the Group

As at the reporting date, the unitholding the Fund has in its subsidiary Companies are as follows:

Ownership Interest

| 31 December 2024 | 30 June 2024
Subsidiary The Group NCI The Group NCI
National Management and Consultancy
Services (Pirvate) Limited 100% - 100.00% -
HKC (Private) Limited 94.92% 5.08% 94.92% 5.08%

TPL Technology Zone Phase-| (Private) Limited 100% - 100.00% -
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED
CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1

2.2

National Management And Consultancy Services (Private) Limited

National Management and Consultancy Services (Private) Limited ("the Company") was incorporated in Pakistan as a private limited
company on 20 September,1989 under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017). The principal activity
of the Company is to purchase, acquire, take on lease or in any other lawful manner any area, house, land, building, structures and to
turn the same into account, develop the same and dispose of or maintain the same and to build townships, markets or other buildings
residential and commercial or conveniences thereon and by advancing money to and entering into contracts and arrangements of all
kind with builders, tenants and others. The registered office of the Company is situated at 20th Floor, Sky Tower, East Wing, Dolmen
City HC-3, Block 4, Abdul Sattar Edhi Avenue, Clifton, Karachi. The Company is classified as a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) as per the
Real Estate Investment Trust Regulations, 2022, and in turn is a subsidiary of TPL REIT Fund | which owns 100% shareholding of the
Company as of reporting date.

HKC (Private) Limited

HKC (Private) Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan on 13 September 2005 as a public limited company under the
repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017). The Company is principally engaged in the acquisition and
development of real estates and renovation of buildings and letting out. During the year 2020, the Company changed its status from
Public Unlisted Company to Private Limited Company. The registered office of the Company is situated at 20th Floor, Sky Tower, East
Wing, Dolmen City HC-3, Block 4, Abdul Sattar Edhi Avenue, Clifton, Karachi. The Company is classified as a Special Purpose Vehicle
(SPV) as per the Real Estate Investment Trust Regulations, 2022, and in turn is a subsidiary of TPL REIT Fund | which owns 94.92%
shareholding of the Company as of reporting date.

TPL Technology Zone Phase - 1 (Private) Limited

TPL Technology Zone Phase - 1 (Private) Limited (formerly G-18 (Private) Limited) was incorporated in Pakistan as a private limited
company on April 12, 2018 under the Companies Act, 2017. The principal activity of the Company is to purchase, acquire, take on
lease or in any other lawful manner any area, house, land, building, structures and to turn the same into account, develop the same
and dispose of or maintain the same and to build townships, markets or other buildings residential and commercial or conveniences
thereon and by advancing money to and entering into contracts and arrangements of all kind with builders, tenants and others. The
Company is classified as a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) as per the Real Estate Investment Trust Regulations, 2022 and in turnis a
subsidiary of TPL REIT Fund | which owns 100% shareholding of the Company as of reporting date.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2024 have been prepared in accordance with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as are
notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 and Part VIIIA of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984;
and

- The Real Estate Investment Trust Regulations, 2022 (the REIT Regulations) and requirements of the Trust Deed.
Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, Part VII1 A of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984,
the REIT Regulations and requirements of the Trust Deed differ from the IFRS, the provisions of and directives issued under the
Companies Act, 2017, Part VIIIA of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the REIT Regulations and requirements of the Trust
Deed have been followed.

Basis of measurement

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis of 'historical cost convention' except as otherwise stated.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED
CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees which is the Group's functional and presentation currency.
The amounts are rounded-off to nearest thousand rupees, unless other wise stated.

2.4 Basis of Consolidation
2.4.1 Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are the Companies controlled by the Group. The Group controls the Companies when it is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns fromits involvement with the Companies and has the ability to act those returns through its power over the Companies.
The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date on which control
commences until the date on which control ceases. The financial statements of the subsidiaries have been consolidated on a line-
by-line basis and all intra-group balances and transactions have been eliminated.

2.4.2 Non-Controlling Interests (NCI)

NCI are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets at the date of acquisition. Changes in the
Group'sinterest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions.

2.4.3 Loss of control

When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, and any related NCl and
other components of equity. Any resulting gain or loss is recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss. Any interest retained
in the former subsidiary is measured at fair value when controlis lost.

2.4.4 Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated.
Unrealised gains arising from transactions with associates are eliminated against the investment to the extent of the Group's interest
in the investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence
of impairment.

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, JUDGMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES

The accounting policies adopted and the methods of computation of balances used in the preparation of these consolidated condensed
interim financial statements are the same as those applied in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended June 30, 2024.

3.1 Use of judgements and estimates

In preparing these condensed interim financial statements, management has made judgements and estimates that affect the application
of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expense. Actual results may differ from these
estimates. The significant judgements made by management in applying the Group's accounting policies and the key sources of
estimation uncertainty were the same as those described in the annual audited financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2024.

31 December 30June
2024 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)
4  PRELIMINARY EXPENSES AND FLOATATION COSTS Note (Rupeesin '000)
Balance at the beginning of the year 15,611 20,734
Amortization during the year 4.1 (2,561) (5,123)

Balance at the ending of the year 13,050 15,611
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED
CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4.1 The Fund in the Group has recorded all expenses incurred in connection with the incorporation, registration, establishment and

5.1

5.2

authorization of the Fund as preliminary expenses and floatation costs which are to be amortized by the Fund over a period of five
years effective from 24 June 2022, after the financial close commencing from financial close of the Fund in accordance with the Real
Estate Investment Trust Regulations, 2022.

31 December 30 June
| 2024 | 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES Note (Rupees in '000)
Carryingamount at the beginning of the year 28,409,435 26,264,477
Development expenditures 1,208,463 1,641,598
Unrealized gain on revaluation of investment properties 5.1 992,768 503,360
Investment property transferred to held for sale (2,250,450) -
Carrying amount at the end of the year 28,360,216 28,409,435
I
Fair value of land / Capitalized
Total

property costs
As at 31 December 2024 Note = ---------------oee- (Rupees in '000) ----===========----
Mangrove 5.2 24,731,895 3,628,321 28,360,216
Technology Park 1,694,633 555,817 2,250,450

26,426,528 4,184,138 30,610,666
As at 30 June 2024 25,433,760 2,975,675 28,409,435

Cost Fair value Unrealize gain
Movement in unrealize gain ininvestment property: ~ mmeemmemmeeeeee o (Rupeesin '000) -============ncnuun
As at 31 December 2024
Mangrove 6,882,076 24,731,895 17,849,819
Technology Park 1,464,260 1,694,633 230,373

8,346,336 26,426,528 18,080,192

As at 30 June 2024 8,346,336 25,433,760 17,087,424

This represents leashold land parcel of 40 acres commercial property situated at Korangi Creek, Karachi which is under development.
This land is carried at revaluation basis and no depreciation is charged oniit.

Total development costs capitalised as at 31 December 2024 is Rs. 3,628.32 million (30 June 2024: Rs. 2,432.16 million).

As of 31 December 2024, MYK Assocaites (Pvt) Limited the valuer of the Company determined the fair value of the property at Rs.
28,360 (30 June 2024: Rs. 25,904 million. The valuation was carried out on the basis of present market values for similar property in
the vicinity of land and replacement values of similar type of land based on present cost.

The forced sale value of the investment property is assessed to be Rs. 22,688.17 million.

The other valuation methods were not considered as they are not applicable to the current stage of the property. The Depreciated
Replacement Cost Approach requires a completed property, while the Income Capitalization Approach is suitable for income-generating
properties. Since the property is currently under development and neither fully constructed nor generating income, these methods
were deemed inappropriate for this valuation.
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Additions during Cost Accumlated Net book value
the year amortization

6 INTANGIBLEASSETS ~ memememeeecemecoeeeeeeee (Rupees in '000) ===========m=m=mmmmmmmmememn
Computer software
As at 31 December 2024 - 99 99 -

As at 30 June 2024 - 99 99 -
31 December 30 June
| 2024 | 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)

7  DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY (Rupees in '000)

Land 1,675,740 1,675,740
Design, development & related costs 2,479,221 2,353,548
Borrowing Costs 592,236 524,594

4,747,197 4,553,882

I
Acquisiti t Capitalized
cquisition cos apitalize Total
of land costs

One Hoshang Note -----------cooooee- (Rupees in '000) ------=-===-=-------
As at 31 December 2024 7.1 1,675,740 3,071,457 4,747,197
As at 30 June 2024 1,675,740 2,878,142 4,553,882

7.1 Thisrepresents land parcel of 2,539 square yards of commercial property situated at corner of Abdullah Haroon Road and Hoshang
Road, Karachi.

7.2 During the period borrowing cost amounting to Rs. 47.55 million (2024: Rs. 172.46 million) was capitalised on borrowings from financial
institutions at the rate of three months KIBOR + 2.25% and is netted against investment income on the temporary investment on
those borrowings for construction of development property. The borrowing costs have been capitalised for development property
as these are qualifying assets.

7.3 The property is subject to equitable mortgage charge against the financing facility from financial institution as disclosed in note 11.1
of these consolidated financial statements.

Residual value approachis applicable to determine the fair value of the development property as it indicates the residual amount after
deducting all known or anticipated costs required to complete the development from the anticipated value of the project when
completed after consideration of the risks associated with completion of the project.
31 December 30 June
| 2024 | 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)
8  ASSETSHELDFOR SALE Note (Rupeesin '000)
Assets held for sale - Land 8.1 2,250,450 -
8.1 This represents leasehold land located in an Open Industrial Plot No. 25-B, measuring 10,002 square yards, situated at Sector 30,

Korangi Industrial Area, Karachi. This land is carried at revaluation basis and no depreciation is charged oniit.

The company has entered into an agreement to sale of investment property of the company in its current position. As of 31 December,
2024 the company has received token money from interested buyer.
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9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

As of 31 December 2024, MYK Assocaites Private Limited the valuer of the Company determined the fair value of the property at Rs.
2,250.45 million (30 June 2024: Rs. 2,505.52 million). The valuation was carried out on the basis of present market values for similar
property in the vicinity of land and replacement values of similar type of land based on present cost.

During the period, the Fund has obtained approval from the majority anchor investor for the disposal of the sole land recorded in the
books of TPL Technology Zone Phase 1 (TTZ). As of 30th December 2024, the TTZ entered into a sale agreement with the buyer for
the disposal of land and the same is expected to be disposed of by the end of June 2025. Following the disposal of the land, the TTZ
will be wound up as approved by the majority anchor investors. Accordingly, the financial statements of the TTZ have not been
prepared on going concern basis. Therefore, Investment in the TTZ has been classified as under current asset.

SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

31 December 30June
2024 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)

(Rupees in '000)

Investments in mutual funds 10,952 394,005
GOP ljarah sukuks 618,134 966,040
629,086 1,360,045
Investments in mutual funds
31 December 30 June 31 December 30 June

| 2024 | 2024 | 2024 | 2024

(Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited) (Audited)
(Units) Name of Fund (Rupeesin '000)
- 5,544,937 | AKD Islamic Daily Dividend Fund - 277,247
- 2,133,139 | Meezan Rozana Amdani Fund - 106,657
95,058 95,058 | Mahana Islamic Cash Plan 10,952 10,101
95,058 7,773,134 10,952 394,005

During the period dividend of Rs. 20.148 million was received from Shariah-compliant mutual funds which were reinvested.

| As at December 31, 2024 |

Carrvin Surplus on
ying Market Value revaluation of
amount .
investments
Investmentsin GOP ijarahsukuks ~ eemeeeeeeeeeeees (Rupeesin '000) ==============uux
GORP ljarah Sukuk Certificates 980,839 981,674 835
As at June 30, 2024
Carrying Market Value Deficit on
amount revaluation
—————————————————— (Rupeesin '000) ------------------
GOP ljarah Sukuk Certificates 970,584 966,040 (4,544)

This represents the investment in Government of Pakistan (GOP) ijarah sukuks carrying the profit rates of 14.05% to 21.32% (30 June
2024:19.44%t0 23.66% ).
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10 ADVANCES, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Tax withheld on bank profits and dividend
Advance to contractors

- unsecured

- secured
Prepayments
Bank profit receivable
GOP ljarah Sukuks profit receivable
Advance Tax

Note

10.1

10.2

31 December

2024 |

(Unaudited)

30June

2024
(Audited)

(Rupeesin '000)

118,515

300,000
539,000
32,196
471
18,430
5,754
1,014,366

98,170

300,000
539,000
19,082
9,892
33,803
5,754
1,005,701

10.1 The income of the Group is exempt from tax under clause 99 of Part | of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (ITO
2001). Further, the Group is exempt under clause 47(B) of Part IV of Second Schedule to the ITO 2001 from withholding of tax under
section 150, 151 and 233 of ITO 2001. The Federal Board of Revenue through a circular “C.No.1 (43) DG (WHT)/ 2008-Vol.lI- 66417~
R” dated May 12, 2022 made it mandatory to obtain exemption certificates under section 159 (1) of the ITO 2001 from Commissioner
Inland Revenue (CIR). Prior to receiving tax exemption certificate(s) from CIR various withholding agents have deducted advance tax

under section 150, and 151 of ITO 2001.

10.2 This represents mobilisation advance extended to contractor and its partially secured by coverage of guarantee issued in favor of the

subsidiary company in the Group.

11 BANKBALANCES
Balances with banks in:
Current account
Savings accounts

Note

31 December

| 2024

(Unaudited)

30June

2024
(Audited)

(Rupees in '000)

71
154,403
154,474

71
1,111,813
1,111,884

11.1 This represents Islamic savings accounts maintained with commerial bank carrying profit at the rate ranging between 11.00% - 17.75%

(30 June 2024:11.00% - 20.75% ) per annum.

12 LONG-TERMFINANCING

Bank Alfalah Limited - secured
Current maturity of long term financing

Note

12.1

31 December

| 2024

(Unaudited)

30June

2024
(Audited)

(Rupees in '000)

516,667
(516,667)

775,000
(775,000)

12.1 HKC (the subsidiary) has availed the facility of Rs. 775 million from a commercial bank through an agreement dated 8 June 2022 of
which is utilised in full. The purpose of availing the facility is to finance the subsidiary company's residential / commercial building
project. The amount received is repayable in 3 equal semi-annual installments over a period of 3 years after completion of grace period

of 18 months inclusive, at the rate of 3 months KIBOR plus 225 basis points.

The facility has been secured against an equitable mortgage charge on property located at Plot No. 22/7. Street CL-9, Civil Lines

Quarter, Karachi having a total area of 2,539 square yards.
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31 December 30 June
| 2024 | 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)
13 PAYABLE TO THE REIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY Note (Rupees in '000)
Payable by TPL REIT Fund | in the Group:
Preliminary expenses, floatation costs and other payable 131 16,720 26,720
Management fee payable 13.2 143,758 139,758
Performance fee payable 13.3 1,987,684 1,875,763
2,148,162 2,042,241
Payable by Subsidiary companies in the Group:
National Management and Consultancy Services (Private) Limited 1,252 1,252
HKC (Private) Limited 13,854 1,474
TPL Technology Zone Phase-1 (Private) Limited 1,843 11,727
13.4 16,949 14,453
Total 2,165,111 2,056,694

13.1 Thisrepresents amount incurred by the REIT Management Company relating to the formation of the Fund in the Group.

13.2 Under the provisions of the REIT Regulations, 2022, a REIT Management Company is entitled to a management fee which shall be
stated in the Information Memorandum. As per the Information Memorandum of the Fund, the REIT Management Company is entitled
to an annual management fee calculated at 1.5% per annum on the net assets of the Fund. The management fee is also subjected to
Sindh sales tax at the rate of 15%. The fee is paid quarterly in arrears.

31 December 30 June
| 2024 | 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)
13.3 Performance fee payable Note (Rupees in '000)
Performance fee payable at the end of accelerator period 13.3.1 1,948,129 1,855,837
Performance fee - current portion 13.3.2 39,555 19,926
1,987,684 1,875,763

13.3.1 The Fund in the Group has classified the total amount of performance fee payable as current as it does not have a contractual and
legally enforceable right to defer payment once the payment conditions have been met.

13.3.2Under the provisions of the REIT Regulations, 2022, a REIT Management Company is entitled to a performance fee which shall be
stated in the Information Memorandum. As per the Information Memorandum of the Fund in the Group, the REIT Management

Company is entitled to performance as follows:

a) 15%charged onthe year-on-yearincreaseinthe NAV of the Fund over a High Watermark, calculated at the end of each accounting
period; and

b) 15% of the profit on sale of real estate assets and/or sale/winding up of SPVs.

The Fund in the Group will pay 30% of the Performance Fee due to the Management Company in arrears after the close of each
accounting period and accrue the remaining 70% to be paid at the end of the Accelerator Period.

"Accelerator Period” means the period starting at financial close and ending on the first dividend distribution to the unit holders by
the Fundin the Group or listing of the Fund in the Group, whichever is later.
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The performance fee is also subjected to Sindh sales tax at the rate of 15%.

13.4 These pertains to the charges paid on behalf of the subsidiary companies by REIT Management Company Limited which are repayable

on demand.
31 December 30 June
| 2024 | 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)
14 PAYABLE TO THE TRUSTEE Note (Rupeesin '000)

Trustee fee payable 14.1 3,469 3,728
Share registrar fee payable 56 84
3,525 3,812
516,667 775,000
(516,667) (775,000)

14.1 Under the provisions of the REIT Regulations, 2022, the Trustee is entitled to a trustee fee which shall be stated in the Information
Memorandum. As per the Information Memorandum of the Fund in the Group, the Trustee is entitled to an annual fee calculated at
0.04% per annum on the net assets of the Fund in the Group. The Trustee fee is also subjected to Sindh sales tax at the rate of 15%.
The fee is paid quarterly in arrears.

31 December 30 June
| 2024 | 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)
15 PAYABLE TO THE SECP Note (Rupeesin '000)
Annual fee payable 15.1 12,500 25,000

15.1 Under the provisions of the REIT Regulations, 2022, the Fund in the Group is required to pay annual monitoring fee to SECP equal to
0.15% of the average fund size per annum. The annual monitoring fee is capped at Rs. 25 million per annum except in the first year.
The fee shall be paid in arrears within four months of close of accounting year.

31 December 30 June
| 2024 | 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)
16 ACCRUED EXPENSES, TRADE PAYABLES AND OTHER LIABILITIES (Rupees in '000)
Accrued expenses 501,497 411,199
Auditor's remuneration 19,166 22,582
Withholding taxes 67,676 110,466
588,339 544,247
17 CONTRACT LIABILITIES
Advance from customers 281,550 172,250
Token money received from TTZ land buyer 83,000 -
364,550 172,250
I

The contract liabilities primarily relate to the advance consideration received from customer in respect of installment for purchase
of apartments, for which the revenue will be recognised at point in time when the construction is completed and title is transferred
to the customers.
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31 December 30June
| 2024 | 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)
18 DUE TO RELATED PARTIES Note (Rupees in '000)
TPL Properties Limited 18.1 - 16,132
TPL Development (Private) Limited 18.2 6,200 18,544
6,200 34,676

18.1 This pertains to project design and consultation costs paid on behalf of the subsidiary Companies in the Group. Interest is applicable
at 3 months KIBOR plus 2.5% per annum which is repayable on demand.

18.2 This pertains to project design and consultation costs paid on behalf of the subsidiary Company in the Group and is repayable on
demand.

19 UNITSINISSUE

31 December 30June 31 December 30June
| 2024 | 2024 | 2024 | 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited) (Audited)
(Number of units) Ordinary units of Rs. 10 each (Rupeesin '000)
710,000,000 710,000,000 | Consideration other than cash (against equity shares) 7,100,000 7,100,000
1,125,000,000 1,125,000,000 | incash 11,250,000 11,250,000
1,835,000,000 1,835,000,000 18,350,000 18,350,000

| 31 December 2024 | 30 June 2024
Percentage Number of Percentage Number of
19.1 Pattern of Unit Holding (%) units held (%) units held
TPL Properties Limited (Strategic Investor) 38% 697,598,500 38% 697,598,500
Anchor Investors 60% 1,105,351,000 60% 1,105,351,000
Others -including individuals 2% 32,050,500 2% 32,050,500

100% 1,835,000,000 100% 1,835,000,000

20 FAIRVALUE RESERVE
The fair value reserve pertains to cumulative net changes in fair value of investment properties which is not free for distribution by
way of dividend in accordance with the constitutive document of the Group, and hence the unrealised gain on revaluation of investment
properties is reclassified to fair value reserve.

21 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

21.1 CONTINGENCIES
There are no material contingencies outstanding as at 31 December 2024 (30 June 2024: Nil).

21.2 COMMITMENTS

21.2.1 HKC of the Group entered a contract with M/s Total Construction Limited for the main construction works of the Building. The contract
for the construction of the Phase 1B (Foundation and Protection Piling) is awarded for Rs. 198.57 million excluding the owner furnished

materials. Out of the total amount Rs. 39.71 million have been paid as mobilisation advance which is secured against the Advance
Payment Guarantee. Further, Rs.152.93 million have been invoiced as running bills of the contract.
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21.2.2 The contract for the construction of the Phase 2A (Grey Structure Works) is awarded for Rs. 685 million excluding the owner furnished

22

23

materials. Out of the total amount Rs. 93.20 million have been paid as mobilisation advance which is secured against the Advance
Payment Guarantee. Further, Rs.200.22 million have been invoiced as running bills of the contract.

TAXATION

The Group's income is exempt from income tax as per clause 99 of Part 1 of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001,
subject to the condition that not less than 90 percent of its accounting income for the year, as reduced by the capital gains whether
realised or unrealised, is distributed to the unit holders in cash.

The Group is also exempt from the provision of section 113 (minimum tax) under clause 11A of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

During the current year the Group have incurred accounting loss when the net income is reduced by capital gains (whether realised
or unrealised), therefore there is no distributable income for the current year.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related parties of the Group comprise of the Parent Company, associated companies, major shareholders, directors and key
management personnel. The transactions with related parties other than those disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements are as follows:

Six months period ended
31 December

| 2024 | 2023
(Rupees in '000)

Transactions during the year

Digital Custodian Company Limited

The Trustee

Remuneration of the trustee 7,634 6,738

Share registrar fee 176 170

Payments made during the year 7,162 6,611

TPL REIT Management Company

REIT Management Company

Remuneration of the REIT Management Company 286,290 252,665

Payments made to the REIT Management Company 312,216 723,610

Charges paid on behalf of the subisidiary companies 9,639 -

TPL Properties Limited

Holding company of the Management Company

Holding company of the Management Company and strategic investor

Borrowing cost - 10,485

TPL Security Services (Private) Limited

Security services received 7,779 2,797

Payments against security services 7,779 2,546

TPL Developments (Private) Limited

Development advisory and other serviecs 222,764 249,935

Payments during the year 222,764 249,935
I
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24 FAIRVALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. Consequently, differences can arise between carrying values and the fair value estimates.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Group is a going concern without any intention or requirement to
curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market

transactions on an arm's length basis.

IFRS 13, 'Fair Value Measurements' requires the Group to classify fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects
the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

31 December 2024

Carrying amount Fair value
Fair value Amortised Other
through mor |tse financial Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
profit or loss cos liabilities
Note (Rupees in '000)
Financial assets measured at fair value
Investment in mutual funds 9.1 10,952 - - 10,952 - 10,952 10,952
Investment in GOP ijara sukuks 9.3 618,134 - - 618,134 211,622 754,418 966,040
629,086 - - 629,086 211,622 765,370 976,992
Financial assets not measured at fair value
GOP ljarah Sukuks profit receivable 24.1 - 33,803 - 33,803 - - -
Bank profit receivable 24.1 - 9,892 - 9,892 - - -
Bank balances 24.1 - 154,474 - 154,474 - - -
- 198,169 - 198,169 - - -

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value

Payable to the REIT Management Company 24.1 -

Payable to the Trustee 24.1 -
Payable to the SECP 24.1 -
Advance against issuance of units 24.1 -
Accrued markup 24.1 -
Accrued expenses, trade payables

and other liabilities 24.1 -
Current maturity of long term financing 24.1 -
Contract liabilities 24.1 -
Due to related parties - unsecured 24.1 -

2,165,111
3,525
12,500

23,936

588,339
516,667
364,550

6,200

2,165,111 - -
3,525 - -
12,500 - -

23,936 - -

588,339 - -
516,667 - -
364,550 - -

6,200 - -

3,680,828

3,680,828 - -
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

\ 30 June 2024
Carrying amount Fair value
Fair value Amortised Other
through mor |tse financial Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
profit or loss cos liabilities
Note (Rupees in '000)
Financial assets measured at fair value
Investment in mutual funds 8.1 394,005 - - 394,005 - 394,005 - 394,005
Investment in GOP ijara sukuks 83 966,040 B B 966,040 - 966,040 - 966,040
1,360,045 - - 1,360,045 - 1,360,045 - 1,360,045

Financial assets not measured at fair value
GOP ljarah Sukuks profit receivable 23.1 - 33,803 B 33,803 - - - -
Bank profit receivable 23.1 - 9,892 - 9,892 - - - -
Bank balances 23.1 - 1,111,884 - 1,111,884 - - - -

- 1,155,579 - 1,155,579 - - - -
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Payable to the REIT Management Company 23.1 - - 2,056,694 2,056,694 - - - -
Payable to the Trustee 23.1 - - 3,812 3,812 - - - -
Payable to the SECP 23.1 - - 25,000 25,000 - - - -
Accrued markup 23.1 - - 46,836 46,836 - - - -
Accrued expenses, trade payables - - - - - -

and other liabilities 23.1 544,247 544,247

Current maturity of long term financing 23.1 - - 775,000 775,000 - - - -
Contract liabilities 23.1 - - 172,250 172,250 - - - -
Due to related parties - unsecured 23.1 - - 34,676 34,676 - - - -

- - 3,658,515 3,658,515 - - - -

24.1 The Group has not disclosed the fair value for these financial assets and financial liabilities as their carrying amounts are reasonable
approximation of fair value.

24.2 Fair value hierarchy of the investment property has been disclosed in note 5 to these consolidated financial statements.
25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's financial risk management objectives and policies are consistent with those disclosed in the annual audited financial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2024.

26 GENERAL
All amounts have been rounded off to nearest thousand rupees, unless otherwise stated.
27 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION OF ISSUE

These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue on 17 February 2025 by the Board of Directors of the TPL REIT
Management Company Limited.

i s otz 2.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REVIEW REPORT
To the members of National Management and Consultancy Services (Private) Limited
Report on review of Interim Financial Statements
Introduction

We have reviewed the accompanying condensed interim statement of financial position of
National Management and Consultancy Services (Private) Limited ("the Company") as at 31
December 2024 and the related condensed interim profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the condensed interim statement of changes in equity, the condensed interim statement
of cash flows, and notes to the financial statements for the six months period then ended (here-
in-after-referred to as “interim financial statements"). Management is responsible for the
preparation and presentation of these interim financial statements in accordance with accounting
and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting. Our responsibility
is to express a conclusion on these financial statements based on our review.

Scope of Review

We conducted our review in accordance with International Standard on Review Engagements
2410, "Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the
Entity". A review of interim financial statements consists of making inquiries, primarily of persens
responsible for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review
procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance
that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit.
Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion,

Conclusion

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the
accompanying interim financial statements are not prepared, in all material respects, in
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim
financial reporting.
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KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.

Other Matter

The figures of the condensed interim statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
for the three months ended 31 December 2024 have not been reviewed and we do not express a
conclusion thereon.

The engagement partner on the review resulting in this independent auditors' review report is
Muhammad Taufig.

K(‘\’%‘»«Q SM—L—# — !

Date: 26 February 2025 KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Karachi

UDIN: RR202410106m4MpceNYkK



NATIONAL MANAGEMENT & CONSULTANCY SERVICES (PRIVATE) LIMITED
CONDENSED INTERIM STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

31 December 30June
| 2024 | 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)
Note (Rupees in '000)
ASSETS
Non-current asset
Investment property 4 28,360,216 25,904,241
Current assets
Short-term investments 5 629,087 1,360,045
Advances, prepayments and other receivables 6 422,895 424,478
Due fromrelated party 7 435,627 =
Bank balances 8 119,639 1,072,899
1,607,248 2,857,422
TOTAL ASSETS 29,967,464 28,761,663
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital and reserves
Authorised capital
2,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs.100/- each. 200,000 200,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 9 95,000 95,000
Share premium 4,702,500 4,702,500
Fair value reserve 10 24,705,505 23,757,371
Unappropriated profit 52,913 120,354
29,555,918 28,675,225
Current liabilities
Accrued liabilities and other payables 11 110,294 85,186
Due torelated party 12 301,252 1,252
411,546 86,438
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 13
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 29,967,464 28,761,663

The annexed notes from 1 to 20 form an integral part of these financial statements.

T4 A2 2.7
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NATIONAL MANAGEMENT & CONSULTANCY SERVICES (PRIVATE) LIMITED
CONDENSED INTERIM STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (UNAUDITED)

Six Months Ended Three Months Ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2024 2023 2024 2023
Note ~-mmmmemmmcmccmccc oo (Rupeesin '000) -----==========o-muuuo-
Administrative expenses 14 (5,026) (2,970) (3,221) (2,145)
Otherincome 15 159,777 134,791 50,770 64,055
Unrealized gain on remeasurement of fair value of
investment property 4 948,134 - 948,134 -
Unrealised gain on investments at fair value through
profit or loss 12,808 133 6,958 (3,232)
Profit before taxation 1,115,693 131,954 1,002,641 58,678
Taxation - - - -
Profit after taxation 1,115,693 131,954 1,002,641 58,678
Other comprehensive income for the period - - - -
Total Comprehensive income for the period 1,115,693 131,954 1,002,641 58,678
——————————————————————————— (Rupees) -====-====m-mmmmmmmm oo

Earning per share - basic and diluted 197.83 (0.12)

The annexed notes from 1 to 20 form an integral part of these financial statements.

T4 A2 2.7
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NATIONAL MANAGEMENT & CONSULTANCY SERVICES (PRIVATE) LIMITED
CONDENSED INTERIM STATEMENT OF

CHANGES IN EQUITY (UNAUDITED)

Reserves
Issued, Capital Reserve - Capital Reserve - Revenue Total
subscribedand Share premium Fair Value Reserve -
paid-up capital Reserve (Note 9) Unappropriated
Profit
---------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) -================mmmmmmmmmeoeeo
Balance as at 30 June 2023 66,700 1,900,800 23,254,011 107,250 25,328,761
Total comprehensive income for the period
Profit after taxation - - - 73,276 73,276
Other comprehensive income for the period - - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the period - - 73,276 73,276
Transactions with owners
Final dividend paid at Rs. 187.40 per share - - - (125,000) (125,000)
Balance as at 31 December 2023 66,700 1,900,800 23,254,011 55,526 25,277,037
Balance as at 01 July 2024 95,000 4,702,500 23,757,371 120,354 28,675,225
Total comprehensive income for the period
Profit after taxation - - 948,134 167,559 1,115,693
Other comprehensive income for the period - - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the period - - 948,134 167,559 1,115,693
Transactions with owners
Final dividend paid at Rs. 136.84 per share - - - (130,000) (130,000)
Interim Dividend at Rs. 110.53 per share - - - (105,000) (105,000)
Balance as at 31 December 2024 95,000 4,702,500 24,705,505 52,913 29,555,918

The annexed notes from 1 to 20 form an integral part of these financial statements.

I i TR
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NATIONAL MANAGEMENT & CONSULTANCY SERVICES (PRIVATE) LIMITED

CONDENSED INTERIM STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (UNAUDITED)

31st December 31st December

2024 2023

(Rupees in '000)
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before taxation 1,115,693 131,954

Adjustments for:

Profit on bank deposits (42,925) (93,631)
Profit on GOP ijarah sukuks (77,928) (36,148)
Unrealised gain on investments at fair value through profit or loss (12,808) (133)
Unrealized gain on remeasurement of fair value of investment property (948,134) =
Dividend income (20,148) (5,012)
(1,101,943) (134,924)
Changesin:
Development expenditures during the period (23,223) (15,605)
Accrued and other payables 25,108 45,877
Due fromrelated party (435,627) =
Due to related party 300,000 (11,300)
(133,742) 18,972
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities (119,992) 16,135

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Additions to investment property (1,507,841) (490,962)
Net proceeds from sell / (purchase) of mutual funds 384,034 (204,260)
Net proceeds from sell / (purchase) of GOP ljarah 359,732 (456,028)
Dividend received 20,148 5,012
Profit on GOP ljarah Sukuk 93,301 22,615
Profit on bank deposits 52,358 99,023
Net cash usedin investing activities (598,267) (1,024,600)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividend paid (235,000) (125,000)
Advance against issuance of right share - 2,830,000
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities (235,000) 2,705,000
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (953,259) 1,696,535
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 1,072,899 1,143,539
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 119,639 2,840,074

The annexed notes from 1 to 20 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NATIONAL MANAGEMENT & CONSULTANCY SERVICES (PRIVATE) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

2.1

THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

National Management and Consultancy Services (Private) Limited ("the Company") was incorporated in Pakistan as a private limited
company on 20 September1989 under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017). The principal activity
of the Company is to purchase, acquire, take on lease or in any other lawful manner any area, house, land, building, structures and to
turn the same into account, develop the same and dispose of or maintain the same and to build townships, markets or other buildings
residential and commercial or conveniences thereon and by advancing money to and entering into contracts and arrangements of all
kind with builders, tenants and others. The registered office of the Company is situated at 20th Floor, Sky Tower, East Wing, Dolmen
City HC-3, Block 4, Abdul Sattar Edhi Avenue, Clifton, Karachi. The Company is classified as a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) as per the
Real Estate Investment Trust Regulations, 2022, and in turn is a subsidiary of TPL REIT Fund | which owns 100% shareholding of the
Company as of reporting date.

The Company plans to develop a master project over a land parcel of 40 acres held by the Company. The planned development will
include midrise Residential Apartment Towers, Commercial Offices, Service Apartments, Hotel and Retail Space at waterfront locality,
and to be equipped with best in-class infrastructure and amenities.

Geographical location and address of the business premises:

Addresses

Registered office: The Company's registered office is situated at 20th Floor, Sky Tower —East Wing, Dolmen City, HC-3, Abdul Sattar
Edhi Avenue, Block No. 4, Clifton, Karachi, Sindh.

Investment property site (Mangrove): Naclass No. 24, Deh Dih Tappo Ibrahim Haidery, Taluka Karachi, District Malir.

The Company has the following related party relationships during the period:

Company Name Relationship Di?ggt‘(g:cs)lqip Psi'::;:;%?n‘;f
TPLREIT Fund | Parent Entity Yes 100%
TPL REIT Management Company Limited Management Company of TPL REIT Fund | Yes -
TPL Investment Management Limited Subsidiary of Management Company Yes -
HKC (Private) Limited Associated Company Yes -
TPL Technology Zone Phase-I (Private) Limited Associated Company Yes -
TPL Properties Limited Associated Company of RMC N/A -
TPL Logistic Park (Private) Limited Associated Company of RMC N/A -
TPL Security Services (Private) Limited Associated Company of RMC N/A -
TPL Corp Limited Associated Company of RMC N/A -
TPL Holdings (Private) Limited Associated Company of RMC N/A -
TPL Property Management (Private) Limited Associated Company of RMC N/A -
TPL Developments (Private) Limited Associated Company of RMC N/A -
TPL Insurance Limited Associated Company of RMC N/A -
TPL Life Insurance Limited Associated Company of RMC N/A -
TPL Trakker Limited Associated Company of RMC N/A -
Key Management Personnel - N/A -

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of Compliance
These condensed interim financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting

standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan
for interim financial reporting comprise of:



NATIONAL MANAGEMENT & CONSULTANCY SERVICES (PRIVATE) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

2.2

2.3

2.4

3.1

- International Accounting Standard (IAS) 34, Interim Financial Reporting issued by the International Accounting Standard Board
(IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017; and
- The Real Estate Investment Trust Regulations, 2022 (the REIT Regulations) and requirements of the Trust Deed.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, differ with the requirements of IAS 34, the provisions of
directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Basis of measurement

These condensed interim financial statements have been prepared under the 'historical cost convention' except for investment
property and short-term investments which are measured at fair value.

These condensed interim financial statement have been prepared in accordance with IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting. They do not
include all of the information required for a complete set of financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS Accounting
Standards. However, selected explanatory notes are included to explain events and transactions that are significant to an understanding
of the changes in the Company’s financial position and performance since the last annual financial statements.

The comparative statement of condensed interim financial position presented in these condensed interim financial statements as at
December 31, 2024 has been extracted from the audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2024,
whereas the comparative condensed interim statement of profit or loss, condensed interim statement of comprehensive income,
condensed interim statement of changes in equity and condensed interim statement of cash flows have been extracted from the
unaudited condensed interim financial statements of the Company for the six months ended December 31, 2023.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees which is the Company's functional and presentation currency. Allamounts
are rounded-off to nearest thousand rupees, unless otherwise stated.

Change in accounting standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting and reporting standards

a) Standards, interpretations of and amendments to the accounting and reporting standards that are effective in the 'current
period:

There are certain new and amended standards, interpretations and amendments that are mandatory for the Company's accounting
periods beginning on or after July 01, 2024 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant effect on the
Company's operations and therefore, have not been stated in these condensed interim financial statements.

b) Standards, Interpretations and Amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet effective:

The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 and the
amendments and interpretations thereto will be effective for accounting periods beginning on or after January 01, 2025.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES, ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The accounting policies adopted and the methods of computation of balances used in the preparation of these condensed interim
financial statements are the same as those applied in the preparation of the audited financial statements of the company for the year
ended June 30, 2024.

Use of judgements and estimates

In preparing these condensed interim financial statements, management has made judgements and estimates that affect the application
of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expense. Actual results may differ from these
estimates. The significant judgements made by management in applying the Company's accounting policies and the key sources of
estimation uncertainty were the same as those described in the annual audited financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2024.



NATIONAL MANAGEMENT & CONSULTANCY SERVICES (PRIVATE) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

31 December 30 June
| 2024 | 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)

4  INVESTMENT PROPERTY (Rupeesin '000)
Carrying amount at the beginning of the period / year 25,904,241 23,814,229
Development expenditures during the period / year 1,507,841 1,586,652
Unrealised gain on revaluation of investment property 948,134 503,360
Carrying amount at the end of the period / year 28,360,216 25,904,241

4.1 Thisrepresents leasehold land parcel of 40 acres commercial property situated at Korangi Creek, Karachi which is under development.
This land is carried at revaluation basis and no depreciation is charged on it.

4.2 Total development costs capitalised as at 31 December 2024 is Rs. 3,628.32 million (30 June 2024: Rs. 2,121.65 million).

4.3 Asof 31 December 2024, MYK Associates the valuer of the Company determined the fair value of the property at Rs. 28,360.2 million
(30 June 2024 : Rs. 25,904.2 million). The valuation was carried out on the basis of present market values for similar property in the
vicinity of land and replacement values of similar type of land based on present cost.

The forced sale value of the investment property is assessed to be Rs. 22,688.17 million.

4.3.1 Fair value hierarchy

The investment property has been valued by external, independent property valuers, having appropriate recognised professional
qualification and recent experience in the location and category of the property being valued.

The fair value measurement for the investment property has been categorised as a Level 3 fair value based in the inputs to the valuation
technique used.

4.3.2 Valuation Technique

The valuation has been conducted in accordance with International Valuation Standards, employing the market approach which comes
under IFRS 13.

Valuation Technique Significant unobservable Input Inter- relationship between key unobservable input
and fair value measurement

Market Approach Fair value of comparable The estimated fair value of investment property would
properties increase / (decrease) if there is any change in the Fair
value of comparable properties

Fair value as at
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 31 December
2024

Investments - - 28,360,216 28,360,216

Fair value as at
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 30 June
2024

Investments - - 25,904,241 25,904,241




NATIONAL MANAGEMENT & CONSULTANCY SERVICES (PRIVATE) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

31 December 30 June
| 2024 | 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)

5 SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS Note (Rupeesin'000)
Investments in mutual funds 5.1 10,952 394,005
Investments in GOP ijarah sukuks 5.3 618,135 966,040

629,087 1,360,045

5.1 Investmentsin mutual funds

31 December 30 June 31 December 30 June
| 2024 | 2024 | 2024 | 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited) (Audited)
(Units) (Rupeesin'000)
- 5,544,937 AKD Islamic Daily Dividend Fund - 277,247
- 2,133,139 Meezan Rozana Amdani Fund - 106,657
95,058 95,058 Mahana Islamic Cash Plan 10,952 10,101
95,058 7,773,134 10,952 394,005

5.2 During the period, dividend of Rs. 20.148 million was received from mutual funds and the said was reinvested.

5.3 Investments in GOP ijarah sukuks | As at December 31, 2024
Carrying Surplus on
Market value revaluation of
amount .
investments

GOP ijarah sukuk certificates 610,852 618,135 7,282

As at June 30, 2024

Carrvin (Deficit) on
ying Market value revaluation of
amount .
investments
———————————————— (Rupeesin'000) ----------------
GOP ijarah sukuk certificates 970,584 966,040 (4,544)

5.4 Thisrepresents the investmentin Government of Pakistan (GOP) ijarah sukuks carrying the profit rates of 14.05%to 21.32% (30 June
2024:19.44%t0 23.66% ).



NATIONAL MANAGEMENT & CONSULTANCY SERVICES (PRIVATE) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

31 December 30 June
| 2024 | 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)

6 ADVANCES, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES Note (Rupees in '000)
Advance to contractor - unsecured 6.1 300,000 300,000
Prepayments 14,779 11,683
Advance tax 89,450 69,323
GOP profit receivable 18,430 33,803
Profit on bank deposit receivable 236 9,669

422,895 424,478

6.1 This represents mobilisation advance paid to contractor against infrastructure and urban developments work.

31 December 30 June
2024 | 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)

7 DUEFROMRELATED PARTIES Note (Rupeesin'000)
TPLREIT Fund - | - unsecured 7.1 435,627 -

7.1 This represents short-term loan extended to related party carrying profit raning from from 10.99% to 15.99% per annum.

31 December 30 June
| 2024 | 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)

8 BANKBALANCES Note (Rupeesin'000)

Saving accounts 8.1 119,639 1,072,899

8.1 Thisrepresents saving accounts carrying profit ranging from 11.00% to 17.75% per annum (30 June 2024: 11.00% to 20.75%).

9 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

31 December 30 June 31 December 30 June
| 2024 | 2024 | 2024 | 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited) (Audited)
(Number of shares) Note (Rupeesin'000)
Ordinary shares of Rs. 100/- each in cash
950,000 950,000 Sharesinissue 95,000 95,000
950,000 950,000 9.1 95,000 95,000
9.1 Following shares are held by the Parent entity shareholder:
31 December 30 June
| 2024 | 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)
Name Percentage of Shareholding (Rupees in '000)
TPLREIT Fund| 100% 950,000 950,000




NATIONAL MANAGEMENT & CONSULTANCY SERVICES (PRIVATE) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

9.2 Votingrights, board selection, right of first refusal and block voting are in proportion to their shareholding.

10 FAIRVALUE RESERVE

The fair value reserve pertains to cumulative net changes in fair value of investment property which is not free for distribution by way

of dividend in accordance with the constitutive document of the Company.

11 ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND OTHER PAYABLES

Accrued auditor's remuneration
Accrued liabilities
Withholding tax payable

12 DUE TO RELATED PARTY

TPL REIT Management Company Limited
TPL Technology Zone Phase-1 (Pvt) Ltd

Note

12.1
12.2

31 December

| 2024

(Unaudited)

1,427
92,523
16,344

110,294

1,252
300,000
301,252

30 June

2024

(Audited)
(Rupeesin'000)

5,025
13,852
66,309
85,186

1,252

1,252

12.1 These pertains to the charges paid on behalf of the Company by REIT Management Company Limited which is repayable on demand.

12.2 This pertains to the cost of design transferred from TPL Technology Zone Phase-1 (Private) Limited to National Management

Consultancy (Private) Limited.

13 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

As of reporting date, the Company does not have any contingencies and commitments that are required to be disclosed in these

financial statements (30 June 2024: Nil).

Six months period ended

31 December

| 2024 |

14 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES Note (Rupeesin '000)
Bank charges 292
Auditor's remuneration 1,400
Legal and professional charges 1,160
Printing charges 50
Marketing charges 1,468
Misc charges 656
5,026

15 OTHERINCOME

Profit on bank deposits 8.1 42,925
Profit on GOP ijarah sukuks 5.4 77,928
Profit on short-term loan 15.1 15,628
Dividend income 5.2 20,148
Capital gain on Sukuk 3,148
159,777

2023

1,650
1,320

2,970

93,631
36,148

5,012

134,791

Three months period ended

31 December

2024

292
350
1,123
800
656

3,221

6,073
25,861
12,253

3,435

3,148
50,770

2023
(Rupeesin'000)

825
1,320

2,145

42,478
19,001

2,576

64,055



NATIONAL MANAGEMENT & CONSULTANCY SERVICES (PRIVATE) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

15.1 This includes profit on short-term loan extended to TPL REIT Fund |, a related party, carrying profit ranging from 10.99% to 15.99%
per annum.

16 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related parties of the Company comprise of the parent entity, associated companies, major shareholders, directors and key
management personnel. The transactions with related parties other than those disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements are

as follows:
Six months period ended
31 December

| 2024 | 2023
The Parent Entity (Rupees in '000)
TPLREIT Fund |
Dividend paid by the Company 235,000 -
Short-termloan extended to the Parent 435,627 -
Profit charged on the short-term loan 15,627 -
Associates - by means of common directorship
TPL Security Services (Private) Limited
Security services received 7,779 2,464
Payments made during the period 7,779 2,464
TPL Developments (Private) Limited
Development advisory and other services 188,350 231,350
Payments made during the period 218,825 231,350
TPL Technology Zone (Private) Limited
Design plan purchased 300,000 -

I

All transactions with related parties are entered into at agreed terms duly approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.

17 Fair values of financial instruments
Fair value is an amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable willing partiesinanarm's
length transaction. The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements approximate to their

fair values as of 31 December 2024.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market observable data as far as possible. Fair values are
categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).



NATIONAL MANAGEMENT & CONSULTANCY SERVICES (PRIVATE) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

31 December 2024

Carrying amount Fair value
Fair value Amortised Other
through cost financial Total Level1 Level2 Level3 Total
profit or loss liabilities
Note (Rupeesin '000) mmmmmmeem e
Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments in mutual funds 5.1 10,952 - - 10,952 - 10,952 - 10,952
Investments in GOP ijarah sukuks 5.3 618,135 - - 618,135 - 618,135 - 618,135
629,087 - - 629,087 - 629,087 - 629,087

Financial assets not measured at fair value

GOP profit receivable 17.1 - 18,430 - 18,430 - -
Profit on bank deposit receivable 171 - 236 - 236 - -
Bank balances 171 - 119,639 - 119,639 - -

- 138,305 - 138,305 - -

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value

Duetorelated party 17.1 - 301,252 - 301,252 - -
Accrued auditor's remuneration 17.1 - 1,427 - 1,427 - -
Accrued liabilities 17.1 - 92,523 - 92,523 - -
- 395,202 - 395,202 - -
30 June 2024
Carrying amount Fair value
Fair value Amortised Other
through cost financial Total Levell Level 2 Level 3 Total
profit or loss liabilities
NOte  mmmmmmmmmmr oo (Rupees in '000) -==-==-========nsmmmmmmmmmm oo

Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments in mutual funds 5.1 394,005 - - 394,005 - 394,005 - 394,005
Investments in GOP ijarah sukuks 5.3 966,040 - - 966,040 - 966,040 - 966,040

1,360,045 - - 1,360,045 - 1,360,045 - 1,360,045

Financial assets not measured at fair value

GOP profit receivable 17.1 - 33,803 - 33,803 - -
Profit on bank deposit receivable 17.1 - 9,669 - 9,669 - -
Bank balances 17.1 - 1,072,899 - 1,072,899 - -

1,116,371 - 1,116,371 - -

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value

Duetorelated party 17.1 - 1,252 - 1,252 - -
Accrued auditor's remuneration 17.1 - 5,025 - 5,025 - -
Accrued liabilities 17.1 - 13,852 - 13,852 - -

20,129 - 20,129 - -



NATIONAL MANAGEMENT & CONSULTANCY SERVICES (PRIVATE) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

17.1 The Company has not disclosed the fair value for these financial assets and financial liabilities as their carrying amounts are reasonable
approximation of their fair value.

18 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company's financial risk management objectives and policies are consistent with those disclosed in the annual audited financial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2024.

19 GENERAL

Allvalues including comparative figures have been reported and rearranged in "Rupees in ‘000" for better presentation and consistency.
However, there are no material reclassification to report.

20 DATE OF AUTHORISATION OF ISSUE

These financial statements were authorised for issue on 17 February 2025 by the Board of Directors of the Company.

i i T 2.

‘DIRECTOI’( CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR
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KPMG

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Cao.

Chartered Accountanis

Sheikh Sultan Trust Building No. 2, Beaumont Road
Karachi 75530 Pakistan

+92 (21) 37131900, Fax +92 (21) 35685095

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REVIEW REPORT
To the members of HKC (Private) Limited
Report on review of Interim Financial Statements
Introduction

We have reviewed the accompanying condensed interim statement of financial position of HKC
(Private) Limited ("the Company”) as at 31 December 2024 and the related condensed interim
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the condensed interim statement of changes in
equity, the condensed interim statement of cash flows, and notes to the financial statements for
the six months period then ended (here-in-after-referred to as “interim financial statements”).
Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these interim financial
statements in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan for
interim financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on these financial
statements based on our review.,

Scope of Review

We conducted our review in accordance with International Standard on Review Engagements
2410, “Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the
Entity". A review of interim financial statements consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons
responsible for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review
procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance
that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit.
Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

Conclusion

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the
accompanying interim financial statements are not prepared, in all material respects, in
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim
financial reporting.



kPG

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.

Other Matter

The figures of the condensed interim statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
for the three months ended 31 December 2024 have not been reviewed and we do not express a
conclusion thereon.

The engagement partner on the review resulting in this independent auditors’ review report is
Muhammad Taufig.

kM Sarsa —

Date: 26 February 2025 KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Karachi

UDIN: RR202410108A05G15IVW
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HKC (PRIVATE) LIMITED

CONDENSED INTERIM STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ASSETS

Current assets
Intangible assets
Development property

Advances, prepayments and other receivables

Bank balances
TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Authorised share capital
150,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
Share premium
Accumulatedloss

Non-current liabilities
Long-term financing

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Current maturity of long-term financing
Contract liabilities

Due torelated parties

Accrued mark-up

TOTAL LIABILITIES

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

The annexed notes from 1 to 19 form an integral part of these financial statements.

7.7

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Note

N oo o b~

10

11

12
13

14

(Rupeesin '000)

3,210,684
29,451
11,486

3,251,621

1,500,000

186,467
1,385,869

(29,532)
1,542,804

451,385
516,665
281,550
435,281
23,936
1,708,817
1,708,817

3,251,621

‘DIRECTOI’(

31 December 30June
| 2024 | 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)

3,004,142
20,191
6,651
3,030,984

1,500,000

186,467
1,385,869
(26,016)
1,546,320

432,560
775,000
172,250
58,018
46,836
1,484,664
1,484,664

3,030,984



HKC (PRIVATE) LIMITED
CONDENSED INTERIM STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (UNAUDITED)

Six Months Ended Three Months Ended

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2023 2023
Note  ---------ommmmmmmoeeeee (Rupeesin '000) -----==-======m-mmomeme-
—— ——
Administrative expenses 15 (3,516) (2,302) (2,256) (1,361)
Loss before taxation W (2,302) W (1,361)
Taxation
Loss after taxation W (2,302) W (1,361)
Other comprehensive income for the period
Total comprehensive loss for the period W (2,302) W (1,361)
------------------------ (Rupees) ---=-====-m-mmommmmooee
Loss per share - basic and diluted (0.19) (0.13) (0.12) (0.12)

The annexed notes from 1 to 19 form an integral part of these financial statements.

27 e M

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER ‘DIRECTOI’(




HKC (PRIVATE) LIMITED

CONDENSED INTERIM STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY (UNAUDITED)

Reserves
Capital Advance Revenue
Issued, Reserve - against Reserve -
subscribed and . 9 Total
. . Share issuance of  Accumulated
paid up capital .
premium shares loss

------------------------------ (Rupeesin '000) -==-===========mo-mmmmmmeee e
Balance as at 01 July 2023 174,800 1,222,536 - (20,449) 1,376,887
Total comprehensive loss for the period
Loss after taxation - - - (941) (941)
Other comprehensive income for the period - - - - -
Total comprehensive loss for the period - - - (941) (941)
Transaction with owners
Receipt advance against issuance of shares - - 175,000 - 175,000
Balance as at 31 December 2023 174,800 1,222,536 175,000 (21,390) 1,550,946
Balance as at 01 July 2024 186,467 1,385,869 - (26,016) 1,546,320
Total comprehensive loss for the period
Loss after taxation - - - (3,516) (3,516)
Other comprehensive income for the period - - - - -
Total comprehensive loss for the period - - - (3,516) (3,516)
Balance as at 31 December 2024 186,467 1,385,869 - (29,532) 1,542,804

The annexed notes from 1 to 19 form an integral part of these financial statements.

27 e T

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

‘DIRECTOI’(




HKC (PRIVATE) LIMITED

CONDENSED INTERIM STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (UNAUDITED)

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Loss before taxation

Changesiin:
Development property
Trade and other payables
Contract liabilities

Bank profit receivable
Prepayments

Accrued mark-up

Advance tax deducted
Mark up paid
Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Bank profit received

Dividend received

Net cash generated from investing activities

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Advance against issuance of shares

Due torelated parties - net

Repayment of long termloan

Net cash generated from financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

The annexed notes from 1 to 19 form an integral part of these financial statements.

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

7.7

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Note

5.2

31 December

2024

31 December
2023

(Rupees in '000)

(3,516)

(125,673)
18,825
109,300
(64)
(8,981)
(6,593)
(10,109)

(151)
(105,168)
(115,428)

1,007
328
1,335

377,263
(258,335)
118,928

4,835

6,651
11,486

(2,302)

(458,551)
103,221
2,500
(3,851)
1,976
(354,705)
(357,007)

(3,334)

(96,066)
(456,407)

20,640

20,640

175,000
(2,356)

172,644

(263,123)

313,033
49,910

‘DIRECTOI’(



HKC (PRIVATE) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

HKC (Private) Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan on 13 September 2005 as a public limited company under the
repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017). The Company is principally engaged in the acquisition and
development of real estates and renovation of buildings and letting out. During the year 2020, the Company changed its status from
Public Unlisted Company to Private Limited Company. The registered office of the Company is situated at 20th Floor, Sky Tower, East
Wing, Dolmen City HC-3, Block 4, Abdul Sattar Edhi Avenue, Clifton, Karachi. The Company is classified as a Special Purpose Vehicle
(SPV) as per the Real Estate Investment Trust Regulations, 2022, and in turn is a subsidiary of TPL REIT Fund | which owns 94.92%
shareholding of the Company as of reporting date.

The Company's principal objective is acquisition and development of real estate sale of development property, rental of buildings and
letting out.

Geographical location and address of the business premises:
Addresses

Registered office: The Company's registered office is situated at 20th Floor, Sky Tower —East Wing, Dolmen City, HC-3, Abdul Sattar
Edhi Avenue, Block No. 4, Clifton, Karachi, Sindh.

Development property site: Plot No 22/7, Street CL-9, Civil Lines Quarter, Karachi.

The Company has the following related party relationships during the year:

. . Common Percentage of
Company Name Relationship Directorship Shareholding
TPLREIT Fund| Parent Entity Yes 94.92%
TPL REIT Management Company Limited Management company of Yes -
TPLREIT Fund|
TPL Investment Management Limited Subsidiary of management company Yes -

National Management & Consultancy Services

(Private) Limited Associated company Yes -
TPL Technology Zone Phase-I (Private) Limited Associated company of RMC Yes -
TPL Properties Limited Associated company of RMC N/A -
TPL Logistic Park (Private) Limited Associated company of RMC N/A -
TPL Security Services (Private) Limited Associated company of RMC N/A -
TPL Corp Limited Associated company of RMC N/A -
TPL Holdings (Private) Limited Associated company of RMC N/A -
TPL Property Management (Private) Limited Associated company of RMC N/A -
TPL Developments (Private) Limited Associated company of RMC N/A -
TPL Insurance Limited Associated company of RMC N/A -
TPL Life Insurance Limited Associated company of RMC N/A -
TPL Trakker Limited Associated company of RMC N/A -
Key Management Personnel - N/A -



HKC (PRIVATE) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.
The accounting and reporting standards comprise of?:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standard Board (IASB) as notified under
the Companies Act, 2017;

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017; and
- The Real Estate Investment Trust Regulations, 2022 (the REIT Regulations) and requirements of the Trust Deed.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, the REIT Regulations and requirements of the Trust Deed
differ from requirements of IFRS, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the 'historical cost convention' except for investment property and short-term
investments which are measured at fair value.

These financial statement have been prepared in accordance with IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting. They do not include all of the
information required for a complete set of financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards. However,
selected explanatory notes are included to explain events and transactions that are significant to an understanding of the changes
in the Company'’s financial position and performance since the last annual financial statements.

The comparative statement of financial position presented in these condensed interim financial statements as at December 31, 2024
has been extracted from the audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2024, whereas the comparative
condensed interim statement of profit or loss, condensed interim statement of comprehensive income, condensed interim statement
of changes in equity and condensed interim statement of cash flows have been extracted from the unaudited condensed interim
financial statements of the Company for the six months ended December 31, 2023.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees which is the Company's functional and presentation currency. Allamounts
are rounded-off to nearest thousand rupees, unless otherwise stated.

Change in accounting standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting and reporting standards

a) Standards, interpretations of and amendments to the accounting and reporting standards that are effective in the 'current
period:

There are certain new and amended standards, interpretations and amendments that are mandatory for the Company's accounting
periods beginning on or after July 01, 2024 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant effect on the
Company's operations and therefore, have not been stated in these condensed interim financial statements.

b) Standards, Interpretations and Amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet effective:

The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 and the
amendments and interpretations thereto will be effective for accounting periods beginning on or after January 01, 2025.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES, ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND JUDGMENTS
The accounting policies adopted and methods of computation of balances used in the preparation of these condensed interim financial

statements are the same as those applied in the preparation of the audited financial statements of the company for the year ended
June 30, 2024.



HKC (PRIVATE) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

3.1

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

Use of judgements and estimates

In preparing these condensed interim financial statements, management has made judgements and estimates that affect the application
of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expense. Actual results may differ from these
estimates. The significant judgements made by management in applying the Company's accounting policies and the key sources of
estimation uncertainty were the same as those described in the annual audited financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2024.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

This includes an intangible asset with a cost of Rs. 497.2 million, which has been fully amortized.

31 December 30 June
| 2024 | 2024

(Unaudited) (Audited)
DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY (Rupees in '000)
Land 126,000 126,000
Design, development & related costs 2,479,221 2,353,548
Borrowing Costs 605,463 524,594

3,210,684 3,004,142

This represents leasehold land parcel of 2,539 square yards of commercial property situated at corner of Abdullah Haroon Road and
Hoshang Road, Karachi.

During the period borrowing cost amounting to Rs. 80.86 million (2024: Rs. 172.46 million) was capitalised on borrowings from financial
institutions at the rate of three months KIBOR + 2.25% and is netted against investment income on the temporary investment on
those borrowings for construction of development property. The borrowing costs have been capitalised for development property
as these are qualifying assets.

The property is subject to equitable mortgage charge against the financing facility from financial institution as disclosed in note 9.1
of these financial statements.

As of 31 December 2024, MYK Associates the valuer of the Company determined the fair value of the property at Rs. 4,974.9 million
(30 June 2024 : Rs. 4,729.43 million). The valuation was carried out on the basis of present market values for similar property in the

vicinity of land and replacement values of similar type of land based on present cost.

The forced sale value of the investment property is assessed to be Rs. 3,979.92 million.

31 December 30 June
2024 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)
ADVANCES, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLE Note (Rupees in '000)
|
Prepayments 16,254 7,209
Taxation - net 12,961 12,810
Bank profit receivable 7.1 236 172
29,451 20,191
I
BANK BALANCES
Balances with banks - Current accounts 166 166
Balances with banks - Saving accounts 7.1 11,320 6,485
11,486 6,651




HKC (PRIVATE) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

7.1 These carry profit / mark-up rates ranging from 11.00% to 17.75% (30 June 2024: 11.00% to 20.75%) per annum.

8  ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

31 December 30 June 31 December 30 June
| 2024 | 2024 | 2024 | 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited) (Audited)
---- (No. of shares) ---- Note (Rupees in '000)
Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each in cash
18,646,667 18,646,667 | Sharesinissue 8.1&8.2 186,467 186,467
18,646,667 18,646,667 186,467 186,467

8.1 Following shares are held by the Parent entity and other major shareholder:

31 December 30 June 31 December 30 June
| 2024 | 2024 | 2024 | 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited) (Audited)
Name Percentage of Shareholding (Number of shares)
TPLREIT Fund| 94.92% 94.92% 17,698,636 17,698,636
Mr. Hussain Islam 5.08% 5.08% 948,000 948,000
Directors of the Company 0% 0% 30 30
100% 100% 18,646,666 18,646,666

8.2 \Votingrights, board selection, right of first refusal and block voting are in proportion to their shareholding.

31 December 30 June
| 2024 | 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)
9 LONG-TERMFINANCING Note (Rupeesin '000)
Bank Alfalah Limited - secured 9.1 516,665 775,000
Current maturity of long term financing (516,665) (775,000)
I

9.1 The Company had availed the facility of Rs. 775 million from a commercial bank through an agreement dated 8 June 2022. The purpose
of availing the facility is to finance the Company's residential / commercial building project. The amount received is repayable in 3
equal semi-annual instalments over a period of 3 years after completion of grace period of 18 months inclusive, at the rate of 3 months
KIBOR plus 225 basis points.

The facility has been secured against an equitable mortgage charge on property located at Plot No. 22/7. Street CL-9, Civil Lines
Quarter, Karachi having a total area of 2,539 square yards.

31 December 30 June
| 2024 | 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)
10 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES Note (Rupeesin '000)
Accounts payable 398,658 387,312
Accrued liabilities 6,852 4,752
Share application money 899 899
Withholding tax payable 44,975 39,597
451,384 432,560
I




HKC (PRIVATE) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

31 December 30June

| 2024 | 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(Rupeesin '000)

11.1 281,550

11.1 The contract liabilities primarily relate to the advance consideration received from customer in respect of instalment for purchase
of apartments, for which the revenue will be recognised at point in time when the construction is completed and title is transferred

11 CONTRACT LIABILITIES Note

Advance from customers 172,250

to the customers.
31 December 30 June
| 2024 | 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)
12 DUE TO RELATED PARTIES Note (Rupees in '000)
TPL REIT Management Company Limited 12.1 13,854 1,474
TPL Developments (Private) Limited 12.2 6,200 18,544
TPLREIT Fund | 12.3 415,227 38,000
435,281 58,018

12.1 This pertains to the payments made by TPL RMC on behalf of the Company which is repayable on demand.

12.2 This pertains to project design and consultation costs paid on behalf of the Company and is repayable on demand.

12.3 Thisincludes short-term loan extended for development purposes, carrying a profit rate ranging from 10.99% to 15.99% per annum.

13 ACCRUED MARK-UP
This represents accrued mark-up payable on commercial bank's long-term loan.

14 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Commitments
Company entered a contract with M/s Total Construction Limited for the main construction works of the Building. The contract for
the construction of the Phase 1B (Foundation and Protection Piling) is awarded for Rs. 198.57 million excluding the owner furnished
materials. Out of the total amount Rs. 39.71 million have been paid as mobilisation advance which is secured against the Advance
Payment Guarantee. Further, Rs.152.93 million have been invoiced as running bills of the contract.
The contract for the construction of the Phase 2A (Grey Structure Works) is awarded for Rs. 685 million excluding the owner furnished
materials. Out of the total amount Rs. 93.20 million have been paid as mobilisation advance which is secured against the Advance
Payment Guarantee. Further, Rs.200.22 million have been invoiced as running bills of the contract.

Contingencies

As of reporting date, the Company does not have any contingencies that are required to be disclosed in these financial statements.

Six months period ended
31 December

Three months period ended
31 December

| 2024 | 2023 | 2024 | 2023
15 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES (Rupees in '000) (Rupees in '000)
Legal and professional expenses 1,416 535 1,206 535
Auditor's remuneration 2,100 1,650 1,050 825
Bank charges - 117 - 1
3,516 2,302 2,256 1,361




HKC (PRIVATE) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

16 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related parties of the Company comprise of the Parent Entity, associated companies, major shareholders, directors and key
management personnel. The transactions with related parties other than those disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements are

as follows:
Three months period ended
31 December
2024 2023
The Parent Entity Note (Rupees in '000)

TPLREIT Fund |
Shares subscribed during the period - -

Short term loan under bi muajjal structure 16.1 364,000 -
Profit charged on short term loan 13,227 -

Associates - by means of common directorship

TPL Security Services (Private) Limited
Security Services Received 1,147 2,464
Payments against security services 1,147 2,464

TPL Development (Private) Limited

Developer margin charged during the period 3,939 231,350
Developer margin paid during the period W 231,350
Sales Commission charged during the period T 7,045 -
Sales Commission paid during the period W -
I

16.1 This represents the profit rate charged on the outstanding amount at the rate of 3 months KIBOR plus a minimum of 2.5% per annum.
All transactions with related parties are entered into at agreed terms duly approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.
17 FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. Consequently, differences can arise between carrying values and the fair value estimates.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Company is a going concern without any intention or requirement
to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market

transactions on an arm's length basis.

IFRS 13, 'Fair Value Measurements' requires the Company to classify fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects
the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
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| 31 December 2024
Carrying amount Fair value
Fair value Amortised Other
through financial Total Level1 Level 2 Level3 Total
) cost R
profit or loss liabilities
Note (Rupeesin '000)
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Bank profit receivable 171 - 236 - 236 - -
Bank balances 17.1 - 11,486 - 11,486 - -
- 11,722 - 11,722 - -
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Long-term financing 17.1 - - - - - -
Current maturity of long-term financing 171 - - 516,665 516,665 - -
Trade and other payables 17.1 - - 406,410 406,410 - -
Duetorelated parties 17.1 - - 435,281 435,281 - -
Accrued mark-up 17.1 - - 23,936 23,936 - -
- - 1,382,292 1,382,292 - -
30 June 2024
Carrying amount Fair value
Fair value ) Other
through Amortised financial Total Level1 Level2 Level 3 Total
profitorloss < liablities
Note ~ ---- e (Rupees in '000) mmmmemmemee oo
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Bank profit receivable 17.1 - 172 - 172 - -
Bank balances 17.1 - 6,651 - 6,651 - -
- 6,823 - 6,823 - -
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Long-term financing 17.1 - - - - - -
Trade and other payables 17.1 - - 392,963 392,963 - -
Duetorelated parties 17.1 - - 58,018 58,018 - -
Accrued mark-up 17.1 - - 46,836 46,836 - -
- - 497,817 497,817 - -

17.1 The Company has not disclosed the fair value for these financial assets and financial liabilities as their carrying amounts are reasonable
approximation of fair value.

18 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company's financial risk management objectives and policies are consistent with those disclosed in the annual audited financial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2024.

18 GENERAL

Allvalues including comparative figures have been reported and rearranged in "Rupees in ‘000" for better presentation and consistency.
However, there are no material reclassification to report.

19 DATE OF AUTHORISATION OF ISSUE

These financial statements were authorised for issue on 17 February 2025 by the Board of Directors of the Company.
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KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Sheikh Sultan Trust Building No. 2, Beaumont Road
Karachi 75530 Pakistan

+92 (21) 37131900, Fax +92 (21) 35685095

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REVIEW REPORT
To the members of TPL Technological Zone Phase-1 (Private) Limited
Report on review of Interim Financial Statements
Introduction

We have reviewed the accompanying condensed interim statement of financial position of TPL
Technology Zone Phase -1 (Private) Limited (“the Company”) as at 31 December 2024 and
the related condensed interim profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the condensed
interim statement of changes in equity, the condensed interim statement of cash flows, and notes
to the financial statements for the six months peried then ended (here-in-after-referred to as
“interim financial statements"). Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation
of these interim financial statements in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion
on these financial statements based on our review.

Scope of Review

We conducted our review in accordance with International Standard on Review Engagements
2410, "Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the
Entity". A review of interim financial statements consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons
responsible for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review
procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance
that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit.
Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

Conclusion

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the
accompanying interim financial statements are not prepared, in all material respects, in
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim
financial reporting.

Emphasis of Matter Paragraph

We draw attention to Note 1.3 of the condensed interim financial statements, which describes
that the Company's financial statements have been prepared on a basis other than going
concern because the Company has decided to dispose of its sole investment as duly approved
by the investors. The Company has reclassified its land from investment property to an asset
held for sale and upon completion of the sale the liquidation process will commence, affecting its
going concern status. Our conclusion is not modified in respect of this matter.



kPG

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.

Other Matter

The figures of the condensed interim statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
for the three months ended 31 December 2024 have not been reviewed and we do not express a
conclusion thereon.

The engagement partner on the review resulting in this independent auditors’ review report is

Muhammad Taufig.

Date: 26 February 2025 KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Karachi

UDIN: RR202410106kf8YGzgHm
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TPL TECHNOLOGY ZONE PHASE-1 (PRIVATE) LIMITED
CONDENSED INTERIM STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

31 December 30 June
| 2024 | 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)
Note (Rupees in '000)
ASSETS
Non-current asset
Investment property 4 - 2,505,194
Current assets
Asset held for sale - land 5 2,250,450 -
Advances and other receivables 6 539,231 539,215
Due from related party 7 300,000 =
Bank balances 8 21,172 3,059
3,110,853 542,274
TOTAL ASSETS 3,110,853 3,047,468
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorised Share Capital
300,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs.10/-each. 3,000,000 3,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 9 1,825,000 1,825,000
Fair value reserve 10 1,094,513 1,049,880
Unappropriated profit 572 4,135
2,920,085 2,879,015
Current liabilities
Accrued liabilities and other payables 11 15,925 18,594
Advance against sale of land 12 83,000 =
Due torelated parties 13 91,843 149,859
190,768 168,453
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 14
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 3,110,853 3,047,468
I

The annexed notes from 1 to 21 form an integral part of these financial statements.

27 e M
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TPL TECHNOLOGY ZONE PHASE-1 (PRIVATE) LIMITED

CONDENSED INTERIM STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (UNAUDITED)

Six months ended Three months ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2024 2023 2024 2023
Note  -------- (Rupeesin'000) --------  ==------ (Rupeesin '000) --------

Administrative expenses 15 (3,938) (1,682) (2,887) (857)
Otherincome 16 375 127 233 85
Unrealised gain on remeasurement of investment property 4 44,633 - 44,633
Profit / (loss) before taxation 41,070 (1,555) 41,980 (772)
Taxation
Profit / (loss) after taxation 41,070 (1,555) 41,980 (772)
Other comprehensive income for the period -
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the period 41,070 (1,555) 41,980 (772)

----------- (Rupees) ----------- ----------- (Rupees) -----------

Earning per share - basic and diluted 0.225 (0.009) % (0.004)

The annexed notes from 1 to 21 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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TPL TECHNOLOGY ZONE PHASE-1 (PRIVATE) LIMITED
CONDENSED INTERIM STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY (UNAUDITED)

Balance as at 30 June 2023
Total comprehensive loss for the period
Loss after taxation

Other comprehensive income for the period
Total comprehensive loss for the period

Balance as at 31 December 2023

Balance as at 1 July 2024

Total comprehensive income for the period
Profit / (loss) after taxation

Other comprehensive income for the period

Total comprehensive income for the period

Balance as at 31 December 2024

Reserves
Issued, Capital reserve - Revenuereserve -
subscribed and Fair value Unappropriated Total
paid up capital reserve (Note 8) profit

1,825,000 1,049,880 8,629 2,883,509
- (1,555) (1,555)
- (1,555) (1,555)
1,825,000 1,049,880 7,074 2,881,954
1,825,000 1,049,880 4,135 2,879,015
44,633 (3,563) 41,070
44,633 (3,563) 41,070
1,825,000 1,094,513 572 2,920,085
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________|

The annexed notes from 1 to 21 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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TPL TECHNOLOGY ZONE PHASE-1 (PRIVATE) LIMITED

CONDENSED INTERIM STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (UNAUDITED)

31 December 31 December
2024 | 2023
(Rupees in '000)

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit / (loss) before taxation 41,070 (1,555)

Adjustments for:

Unrealised gain on remeasurement of investment property (44,633) -
(3,563) (1,555)

Changesiin:

Advances and other receivables (16) (19)

Accrued liabilities and other payables (2,669) 1,659

Due to related parties (58,016) 10,485
(60,701) 12,125

Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities (64,264) 10,570

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Development expenditure for the period (623) (11,040)
Advance against sale of land 83,000 -

Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities 82,377 (11,040)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 18,113 (470)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 3,059 2,422
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 21,172 1,952

The annexed notes from 1 to 21 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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TPL TECHNOLOGY ZONE PHASE-1 (PRIVATE) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

1.1

1.2

13

1.4

1.5

THE Company AND ITS OPERATIONS

TPL Technology Zone Phase-1 (Private) Limited (formerly G-18 (Private) Limited) was incorporated in Pakistan as a private limited
Company on April 12, 2018 under the Companies Act, 2017. The principal activity of the Company is to purchase, acquire, take on
lease or in any other lawful manner any area, house, land, building, structures and to turn the same into account, develop the same
and dispose of or maintain the same and to build townships, markets or other buildings residential and commercial or conveniences
thereon and by advancing money to and entering into contracts and arrangements of all kind with builders, tenants and others. The
Company is classified as a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) as per the Real Estate Investment Trust Regulations, 2022; and in turnis a
subsidiary of TPL REIT Fund | which owns 100% shareholding of the Company as of reporting date.

The Company's principal objective is acquisition and development of real estate, rental of buildings and letting out.

During the period, the Parent Company “TPL REIT Fund 1" has obtained approval from the majority anchor investor for the disposal
of the sole land recorded in the books of TPL Technology Zone Phase 1 (The Company). As of 30th December 2024, the Company
entered into a sale agreement with the buyer for the disposal of land and the same is expected to be disposed of by the end of June
2025. The land has been reclassified from investment property to assets held for sale as presented in these condensed interim financial
statements. Following the disposal of the land, the Company will be wound up as approved by the majority anchor investors.

Accordingly, these financial statements have not been prepared on going concern basis. Therefore, all assets and liabilities will be
realised and discharged respectively at their carrying values as reflected in the financial statements.

Geographical location and address of the business premises:
Addresses

Registered office: The Company's registered office is situated at 20th Floor, Sky Tower —East Wing, Dolmen City, HC-3, Abdul Sattar
Edhi Avenue, Block No. 4, Clifton, Karachi, Sindh.

Investment property site (Technology Park): Open Industrial Plot No. 25-B, measuring 10,002 square yards, situated at Sector 30,
Korangi Industrial Area, Karachi.

The Company has the following related party relationships during the year:

: . Common Percentage of
Company Name Relationship Directorship Shareholding
TPLREIT Fund| Parent Entity Yes 100%
TPL REIT Management Company Limited Management company of Yes _
TPLREIT Fund |
TPL Investment Management Limited Subsidiary of management company Yes _
HKC (Private) Limited Associated company Yes -
National Management and Consultancy Services Associated compan Yes _
(Private) Limited © company
TPL Properties Limited Associated company of RMC N/A -
TPL Logistic Park (Private) Limited Associated company of RMC N/A _
TPL Security Services (Private) Limited Associated company of RMC N/A _
TPL Corp Limited Associated company of RMC N/A -
TPL HoIdings (Private) Limited Associated company of RMC N/A _
TPL Property Management (Private) Limited Associated company of RMC N/A _
TPL Developments (Private) Limited Associated company of RMC N/A _
TPL Insurance Limited Associated company of RMC N/A -
TPL Life Insurance Limited Associated company of RMC N/A -
TPL Trakker Limited Associated company of RMC N/A -

Key Management Personnel - N/A -



TPL TECHNOLOGY ZONE PHASE-1 (PRIVATE) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

3.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of Compliance

These condensed interim financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan

for interim financial reporting comprise of:

- International Accounting Standard (IAS) 34, Interim Financial Reporting issued by the International Accounting Standard Board
(IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017; and
- The Real Estate Investment Trust Regulations, 2022 (the REIT Regulations) and requirements of the Trust Deed.
- Accounting Standard on Non-Going Concern Basis of Accounting issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, differ with the requirements of IAS 34, the provisions of
directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have not been prepared on a going concern basis as the Company is considering voluntary wind up of its
operations as mentioned in note 1.3 of these financials statement. Therefore, all assets and liabilities are carried at realisable value.

These condensed interim financial statement have been prepared in accordance with IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting. They do not
include all of the information required for a complete set of financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS Accounting
Standards. However, selected explanatory notes are included to explain events and transactions that are significant to an understanding
of the changes in the Company’s financial position and performance since the last annual financial statements.

The comparative statement of condensed interim financial position presented in these condensed interim financial statements as at
December 31, 2024 has been extracted from the audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2024,
whereas the comparative condensed interim statement of profit or loss, condensed interim statement of comprehensive income,
condensed interim statement of changes in equity and condensed interim statement of cash flows have been extracted from the
unaudited condensed interim financial statements of the Company for the six months ended December 31, 2023.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees which is the Company's functional and presentation currency. Allamounts
are rounded-off to nearest thousand rupees, unless otherwise stated.

Change in accounting standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting and reporting standards

a) Standards, interpretations of and amendments to the accounting and reporting standards that are effective in the current period:
There are certain new and amended standards, interpretations and amendments that are mandatory for the Company's accounting
periods beginning on or after July 01, 2024 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant effect on the
Company's operations and therefore, have not been stated in these condensed interim financial statements.

b) Standards, Interpretations and Amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet effective:

The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 and the

amendments and interpretations thereto will be effective for accounting periods beginning on or after January 01, 2025.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES, ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

Material accounting policies

The accounting policies adopted and the methods of computation of balances used in the preparation of these condensed interim
financial statements are the same as those applied in the preparation of the audited financial statements of the Company for the year
ended June 30, 2024 except for the accounting policy as disclosed below:



TPL TECHNOLOGY ZONE PHASE-1 (PRIVATE) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

3.1.1 Assets held for sale

3.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

"Non-current assets are classified as held-forsale if it is highly probable that they will be recovered primarily through sale rather than
through continuing use.

Such assets are generally measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Impairment losses on initial
classification as held-for-sale and subsequent gains and losses on remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss. "

Use of judgements and estimates

In preparing these condensed interim financial statements, management has made judgements and estimates that affect the application
of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expense. Actual results may differ from these
estimates. The significant judgements made by management in applying the Company's accounting policies and the key sources of
estimation uncertainty were the same as those described in the annual audited financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2024.

31 December 30 June
| 2024 | 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)
INVESTMENT PROPERTY (Rupeesin '000)
Carrying amount at the beginning of the year 2,505,194 2,450,248
Development costs incurred during the period / year 623 38,682
Borrowing costs capitalised during the period / year - 16,264
Designing cost transferred to NMC (Private) Limited (300,000) -
2,205,817 2,505,194
Fair value as at 31st December 2024 2,250,450 -
Unrealised gain on remeasurement of property 44,633 -
Investment property transferred to held for sale (2,250,450) -
Carrying amount at the end of the period / year - 2,505,194
—

This represents leasehold land located in an Open Industrial Plot No. 25-B, measuring 10,002 square yards, situated at Sector 30,
Korangi Industrial Area, Karachi. This land is carried at revaluation basis and no depreciation is charged oniit.

Total development costs capitalised as at 31 December 2024 is Rs. 622.76 million (30 June 2024: Rs. 603.78 million).

As of 31 December 2024, MYK Associates Private Limited the valuer of the Company determined the fair value of the property at Rs.
2,250.45 million. The valuation was carried out on the basis of present market values for similar property in the vicinity of land and
replacement values of similar type of land based on present cost.

Fair value hierarchy

The land has been valued by external, independent property valuers, having appropriate recognised professional qualification and
recent experience in the location and category of the property being valued.

The fair value measurement for the land has been categorised as a Level 3 fair value based in the inputs to the valuation technique
used.

Valuation Technique

The valuation has been conducted in accordance with International Valuation Standards, employing the market approach which comes
under IFRS 13.



TPL TECHNOLOGY ZONE PHASE-1 (PRIVATE) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

5.1

6.1

Valuation Technique Significant unobservable Input

Inter- relationship between key unobservable input
and fair value measurement

Market Approach Fair value of comparable The estimated fair value of investment property would
properties increase / (decrease) if there is any change in the Fair
value of comparable properties
Fair value as at
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 31 December
2024
Note  --------momommomooee (Rupeesin '000) -----=========mnmmommn-
Land - - 2,250,450 2,250,450
Fair value as at
Level1 Level 2 Level 3 30 June
2024
------------------------ (Rupeesin '000) ---=-=========mnmmommn-
Land - - 2,505,194 2,505,194
31 December 30 June
| 2024 | 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)
ASSETS HELD FOR SALE (Rupees in '000)
Land 2,250,450 -

During the period, the Parent Entity “TPL REIT Fund 1" has obtained approval from the majority anchor investor for the disposal of
the sole land recorded in the books of the Company. As of 30th December 2024, the Company entered into a sale agreement with
the buyer for the disposal of land and the same is expected to be disposed of by the end of June 2025.

31 December 30 June
| 2024 | 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)

ADVANCES AND OTHER RECEIVABLES Note (Rupeesin'000)
Advance to contractor - secured 6.1 539,000 539,000
Profit on bank receivable - 51
Advance tax 231 164
539,231 539,215

This represents mobilisation advance extended to contractor and its partially secured by coverage of guarantee issued in favour of
the Company.



TPL TECHNOLOGY ZONE PHASE-1 (PRIVATE) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

31 December 30 June
| 2024 | 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)
7 DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES Note (Rupeesin '000)

National Management and Consultancy Services (Pvt) Ltd 7.1 300,000 -

7.1 This pertains to cost of design transferred to National Management and Consultancy Services (Pvt) Limited.

31 December 30 June
| 2024 | 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)
8 BANKBALANCES Note (Rupeesin'000)
- Saving accounts - local currency 8.1 21,110 2,997
- Current account - local currency 62 62
21,172 3,059

8.1 These carry profit / mark-up rates ranging from 11.00% to 17.75% (30 June 2024: 11.00% to 20.75%) per annum.

9 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

31 December 30 June 31 December 30 June
| 2024 | 2024 | 2024 | 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited) (Unaudited) (Audited)
(Number of shares) Note (Rupeesin'000)
Ordinary shares of Rs. 100/- each in cash
182,500,000 182,500,000 Sharesinissue 1,825,000 1,825,000
182,500,000 182,500,000 9.1 1,825,000 1,825,000

9.1 Followingshares are held by the Parent Entity:

31 December 30 June
| 2024 | 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)
Name Percentage of Shareholding (Number of shares)

TPLREIT Fund| 100% 7.1 182,500,000 182,500,000

9.2 Votingrights, board selection, right of first refusal and block voting are in proportion to their shareholding.
10 FAIRVALUE RESERVE

The fair value reserve pertains to cumulative net changes in fair value of investment/held for sale property which is not free for
distribution by way of dividend in accordance with the constitutive document of the Company.
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31 December 30 June
| 2024 | 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)
11 ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND OTHER PAYABLES Note (Rupeesin'000)
|
Accrued liabilities 7,435 7,435
Donation payable 6 6
Accrued auditor's remuneration 2,127 6,594
Withholding tax payable 6,357 4,559
___ 15925 18,594

12 ADVANCE AGAINST SALE OF LAND

I
Advance from buyer 12.1 83,000 -

12.1 Thisincludes advance consideration received from buyer against sale of land as disclosed in note 5 of the condensed interim financial

statements.

31 December 30 June

| 2024 | 2024
(Unaudited) (Audited)
13 DUE TO RELATED PARTY Note (Rupeesin'000)
TPL Properties Limited 13.1 - 16,132
TPLREIT Fund | 13.2 90,000 122,000
TPL REIT Management Company Limited 13.3 1,843 11,727
91,843 149,859

13.1 This pertains to mark-up payable on payments made on behalf of the Company. Profit was applicable at 3 months KIBOR plus 2.5%
per annum which is repayable on demand. The outstanding principal amount was completely paid in the previous year. No borrowing
cost is applicable during the current period.

13.2 This is paid for meeting short term working capital requirement of the Company which is repayable on demand.

13.3 This pertains to the payments made by TPL RMC on behalf of the Company which is repayable on demand.

14 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

As of reporting date, the Company does not have any contingencies and commitments that are required to be disclosed in these
financial statements (30 June 2024: Nil).

Six months ended Three months ended
31 December 31 December
2024 | 2023 2024 | 2023
15 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES Note (Rupeesin '000) (Rupeesin'000)

Auditor's remuneration 2,100 1,650 1,049 825
Legal and professional expenses 1,838 22 1,838 22
Bank charges - 10 10

3,938 1,682 2,887 857

16 OTHERINCOME

Profit on saving accounts 8.1 377 127 235 85
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17 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

18

The related parties of the Company comprise of the parent entity, associated companies, major shareholders, directors and key
management personnel. The transactions with related parties other than those disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements are
as follows:

Six months ended
31 December

2024 _ | 2023

Parent Entity Note (Rupees in '000)
TPLREIT Fund |
Payments made during the period 32,000 -
Associates - by means of common directorship
TPL REIT Management Company Limited
Expenses paid on behalf of the Company - 772
Payments made during the period 11,727 -
Payments on behalf of the Company 1,843 -
TPL Properties Limited
Borrowing cost 13.1 - 10,485
Payments during the current period 16,132 -
National Management and Consultancy Services (Pvt) Limited
Design plan sold 7.1 300,000 -

I

All transactions with related parties are entered into at agreed terms duly approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying values of all financial assets and other financial liabilities reflected in these condensed interim financial statements are
estimated to approximate their fair values, as these are either short-term in nature or repriced accordingly.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or
most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.

The Company while assessing fair values uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances using relevant observable
data as far as possible and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. Fair values are categorized into following three levels based on
the input used in the valuation techniques;

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that can be assessed at measurement.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that
is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices).

Level 3: Inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (that is, unobservable inputs).

Ifinputs used to measure the fair values of an asset or aliability fall into different levels then the fair value measurement is categorized
in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.
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19

20

21

Transfers, if any, between levels of the fair value hierarchy is recognized at the end of the reporting period during which the transfer
has occurred. The Company's policy for determining when transfers between levels in the hierarchy have occurred includes monitoring
of changes in market and trading activity and changes in inputs used in valuation techniques.

As at period end the fair value of all the financial assets and liabilities approximates to their carrying values. The Company does not
expect that unobservable inputs may have significant effect on fair values as there are no assets and liablitities which are categorized
under level 3 category except land held for sale which is categorised under level 3 as disclosed in note 4.3.2.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company's financial risk management objectives and policies are consistent with those disclosed in the annual audited financial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2024.

GENERAL
Allvalues including comparative figures have been reported and rearranged in "Rupees in '000" for better presentation and consistency.
DATE OF AUTHORISATION OF ISSUE

These financial statements were authorised for issue on 17 February 2025 by the Board of Directors of the Company.
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